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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 05 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Ms Hofmeyr,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We are  indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   Le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Myen i  can I… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sor ry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myen i  can you hear  me? 

MS MYENI :   I  can  hear  you Cha i rperson,  good morn ing ,  

thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  to  you.   The oath  you took 

yesterday w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  today you unders tand  

tha t?  

MS MYENI :   I  do  unders tand tha t  Cha i r  –  Cha i rperson  

thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Yes Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morn ing  Ms Myen i  can I  jus t  20 

conf i rm tha t  you can hear  me c lea r ly?  

MS MYENI :   Morn ing  Ms Hofmeyr  I  can hear  you c lea r ly  

yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Ms Myen i  where  we le f t  

mat te rs  o f f  yes terday was dea l ing  w i th  the  Pembroke 
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t ransact ion  wh ich  has co l loqu ia l l y  over  t ime been ca l led  

the  Ten to  Ten t ransact ion  and you w i l l  reca l l  we got  to  the  

end o f  i t  and I  had ind ica ted  to  you tha t  members  o f  the 

board  had taken  your  m isrepresenta t ions to  the  Min is te r  

very  se r ious ly  and I  wanted to  unders tand f rom you  

whethe r  you were  aware  o f  the  concerns tha t  they were  

ra is ing  in  ea r ly  2014?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson I  am not  go ing  to  answer  the  

quest ion  be ing  asked fo r  the  fear  o f  incr im inat ing  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  the  le t te r 10 

tha t  they wro te  to  you.   Th is  was s ix  members  o f  the  board  

on  the  28  January  2014.   I t  i s  a  le t te r  they wro te  to  you  

and wh ich  was cop ied  to  the  Min is te r.   And you w i l l  f ind 

tha t  in  the  bund le  we were  work ing  w i th  yesterday tha t  i s  

Bund le  DD34[b ]  and you w i l l  need to  p ick  i t  up  a t  page 

1332 –  1332.  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you say tha t  i s  34 [b ]?  

MS MYENI :   I  have i t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   [b ]?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   34 [b ]  yes  Cha i r  a t  page 1332.   I t  shou ld  20 

be under. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay no I  was –  I  th ink  you sa id  1332  

and I  was look ing  a t  103 someth ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh not  today Cha i r  thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   1332.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Le t  me ge t  there .   Yes I  am there .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  Ms Myen i  do  you have tha t  document  

in  f ron t  o f  you?  

MS MYENI :   I  do .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   What  you w i l l  see… 

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson I  do  sor ry.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   I t  i s  a  document  tha t  

commences a t  page 1332.   I t  i s  addressed to  yourse l f  and 

you w i l l  see  cc ’d  to  the  Honourab le  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  10 

Enterp r ises  Mr  Malus i  G igaba.   And then i f  you go over  a  

few pages to  page 1341 you w i l l  see  the  s i x  d i rec to rs  who 

s igned th is  le t te r.    

MS MYENI :   I  have the  le t te r  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And a t  page 1341  i t  commences  

“S incere ly,  concerned SAA non-execut ive  

d i rec tors . ”  

And then be low tha t  we have the  name o f  s ix  d i rec tors  and 

s ignatures  aga ins t  the i r  names.   I  read those in to  the  

record .   Mr  And i le  Khumalo ,  Ms Nonh lanh la  Kubeka,  Ms 20 

Ra is ibe  Lepu le ,  Mr  And i le  Mab ize la ,  Mr  Bong is izwe Mpondo  

and Ms Caro l  Ross Kruger,  do  you see tha t?  

MS MYENI :   I  see  i t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And what  th is  le t te r  de ta i l s  Ms Myen i  and  

I  am go ing  fo r  now jus t  to  pa raphrase broad ly  i s  a  number  
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o f  concerns abou t  your  leadersh ip  on  the  board .   I f  you  go  

back to  page 1332 wh ich  is  where  the  le t te r  commences 

you w i l l  see  there  tha t  i t  i s  da ted  the  28  January  2014 and 

th is  i s  en t i t led   

“Re Leadersh ip  Cha l lenges in  Re la t ion  to  

the  Cha i rpe rson  o f  South  A f r i can A i rways  

SOC L im i ted  SAA. ”  

I f  a t  any po in t  you want  me to  go  to  a  par t i cu la r  paragraph 

fee l  f ree  to  ask  me to  do  so  or  to  read the  spec i f i c  aspects  

I  am now go ing  to  paraphrase.   But  the  essence  o f  the  10 

le t te r  I  suggest  to  you Ms Myen i  i s  the  fo l low ing:  

They re fer  to  a  meet ing  –  a  board  meet ing  tha t  was he ld  on  

the  22  January  2014 wh ich  you d id  no t  a t tend.   And they 

recount  to  you and to  the  Min is te r  tha t  they wanted to  

d iscuss your  conduct  a t  tha t  meet ing .    

They reg i s te red the  fac t  tha t  th is  was an issue tha t  

requ i red  a t ten t ion .   And so  they dec ided to  ca l l  a  spec ia l  

meet ing  thereaf te r  so  tha t  you cou ld  a t tend.   They had  

concerns tha t  you were  no t  there  fo r  a  d i scuss ion  about  

your  conduct  so  they dec ided to  ca l l  a  spec ia l  meet ing  20 

wh ich  you cou ld  a t tend and tha t  was se t  fo r  s ix  days la te r  

on  the  28  January  2014.    

But  you had sen t  them an emai l  say ing  tha t  you  

wou ld  no t  a t tend.   Do you reca l l  those events  Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson may  I  no t  respond  to the  
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quest ion?  May I  invoke the  pr i v i lege o f  no t  respond ing  and 

answer ing  th is  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   The f i r s t  i ssue  tha t  they h igh l igh ted  in  

th is  le t te r  i s  ac tua l l y  the  manner  in  wh ich  you conducted  

yourse l f  in  re la t i on  to  the  Pembroke t ransact ion  tha t  we 

looked a t  yes te rday.   Were  you aware  tha t  they had  

expressed th is  concern  to  the  Min i s te r  in  th is  le t te r?  

MS MYENI :   I  do  no t  answer  Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   They sa id  tha t  you had gross ly  10 

m isrepresented the  fac ts  to  the  Min is te r.   Do you remember  

them making  tha t  very  se r ious a l legat ion  aga ins t  you?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond to  the  quest ion  Cha i rperson 

in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   They a l so  exp la ined tha t  your  e f fo r ts  to  

change tha t  reso lu t ion  the  one tha t  was taken on  the  27  

May tha t  we looked a t  yes te rday had de layed mat te rs  w i th  

Pembroke such tha t  the  t ime l ines  fo r  the  de l i very  o f  the  

A320 ’s  was de layed by  fou r  months .   They ca l cu la ted  the  

impact  o f  tha t… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   I  am ter r ib ly  sor ry  Ms 

Hofmeyr.   There  seems to  be  some sound or  no i se .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   From somewhere .   I t  seems to  be  on my 

r igh t .   I  do  no t  know.   There  seems to  be  some – some 
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s tabb ing  sound.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   We wi l l  invest iga te  Cha i r  i f  we can .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  I  am sor ry  okay le t  us  

cont inue.   Jus t  maybe s ta r t  your  quest ion  aga in?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   O f  course .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   What  they went  on  to  exp la in  a f te r  they 

reg i s te red the i r  concern  about  you r  g ross  

m isrepresenta t ion  to  the  Min is te r  was the  impact  o f  tha t  

m isrepresenta t ion .   Because they sa id  tha t  i t  resu l ted  in  10 

the  de lay  o f  the  Pembroke t ransact ion  such tha t  the  

t ime l ines fo r  the  de l i ver ies  o f  the  A320 ’s  was de layed by  

four  months  and they ca l cu la ted  the  impact  o f  tha t  on  SAA 

as be ing  a  cost  o f  about  R800 mi l l ion .   And they added tha t  

tha t  then had a  knock on  e f fec t  tha t  SAA had to  i ncrease 

i t s  bor rowing requ i rements  w i th  lenders .   A re  you aware  o f  

tha t?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson so  tha t  I  do  no t  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You are  aware  tha t  you d id  respond to 20 

th is  in  a  le t te r  tha t  you wro te  la te r,  i s  tha t  no t  so  Ms  

Myen i?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond  Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   The o the r  th ing  tha t  they were  very  
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concerned about  was tha t  you were  i ns t iga t ing  

invest iga t ions aga ins t  fe l low board  members .   Do you 

reca l l  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond  Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   They descr ibed a  s i tua t ion  in  wh ich  they  

were  be ing  managed w i th  fear  and in t im ida t ion .   Do you 

remember  tha t  a l legat ion  aga ins t  you?  

MS MYENI :   May  I  no t  respond Cha i rperson in  case –  so  

avo id  inc r im inat ing  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And they conc luded the i r  le t te r  by  say ing  

tha t  you had repeated ly  t ransgressed the  requ i rements  o f  

good governance .   That  you had  a  leadersh ip  s ty le  tha t  

wou ld  po tent ia l l y  expose a l l  boa rd  members  to  l iab i l i t y  fo r  

b reaches o f  f iduc ia ry  du t ies .   Do you reca l l  tha t  tha t  was 

the  leve l  a t  wh ich  they p i t ched the i r  concern  about  you r  

conduct?  

MS MYENI :   Wha t  i s  the  quest ion  Ma’am? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you remember  tha t  tha t  was the  leve l  

–  the  ser ious leve l  a t  wh ich  they recorded the i r  concerns  20 

about  your  conduct .  

MS MYENI :   Wi th  respect  Cha i rperson may I  no t  respond to 

the  quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now Ms Myen i  we looked a t  the  

s ignator ies  to  the  le t te r  a  moment  ago.   The le t te r  was 
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s igned by  s i x  board  members .   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  the i r  

s ignatures  appear  a t  page –  th is  is  DD34[b ]  page 1341.   A t  

the  –  on  the  board  a t  the  t ime as  I  have i t  there  were  a  

to ta l  o f  ten  members .   I t  was the  s ix  who had s igned the  

le t te r  and then in  add i t ion  to  those s ix  i t  was yourse l f ,  Ms 

Nkos i  Thomas,  Ms Kwinana and Mr  Na i than i .   I s  tha t  a lso  

your  unders tand ing  o f  the  const i tu t ion  o f  the  board  a t  the 

t ime?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond Cha i rperson to  the  quest ion  

to  avo id  incr im ina t ing  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you accept  tha t  th is  was a  le t te r  tha t  

the  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  ought  to  have taken very  

ser ious ly?   A major i t y  o f  the  members  o f  the  board  o f  SAA 

were  wr i t ing  to  h im and to  you to  no t i f y  h im o f  what  they  

regarded as  your  g ross l y  reck less  management  o f  SAA.  

Shou ld  tha t  have been taken ser ious l y  by  the  Min is te r?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson I  am so r ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Ms Myen i .  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson I  w ish  the  Min i s te r  tha t  i s  spoken 

about  o r  any o ther  Min i s te r  Cha i rperson wou ld  have taken  20 

the  mat te r  o f  the  co l laps ing  o f  South  A f r i can A i rways 

dur ing  the  tenure  o f  Co leman Andrews who so ld  the  f lee t  o f  

South  A f r i can A i rways put t ing  i t  in to  the  deepest  cha l lenge 

wh ich  a  dec i s ion  tha t  they took then and the  dec i s ion  tha t  

they took then up unt i l  today in  2020 was wrong then i t  i s  
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wrong today.    

But  i f  then I  am hear ing  tha t  the  Min i s te r  took  

someth ing  ser ious ly  tha t  was wr i t ten  by  board  members  bu t  

none o f  the  Min i s te rs  tha t  I  repor ted  to  took the  mat te r  o f  

cor rup t ion  a t  SAA took the  mat te r  o f  a l l  the  invest i ga t ions 

tha t  were  done in  te rms o f  losses –  f inanc ia l  losses  in  the 

organ isa t ion  as  we l l  as  onerous  lease agreements  tha t  

ex i s t  a t  SAA.    

I  wou ld  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  respond to  th is  quest ion  

there fo re  Cha i rperson I  am say ing  th is  I  am not  go ing  to  10 

respond to  th is  quest ion  and I  d id  apprec ia te  the  fac t  tha t  

the  Cha i rperson is  a l low ing me to  be  g i ven tha t  r igh t  no t  to  

incr im inate  myse l f .   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   As  I  unders tand i t  you responded to  tha t  

le t te r  and your  response Ms Myen i  you w i l l  f ind  in  the  same 

bund le .   You w i l l  f ind  i t  under  Tab23 and i t  i s  a t  page 1545.   

Do you have tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Get t ing  there  Ma’am.   I  have i t  Cha i rpe rson  

1545.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.   Before  you proceed Ms 

Hofmeyr  can I  jus t  ask  a  quest ion  to  Mr  Myen i?   In  te rms o f  

the  response tha t  you gave a  few minutes  ago d id  I  

unders tand you cor rec t l y  to  say tha t  none o f  the  Min is te rs  

to  whom you repor ted  when you were  cha i rperson  o f  the 
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SAA board  took  issues o f  cor rup t ion  SAA –  a t  SAA 

ser ious ly?   D id  I  unders tand you cor rec t l y?  

MS MYENI :   I  can  repeat  what  I  sa id  Cha i rpe rson so  tha t  i t  

i s  c lea r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI :   For  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI :   F i r s t  I  am say ing  the  ev idence leader  i s  say ing 

the  Min is te r  took  the  le t te r  f rom –  tha t  was wr i t ten  by  the  

board  members  very  ser ious ly.   I  am then say ing  I  w ish  10 

tha t  any o ther  Min is te r  o r  eve ry  M in is te r  tha t  we repor ted  

to  as  South  A f r i can A i rways took the  mat te rs  o f  South 

A f r i can A i rways as  ser ious l y  as  i t  i s  be ing  emphas ised  

about  th is  mat te r  the  issue o f  Co leman Andrews the  then 

CEO of  South  A f r i can A i rways under  the  leadersh ip  o f  a  

board  under  the  leadersh ip  o f  o ther  s t ruc tures  l i ke  

Par l iamentary  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  then the  Min is te r  the  

issue o f  se l l ing  the  too ls  o f  t rade se l l ing  –  se l l  –  the  se l l ing  

and the  l i s t ing  o f  the  a i rc ra f ts  tha t  be longed to  South  

A f r i can A i rways and reg i s te r ing  tha t  he  is  te l l ing  –  tu rn ing  20 

the  a i r l ine  around  and i t  i s  p ro f i tab le .    

I  am say ing  the  same energy  and the  same 

ser iousness tha t  i s  be ing  emphas ised today has never  

been a  –  the  same energy and ser iousness tha t  has been  

demonst ra ted  du r ing  my tenure  as  a  board  member  a t  SAA 
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and dur ing  my tenure  as  the  cha i rperson o f  the  board .    

I  have repor ted  about  onerous  cont rac ts .   F i r s t  

a i rc ra f t  leases tha t  a re  leased –  tha t  a re  do la r ised i n  te rms 

o f  the i r  leases.   Second ly  I  have a lso  ra i sed issues o f  an  

un t ransformed s ta te  en t i t y.    

So I  am say ing  then Cha i rperson the  co r rup t ion  a t  

SAA has been one o f  the  issues tha t  we have dea l t  w i th .   

We dec ided as  the  board  to  conduct  invest iga t ion  in to  

f inanc ia l  losses  a t  South  A f r i can A i rways.   I  have 

presented the  repor t s .   I  am –  I  am sure  you a re  se ized  10 

w i th  those as  we l l  Cha i rperson in  th is  commiss ion .    

But  the  same se r iousness tha t  I  am hear ing  today  

f rom Ms Hofmeyr  about  a  cer ta in  Min is te r  who took the  

le t te r  f rom the  board  members  who s igned.   Who o f  these 

board  members  never  ra ised any issue about  ever  ge t t ing  

cont rac ts  a t  SAA 90% of  cont rac ts  be ing  fo r  p redominant ly  

wh i te  compan ies  and on ly  2% o f  the  to ta l  p rocurement  

spend o f  R30 b i l l i on  go ing  to  b lack  peop le?    

I  am comment ing  Cha i rperson i t  was not  an  answer  

bu t  i t  was a  comment  to  say I  w ish  tha t  had happened  20 

dur ing  my tenure  as  a  board  member  and dur ing  my  tenure  

as  the  cha i rperson.   Ng iyabhonga emswanen i  Cha i rperson.  

[A f r i can language]  I  have to  bhonga emswanen i .   Thank 

you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no ,  no .   We –  you may have  to  te l l  
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everybody what  bhonga emswanen i  i s  because as  

somebody who speak Is i -Zu lu  I  know what  i t  means but  no t  

everybody knows and i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  a t  leas t  the  

ev idence leaders  a lso .   Do you want  to  t ry  and … 

MS MYENI :   Thank you very  much Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you want  to  t ry  and… 

MS MYENI :   And a lso  I  have an unders tand ing  Cha i rperson  

tha t  –  I  have an a lso  unders tand ing  tha t  i t  cou ld  be  

prov inc ia l  language  even –  even another  b lack  person 

might  no t  unders tand Bhonga emswanen i .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .    

MS MYENI :   Bu t  Cha i rperson I  wou ld  do  i t  fo r  the  o the r  

peop le  because Cha i rperson I  can –  I  can use –  do  a  

dramat ic  express ions in  Eng l ish  and A f r i kaans and 

Cha i rperson my background as  a  teacher  has a lways been 

a  w ish  tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  unders tands jus t  one ind igenous  

language.    

I  am not  –  I  am not  say ing  d i rec t l y  to  Ms Hofmeyr  

bu t  I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  as  a  teacher  I  w ish  [00 :21 :00]  

bas ic  educat ion  can cu t  ac ross  Cha i rperson to  every  o ther  20 

person so  tha t  we do not  a lways t rans la te  because the  

major i t y  o f  South  A f r i cans must  a lso  hear  about  i ssues tha t  

a re  tak ing  down respons ib le  and c i t i zens l i ke  myse l f  as  an  

adu l t  to  be  in  tha t  –  to  ge t  a l l  these  ind ic tments  a l l  the  t ime 

in  the  med ia  cha l leng ing  my mora l  –  my mora l  s tand ing  in  
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the  soc ie ty.    

L ike  yesterday Cha i rperson when I  was asked abou t  

f raud and a t  my leve l  Cha i rperson  and a t  my age tha t  i s  a  

be l ie f  tha t  a  b lack  person and a  woman leader  wou ld  never  

have mora ls .   But  a  cer ta in  g roup ing  in  South  A f r i ca  has 

mora ls .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  Ms Myen i  I  do  no t  want… 

MS MYENI :   So  ng iyabhonga emswanen i  Cha i r  [A f r i can  

language]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  10 

MS MYENI :   Wi th  your  permiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI :   [A f r ican language]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI :   I  do  no t  know in  Eng l ish  the  d i rec t  t rans la t ion  

par t .   I t  i s  touch ing  and go ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MS MYENI :   Touch ing  the  sub jec t  bu t  leav ing  i t .   And not  

rea l l y  go ing  and de lv ing  more  in to  tha t  sub jec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MS MYENI :   Perhaps Cha i rpe rson  you can ass is t  me wi th  

the  lega l  te rm? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  we l l  –  we l l  you –  your  t rans la t ion  

seems to  –  seems to  suggest  to  me you might  have been  

tendered [A f r i can  language] .  [Cha i r  and Ms Myen i  ta lk ing  
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over  one another ] .   I  th ink  [A f r i can language]  means 

someth ing  e lse .   So I  th ink  you meant  you wanted to  jus t  

touch on tha t  sub jec t  and not  go  deep in to  i t .   I s  tha t  r igh t?   

That  i s  what  you wanted to  say?  

MS MYENI :   I t  i s  cor rec t  –  i t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

MS MYENI :   Thank you very  much fo r  ass i s t ing  me 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr  I  am su re  you are  no t  –  I  

wanted to  make sure… 10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Nobody is  le f t  beh ind .   Wel l  I  must  say  

tha t  I  a lways fee l  ashamed by my  inab i l i t y  to  speak o the r  

A f r i can languages.   I s i -Sotho,  I s i -Tzwana a lways fee l  

ashamed about  tha t .   So –  so  I  am one o f  those who need 

to  do  someth ing  to  make sure  I  can unders tand and speak 

o ther  languages.   So yes okay a l r i gh t .   No I  th ink  t ha t  was  

the  pa r t  tha t  I  wanted to  –  to  make  sure  Ms Myen i  c la r i f ies  

in  te rms o f  the  Zu lu  te rm tha t  she had used.   Okay a l r igh t .  

MS MYENI :   My apo log ies  Cha i r  I  took  your  t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Myen i  I  do  need to  

jus t  c la r i f y  someth ing .   In  my quest ion  to  you wh ich  you 

have been answer ing  fo r  some t ime now I  d id  no t  convey  

tha t  the  Min i s te r  had taken the  l e t te r  ser ious ly.   I  –  my 
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quest ion  was ac tua l l y  to  ask  you whethe r  you thought  he 

shou ld  have taken the  le t te r  ser ious ly.   Do you have a  

response to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :   I  have no response to  tha t  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  we were  look ing  a t  your  response to  

tha t  le t te r  wh ich  I  ind ica ted  commences a t  page 1545 o f  

the  Bund le  DD34[b ] .   You w i l l  see  there  Ms Myen i  i t  i s  

addressed to  the  non-execut ive  d i rec to rs  and i t  i s  en t i t led  

“Response to  the  le t te r ;  leadersh ip  10 

cha l lenges. ”  

And then i f  you go to  the  las t  page o f  tha t  le t te r  wh ich  you 

w i l l  f ind  a t  page 1556.   Do you have tha t?  

MS MYENI :   I  have i t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   There  is  a  s igna ture  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  

page can you con f i rm whether  tha t  i s  your  s ignatu re? 

MS MYENI :   Yes i t  i s  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And th is  i s  a  le t te r  tha t  i t  i s  no t  c lea r  to  

me whethe r  i t  was a l so  sent  to  the  Min is te r  because i t  

seems on ly  to  have been addressed to  the  non-execut ive  20 

d i rec tors .  Do you reca l l  whethe r  you a l so  sent  i t  to  the 

Min is te r?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  respond  Cha i rperson in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now aga in  I  am go ing  to  paraphrase but  
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as  I  read th is  le t te r  you respond to  tha t  le t te r  f rom the  s ix  

board  members  oh  I  shou ld  add –  i t  seems to  have been  

dated by  hand a t  the  top  o f  page 1454 as  the  13  February  

2014.   I t  a lso  bears  what  seems to  be  a  faxed t ransmiss ion  

recorda l  on  the  le f t  hand s ide  o f  the  page ind ica t ing  the 

da te  o f  14  February  2014.   Can you conf i rm tha t  tha t  was  

about  the  t ime tha t  you s igned th is  le t te r?  

MS MYENI :   May I  no t  conf i rm Cha i rperson.   May I  no t  

answer  to  avo id  i ncr im inat ing  myse l f  Cha i rperson?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  you p rev ious ly  answered to  conf i rm  10 

tha t  you had s igned the  le t te r  so  cou ld  you con f i rm the 

da te  a t  wh ich  you  s igned i t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson where  I  say  I  s igned the  le t te r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  the  quest ion  was you  have 

conf i rmed you s igned i t  and I  want  to  jus t  loca te  tha t  in  

t ime because the re  seems to  be  a  da te  o f  the  13  February  

and the  14  February.   Can you conf i rm fo r  us  tha t  you  

s igned i t  e i ther  on  the  13 t h  o r  the  14 t h?  

MS MYENI :   I  s tand by  the  answer  I  have g iven 

Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   You are  re fus ing  to  conf i rm tha t  a  le t te r  

tha t  you have ind ica ted  under  oa th  you d id  s ign  was  s igned 

e i ther  the  13 t h  o r  the  14 t h  February  because you  be l ieve  

tha t  tha t  quest ion  is  go ing  to  expose you to  a  c r im ina l  

charge,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   So your  answer  to  tha t  quest ion  is  
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go ing  to  expose you to  a  c r im ina l  charge,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MS MYENI :   I  do  no t  have the  le t te r  tha t  I  wro te  w i th  me.   

I f  I  had my or ig ina l  le t te r  I  wou ld  s ta te  exact ly  the  da te  and  

every th ing .   I  do  no t  want  –  excuse me –  I  do  no t  want  to  

respond to  tha t  quest ion  because  somebody l i s ten ing  w i l l  

say,  I  sa id  the  13 t h  o r  I  sa id  the  14 t h  and a l l  I  know is  tha t  

i t  i s  be t te r  fo r  me not  to  answer  in  case I  inc r im inate  

myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myen i  as  I  read th is  le t te r  what  you 

do in  response. . .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe Ms… 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apo log ies  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe Ms Hofmeyr  can I  pu t  i t  th is  way 

Ms Myen i?   A re  you ab le  to  say you are  no t  sure  o f  the 

da te  when you s igned the  le t te r  bu t  you th ink  i t  wou ld  have 

been some t ime in  February,  a re  you ab le  to  say tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson w i th  respect  to  you I  w i l l  say  i t  

was in  February  somet ime.  The reason why I  p re fe r  no t  to  

spec i fy  da tes  is  because I  was  out  o f  the  count ry.   I  

needed to  send the  le t te r  back.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI :   To  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Company Secre tary.   So 

tha t  i s  an  e labora te  answer  tha t  I  wou ld  g ive  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI :   Bu t  Cha i r  i t  i s  be t te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI :   To  say i t  was in  February.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   So as  I  read your  response  

you say tha t  the  cr i t i c i sms made o f  you in  the  le t te r  o f  the  

s ix  co-d i rec tors  was a  w i tch  hunt .   You sa id  tha t  i t  was a  

cont r i ved a t tempt  to  demean you.   And then you dea l  w i th  

your  conduct  in  re la t ion  to  the  Pembroke t ransact i on .   A re 

you –  can you conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  –  was your  response to 

the let ter that  they had wri t ten addressed to yoursel f  and the 10 

minister.    

MS MYENI :    May I  not  answer Chairperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And your  response on the Pembroke 

Transact ion actual ly commences over  the page at  page 

1546.  That  is the second page of  the let ter but  on our  

referencing,  i t  is in Bundle DD34-B at  page 1546.   

 You wi l l  see where the heading there in bold. . .   Wel l ,  

against  the paragraph 2 i t  says the “chal lenge”.   And then 

below that  at  2.1 there is  a  heading,  Undermining the Narrow 20 

Body Fleet  Financing Process.    

 That  is where,  as I  understand i t ,  you are responding to  

their  concerns about your gross misrepresentat ions about  

the board resolut ions and the impact  that  i t  had on South 

Afr ican Ai rways’ f inances.    
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 Do you read your  let ter in the same way that  that  is  what 

you are deal ing wi th at  paragraph 2.1? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  answer Chairperson to ensure that  I  

do not  incr iminate mysel f?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now you wi l l  recal l  that  th is  let ter,  we 

have establ ished was wri t ten somet ime in February 2014.   

And then yesterday we looked at  an aff idavi t  that  you had 

deposed to before the Companies Tr ibunal  which you 

deposed to qui te a number of  years later in 2017.    

 And in that  a ff idavi t ,  you said to the companies t r ibunal  10 

that  the f inding of  the Commission against  you in re lat ion to 

these resolut ions and the representat ions were unfounded 

because you had made a genuine mistake.    

 You had misunderstood that ,  you thought in your mind 

that  the board had gone f rom ten to two but  you accept  that  

that  was an error.   Do you recal l  that  in your aff idavi t  that  we 

looked at  yesterday? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  answer the quest ion Chai rperson?  I  

do not  want to incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  what I  then looked for af ter I  had 20 

seen that  you,  in  a sense,  i f  I  take you at  the word of  your 

aff idavi t  deposed to before a commissioner of  oaths,  is  a 

qui te f rank admission that  a mistake had been made.    

 So I  looked at  th is let ter for that  same admission.   Your 

response to the board – the board was very worr ied about 
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your gross misrepresentat ion.    

 And so I  looked here for where you may appear to  the 

board that  you had been mistaken as you did later to the 

Companies Tr ibunal .   I  could not  f ind that  anywhere in the 

let ter.    

 Do you recal l  having indicated your mistake in  th is  

let ter? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson to avoid 

incr iminat ing mysel f?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  what you did say which does not  10 

involve a mistake is at  paragraph one,  f ive,  four. . .   Sorry,  at  

page 1546 where we were a moment ago at  paragraph 2.1.3.   

You say the fol lowing.    

 You are responding to the four at tempts that  the board 

members in thei r  previous let ter  had ident i f ied as your 

efforts to change resolut ions of  the board wi thout  any 

author i ty to do so.    

 And at  paragraph 2.1.3 you say the fol lowing.   You say:  

“As to the fourth at tempt,  I  have no knowledge of  

what you al lege.    20 

However,  what I  do conf i rm is that  when I  was 

requi red to sign a Sect ion 54 not ice,  I  was 

presented wi th,  at  the same t ime, two contracts.   

One for each of  the two speci f ied aircraf t  that  we 

were commit ted to .    
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I  was not  going to sign conf l ict ing documents 

wi thout  referencing this anomaly wi th the company 

secretary.   Once that  was c lar i f ied,  I  s igned the 

document presented to me.”  

 Okay.   Can you help me to understand what you are 

seeking to convey there?  Because I ,  certainly  in our  

invest igat ions,  we have not  been able to f ind two 

contradictory cont racts for two ai rcraf t .    

 Because of  course,  as you indicated to  the Companies 

Tr ibunal  later in  2017,  there was never a resolut ion in 10 

respect  of  two ai rcraf t .   So what were you conveying here? 

MS MYENI :    I  cannot help you Ms Hofmeyr.   May I  not  

answer your quest ion so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now Ms Myeni ,  a f ter you wrote this let ter,  

the other board members asked for the company secretary at  

the t ime, to do a report  on the effect iveness of  the board.   

Do you remember that? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson so that  I  do not   

incr iminate mysel f?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You wi l l  f ind his report  which he did at  the 20 

t ime in the same bundle,  DD34-B at  page 1363.  I f  we could 

go there? 

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Sorry,  I  should g ive you the start ing page.  

The f i rst  page of  that  report  that  the company secretary d id,  
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you wi l l  f ind at  page 1360.   

MS MYENI :    I  do have i t  Chai rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Now this is a document commencing at  

page 1360 and concluded at  page 1365.   I t  is. . .  and i t  is 

s igned by Sandi le  Dlamini ,  the Company Secretary of  SAA.  

And i f  you go back to page 1360, you wi l l  see that  i t  is  

addressed to the SAA Board of  Di rectors.   I t  is f rom the 

company secretary and i t  is dated 29 May 2014.  Do you see 

that? 

MS MYENI :    I  do.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And again,  I  am going to highl ight  some 

aspects of  th is report  that  the company secretary did.   Let  us 

look at  the purpose.   Mr Dlamini . . .    

 Wel l ,  let  us deal  wi th the heading f i rst .   Report  on the 

Funct ioning and Effect iveness of  the Board and i ts 

Structures.   That  is at  page 1360.   

 And the purpose of  the document is ident i f ied as:  

“The purpose of  th is submission is  to report  to the 

board on matters which impact  on the funct ioning 

and effect iveness of  the board. ”  20 

 And i t  goes on to  look at  speci f ic matters over the page 

at  1361.   I t  deals wi th  a board evaluat ion that  was being 

done by the Inst i tute of  Di rectors and what they have found.  

 I f  you go over the page to page 1362, you wi l l  see at  

paragraph 4.2 there is a heading,  Board is not  a coherent  
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team.   

 And then i f  you go over  to  page 1363 at  paragraph 4.4,  

there is a heading,  Morator ium on Board Meet ings.   And 

Mr Dlamini  records there that  in two instances the 

chairperson t r ied to impose a morator ium on meet ings of  the 

board.  

 The f i rst  incident  was last  year in  December on a day 

preceding the meet ing of  the Social  Ethics Governance and 

Nominat ions Commit tee and she instructed the manager in 

our off ice to place a morator ium.  10 

 And in the second incidence,  he said was on the 

6t h of  May 2014 and the inst ruct ion was given through the 

CEO.  Do you recal l  g iv ing those inst ruct ions to  impose 

morator iums on meet ings of  the board? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  answer that  quest ion Chairperson?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    We are going to come back to the second 

imposi t ion of  the morator ium which is the one dated the 

6t h of  May 2014 because that  wi l l  become relevant  la ter in an 

aspect  about  what  was going on at  court .    

 Right .   So in  summary,  he concludes that  your  20 

leadership style was divis ive.   That  you t r ied to impose those 

morator iums on board meet ings.  

 And as a consequence of  the board having received this  

report ,  they then ca l led for a meet ing wi th the minister to 

discuss governance issues.    
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 And that  was granted by Minister Gigaba at  the t ime but  

as I  have that ,  you did not  at tend that  meet ing.   Is that  

correct? 

MS MYENI :    May I  not  respond Chai rperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f?  Sorry,  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes-no,  that  is f ine.   Let  me just  ment ion 

something that  maybe I  should have ment ioned i t  yesterday 

but  I  am sure i t  is  something that  your legal  team would have 

ment ioned to you or may have ment ioned to you.    

 You certainly are f ree to exercise any r ight  that  you have 10 

that  appl ies in proceedings of  the Commission.   That  is the 

f i rst  point .  

 The second point  that  I  want  to make is.   The 

Commission wishes to get  al l  perspect ives f rom di fferent  

ro le-players in regard to the matters that  i t  is invest igat ing 

so that  when i t  makes i t  report  and makes i t  f ind ings,  i t  does 

not  do so on the basis of  the perspect ive of  maybe second 

people only and no other people.  

 So i t  seeks to  t ry and obta in the perspect ives of  

everybody so that  i t  can have a wel l -balanced view of  the 20 

si tuat ion.    

 Of  course,  what  th is does mean is that  whi le  the 

Commission might  be seeking to do that .   I f  a part icu lar  

person or wi tness exercises thei r  r ight  not  to  te l l  thei r  s ide of  

the story or  not  to answer certain quest ions,  i t  does mean 
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that  in  respect  of  those matters,  the Commission wi l l  have to 

deal  wi th the matters wi thout  the benef i t  of  that  wi tness’s 

side of  the story on those issues.  

 And when i t  makes i ts report  and when i t  makes i ts  

f indings,  i t  wi l l  do so only on the basis on the evidence of  

those who put  evidence before i t  and who answered 

quest ions.  

 The fact ,  of  course,  that  a par t icular wi tness or a  

part icular person might  not  put  their  s ide of  the story or  

might  not  answer certain quest ions,  does not  mean that  the 10 

Commission would not  be able to make f indings in the end.  

 I t  s imply means,  i t  would have to make f indings on the 

basis of  the evidence that  i t  has,  which means,  i f  for 

example,  you have Witness A,  Witness B,  Witness C giving 

evidence,  say about you,  saying whatever they have said 

about you.  

 And you have not  given your side of  the story,  you have 

not  put  your perspect ives to i t ,  the Commission wi l l  make i ts 

f indings only on the basis of  the evidence that  i t  received,  

namely those of  Witness A,  Witness B,  Witness C.  20 

 That  does not  mean that  the Commission wi l l  accept  

everything that  evidence Witness A,  Witness B,  Wi tness C 

say.   The Commission wi l l  evaluate their  evidence.    

 We could wel l  have a si tuat ion where the Commission 

evaluates a part icular wi tness’s evidence and does not  
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accept  i t  even i f  the other person did not  respond.   

 But  what i t  does mean is,  when i t  evaluates the 

evidence,  i t  wi l l  do so wi thout  that  other person’s input  or 

her side of  the story and then i t  would make f indings.  

 So I  am just  ment ioning that .   As I  say,  i t  may be 

something that  your legal  team may have explained but  just  

in case that  did not  happen. 

 So as you exerc ise your r ight  that  may apply to  the 

proceedings of  the Commission,  I  just  want you to appreciate 

that .   In the end the Commission would make i ts  report ,  10 

make i ts f ind ings based on the only ev idence that  i t  has.   

You understand? 

MS MYENI :    I  do understand Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

MS MYENI :    I  appreciate what the Chairperson has c lar i f ied.   

Chairperson,  my apprehension – i f  I  may respond? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    I f  you may al low me to respond Chai rperson? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes,  yes.  

MS MYENI :    My apprehension Chairperson was that  I  come 20 

before this Commission,  t rust ing the leadership,  t rust ing 

your posi t ion but  t rusted the journey you t raversed to the 

level  at  which you are in the country.  

 So I  came before this  Commission mainly to hear  that  I  

am a cu lpr i t .   I  am a cr iminal .   I  came before this  
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Commission because I  a lso do not  want to be in contempt.   

And I  r isk to ensure that  whi le in isolat ion I  st i l l  present  

mysel f .    

 Now to come back to what the Chairperson is saying.   I  

appreciate what the Chai rperson is  saying because there has 

been a narrat ive Chair  that  a certain grouping(?) is gui l ty.  

 Or  – not  you Chairperson – but  your invest igators,  

together wi th your  evidence leaders may be doing something 

that  you are not  aware of .   Assisted by the media.   

 I  mysel f  Chairperson I  need to – in  response to what  the 10 

Chai r,  the comfort  you have shed just  now or the clar i ty you 

have given.   Let  me not  say the comfort  because I  am not  

here to be given any comfort  but  I  am here to state the side 

– my side of  the story.  

 I  fee l  Chai rperson that  there is a certain sect ional  group 

that  is be ing hunted.   There are certain people that  you 

Chairperson might  not  be aware of  that  are denied to come 

and present  some evidence of  corrupt ion but  because i t  does 

not  sui t  the narrat ive of  today,  they are not  a l lowed to come.   

 I  have been one of  those wished to come and present  to 20 

the Commission but  when I  started the mood – when I  

started the occurrences were . . . [ indist inct ]  the Commission,  

Chairperson.  [d istort ion present  – speaker cannot be heard 

clear ly. ]  

 When I  started,  some pronouncements by the media.   
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Then I  real ised that  I  – i t  is not  a winnable at tempt.   I  am 

si t t ing here Chai rperson.   I  asked yesterday that :   Am I  on 

t r ia l  or not?   

 Because Chai r,  I  s i t  here and be wanted .   I  s i t  here as 

somebody who stole money somewhere.   I  s i t  here as 

somebody who defrauded some state ent i t ies or  who 

captured state ent i t ies but  in court  there was no shred of  

evidence of  any money taken by me.    

 In South Af r ica [speaking vernacular] .   I  fe l t  Chairperson 

big(?) before you,  to lead(?) me or  actual ly  assist  me to 10 

ensure that  I  te l l  somebody [speaking vernacular]  that  I  am 

gui l ty by associat ion of  Jacob Zuma. 

 I  needed a mamma(?) somewhere who is in my church 

who bel ieves the way.   Be,  there is people that  have assisted 

in Richards Bay that  I  have t rained,  assisted,  regis ter their  

companies,  led(?)  at  the Deputy President  of  the Zululand 

Chamber of  Commerce to understand that  I  am not  gui l ty of  

anything but  I  am gui l ty by associat ion of  President  Zuma.  

 He had never to ld  me why he has been hunted down.   I f  

I  had a choice to  reverse decisions I  made.  Chairperson,  I  20 

would have not  taken the posi t ion of  being the Chairperson 

of  the Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion because in my journey as a 

successful  businesswoman,  an award winning 

businesswoman. 

 There has never been any black spots in my leadership.  
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[Distort ion present  – speaker unclear]  . . .but  there has been 

so much conspi racies that  are pol i t ical .   I  am not  a  pol i t ic ian 

Chairperson.   I  am a sol id businesswoman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  

MS MYENI :    And then Chai r.   I f  then si t t ing here before 

you. . .   A pract ical  example.   I  am asked Chair  i f  I  understand 

the role of  a chai rperson and a CEO.  I  have highl ighted(?)  

CEO Chairperson.   I  have interviewed CEO’s.   I  have given 

then contractual  agreements.    

 I  cannot give you . . . [ indist inct ]  certa in th ings Chai r  and I  10 

cannot not  just  simpl i fy(?) but  I  cannot be asked at  my level  

and at  my age where I  know the role of  a chairperson and 

the role of  a CEO.   

 I  have learnt  in the cont inent(?) Chai r  as the president  in 

the Af r ican space.   Now Chair  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    . . . I  am not  an example.   As the last  example – I  

want to make maybe two more.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    Was the issue of  my CV.   I  offered to give you 20 

my CV yesterday.   Unbeknown to me Chai r,  when I  page 

through a few pages,  I  f ind my CV that  was submit ted at  the 

Publ ic Enterpr ises in 2012.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    I  am being asked a quest ion before you 
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Chairperson.   You have my CV.   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    I t  c lear ly states that  reasons why I  d id not  do 

my last  – my majors.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    I t  states clear ly.   But  the quest ion that  is being 

asked so that  we f i t  the narrat ive to the media.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    That  I  am a l iar.   I  am a cr iminal .   And I  have 

moral  infer ior i ty(?) complex.   And a bel ieve that  i f  you are 10 

black,  you are a cr iminal .   A bel ieve that  a certain f ract ion of  

the society in South Afr ica that  is associated wi th President  

Jacob Zuma is corrupt .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    And Chai r,  last ly.   When I  was asked about a 

def in i t ion of  f raud,  i f  I  understood that  f raud is bad.   Do I  

know whether f raud is bad or not .    

 I  would not  have unearthed(?)  corrupt ion at  SAA i f  I  d id 

not  know fraud is bad.   That  is one.   Two.  There have been 

people that  have been vague(?) given plat forms.   20 

 Not  because they had genuine complaints but  they are 

hiding thei r  own cr iminal  act iv i t ies by coming to the 

Commission to state certain things Chair  that  we cannot  

reverse.    

 Books have been wri t ten about us.   Certain th ings have 
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been said about us.   Certa in  names have been given to us 

as cheap women just  for associat ion.    

 Chai r,  i f  I  had a choice,  I  would wake up the next  day 

being a Ms White or a Ms Li l ly(?) or  a  Ms Van der  Merwe 

because that  name would give me credibi l i ty in  my own 

count ry Chairperson.    

 And know that  I  said more but  I  am saying i t  Chai r  so 

that  you understand that  even the Rule point . . .   Sorry,  the 

Rule 3(3) that  gets sent  to us.   I t  is not  you Chairperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  10 

MS MYENI :    You do not  know, perhaps,  what gets sent  to 

us.   You get  Rule 3(3) maybe three pages of  something that  

is so big but  you are made to bel ieve that  th is is what has 

been said to you.   When you go through a document as I  

have been given an opportuni ty now to go through these f i les 

that  are before me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    Last  night ,  Chai rperson,  I  s lept  at  four  o’c lock 

in the morning because I  was reading some interest ing(?) 

th ings that ,  Chai r,  one day this report  that  you wi l l  be 20 

compi l ing about th is Commission.   When i t  is  taken for  a  

rev iew, i t  w i l l  be only you Chai r.   Not  the evidence leaders 

whom I  respect .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    Not  your invest igators whom I  respect .   But  
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yesterday Chai r,  you said you did not  know – you did not  

give permission to OUTA to use your documents.   You might  

Chai r,  innocent ly  be t rust ing people that  are doing your 

work,  which al l  of  us Chair  bel ieve in you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    I  be l ieve in you.   I  have a high respect  of  you.   

I  know you before you knew me when you were at  the 

. . . [ indist inct ]  off ice Chai r.   So I  have high respect  for you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    But  I  th ink I  am before you Chai r  wi th the 10 

people that  have come back who are aggrieved,  who have 

been made to say:   Go say something about  anyone 

associated wi th Jacob Zuma.   

 So Chai rperson,  I  am saying.   I f  I  could,  I  would reverse 

some of  the decisions that  I  took.   I  d id not  know some of  the 

things about President  Zuma in his pol i t ical  space.    

 And that  is not  my space.   But  I  am found being 

associated wi th somebody in the pol i t ical  fact ions Chair  that  

is being hunted by this Commission.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  20 

MS MYENI :    And I  am hoping that  the Commission wi l l ,  as 

the Chairperson has said,  give us the opportuni ty Chair  to  

te l l  the nat ion about certain journeys,  certain things that  

have been said,  certain experiences that  we have that  have 

created some of  the pain to us.  
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 L ike Chai r,  the last  quest ion – the last  example that  I  

said I  would make.  One evidence. . .   Oh, sorry.   Submit ted.   

One person comes there.   He is being . . . [ indist inct ]   He is  

cal led Mr X.    

 He says things.   He is covered.   He has been t rusted.   

Why he is being t rust?  He is covered.   He does not  show h is 

face.   Because he fears for his l i fe.    

 How do you fear for your l i fe when you are involved in  

cr iminal  act iv i t ies yoursel f?  People that  have stolen 

somewhere run to  the Commission.   Some, not  al l .   Run to 10 

the Commission to te l l  the names of  certain  people,  certain  

groupings.    

 A pract ical  example Chai r  that  I  have discovered 

yesterday.   I  was. . .   This Commission has been told that  I  

bought a house in  2015.  I t  is bel ieved that  I  d id buy a house 

in 2015.  I t  is also bel ieved that  the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion 

was establ ished in 2001.   

 Now Chai r,  what  I  can t ry and say.   The media has a 

posi t ion and a narrat ive that  says by associat ion wi th Jacob 

Zuma, Dudu Myeni  is a cr iminal .    20 

 So i t  is incumbent upon me Chai r  not  to  incr iminate 

mysel f  in my responses but  to be in  a forum where my name 

can be properly c leared so that  we then separate [speaking 

vernacular]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You want to interpret  i t  into Engl ish 
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. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  I  know that  because the narrat ive 

has been created for  years.   I  cannot control  what the media 

says about me.   

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    But  al l  I  am saying Chai r,  I  w ish I  was a 

Madam Venter because by vi r tue of  the colour,  I  would not  

be presumed gui l ty in order for me to prove my innocence.   I  

am here as an innocent person.    

 And Chai rperson,  thank you for  your  fa i rness and thank 10 

you for standing as an independent person in th is process.   

Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Ms Myeni .   I t  is a – who may  

have mat te rs  re la t ing  to  cor rup t ion  tha t  you may have  

w ished to  b r ing  to  the  Commiss ion  bu t  d id  no t  b r ing  fo r  

whatever  reason  because we ce r ta in ly  s ince  2018 have 

been inv i t ing  a l l  South  A f r i cans who have got  any 

in fo rmat ion  to  b r ing  i t .   We are  approach ing  the  end o f  the  

te rm o f  the  Commiss ion  so  we might  no t  be  ab le  to  do  

much about  in fo rmat ion  tha t  we get  so  la te  bu t  i f  you  wou ld  20 

fee l  comfor tab le  to  send tha t  in fo rmat ion  to  the 

Commiss ion ,  I  w i l l  be  very  in te res ted  in  you fu rn ish ing  the  

Commiss ion  w i th  tha t  in fo rmat ion  so  tha t  we can we what  

we can do.    

I  ment ioned tha t  we are  approach ing  the  end o f  the  
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te rm o f  the  Commiss ion ,  tha t  p laces a  l im i t ,  a  l im i ta t ion  on  

how much room we have to  invest iga te  fu r the r,  un l i ke  i f  we 

had got  i t  abou t  a  year  ago o r  s ix  months  ago,  bu t  

never the less ,  i f  you  do have,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  encourage you 

to  make i t  –  to  send i t  to  the  Commiss ioner  and  i f  you 

dec ide  to  do  tha t ,  send i t  to  the  secre ta ry  o f  the  

Commiss ion  and you can ment ion  in  a  cover ing  le t te r  to  the  

secre tary  tha t  you are  send ing  i t  a r i s ing  ou t  o f  the 

proceed ings o f  today and tha t  I  encouraged you to  send i t .   

And then we w i l l  look  a t  i t  and see what  can be done w i th  10 

i t .   You unders tand?  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson,  thanks fo r  the  

oppor tun i ty,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  I  d id  no t  an t ic ipa te  tha t  I  wou ld  

need to  re turn  to  th is  mat te r  today because I  though t  tha t  I  

tha t  i t  had been dea l t  w i th  yesterday but  I  am go ing  to  ask  

–  beg leave to  hand in  the  co r respondence w i th  Ms Myen i ’s  

a t to rneys re la t ing  to  th is  a l legat ion  o f  co l lus ion  be tween  

the  Commiss ion  and OUTA.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now,  o f  cou rse ,  because o f  Ms Myen i ’s  

remote  loca t ion ,  what  I  have asked to  have done  is  tha t  

contemporaneous  w i th  me hand ing  th is  up  and  to  my 

learned f r iends and yourse l f ,  Cha i r  –  I  see tha t  they have 
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no t  been punched ,  we w i l l  do  the  punch ing  i f  we can  jus t  in  

a  moment  a t  the  tea  break,  bu t  I  have asked fo r  the  

secre tar ia t  to  emai l  them to  Ms Myen i ’s  a t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  tha t  they can enab le  her  to  have a  

copy o f  i t  and g iven tha t  we are  c lose  to  the  tea  break I  

suggest  tha t  she  use the  tea  break oppor tun i ty  to  read  

them but  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  do  is  to  ac tua l l y  to  read 

them in to  the  record  because I  wou ld  l i ke  to  pu t  an  end to  

th is  suggest ion  tha t  there  was any sense o f  co l l us ion  or  10 

lack  o f  respons iveness f rom the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i f  we cou ld  en ter  i t ,  Cha i r,  as  

EXHIBIT DD39B.43 because tha t  i s  the  las t  number  we a re  

a t  a t  the  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  o f  the  two le t te rs?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Oh,  yes ,  we cou ld  do  them separa te l y ,  

cou ld  we not?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  do  i t  separa te ly .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  le t  us  do  the  le t te r  f rom Lug isan i  20 

Mantsha A t to rneys,  because tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  one,  as  DD39  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    Sor ry ,  Cha i r ,  DD? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  Ms Myen i ,  the  le t te rs  tha t  Ms  

Hofmeyr  i s  re fe r r ing  to ,  you might  –  they m ight  no t  have 
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reached you,  I  am not  sure ,  bu t  she says they have been 

emai led  to  your  a t to rney.   Maybe you are  go ing  to  ge t  them 

dur ing  the  tea  b reak.  

MS MYENI :    Yes ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  she sa id  they are  on  exh ib i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  they are  no t  on  any exh ib i t  as 

ye t .  

MS MYENI :    DD? 

CHAIRPERSON:    They are  separa te ,  so  you do not  have 

them a t  the  moment .  

MS MYENI :    Oh,  okay.   Okay,  Cha i rpe rson,  yes .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Your  a t to rney shou ld  be  br ing ing  them to 

you maybe,  dur ing  the  tea  break.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  she w i l l  jus t  read them in to  the  

record  and then la te r  on  she can –  we can dea l  w i th  them.   

Yes,  tha t  i s  the  le t te r  f rom Lug isan i  Mantsha A t to rneys  

da ted 8  November  2019 addressed  to  the  Act ing  Secre tary  

o f  the  Commiss ion .   That  one shou ld  be  exh ib i t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    DD34B.43.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Po in t  3?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    43 ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   The le t te r  f rom Lug isan i  

Mantsha A t to rneys da ted 8  November  2019 and addressed 

to  the  Act ing  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  w i l l  be  admi t ted  

as  EXHIBIT DD34B.43.  
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LETTER FROM LUGISANI  MANTSHA ATTORNEYS DATED 

8  NOVEMBER 2019 HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  DD34B.43  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed and then  the  second one wh ich  is  

the  emai l  response f rom the  Commiss ion  to  tha t  le t te r  

wh ich  is  da ted  11 November  2019,  may I  request  tha t  we 

enter  as  EXHIBIT  DD34B.44?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  le t te r  w i l l  be  adm i t ted  as  

EXHIBIT DD34B.44.   Okay.  

EMAIL RESPONSE FROM COMMISSION TO LUGISANI  

ATTORNEYS DATED 8  NOVEMBER 2019 HANDED IN AS 10 

EXHIBIT  DD34B.44  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  I  p ropose to  read them.   I  wou ld  

no t  o rd ina r i l y  do  so  bu t  in  fa i rness to  Ms Myen i  she does  

not  have them in  f ron t  o f  her  a t  the  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  I  th ink  i t  i s  appropr ia te  jus t  to  read 

them in to  the  record .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  I  want  to  beg in  w i th  the  f i rs t  p iece  o f  

cor respondence wh ich  is  the  l e t te r  f rom Ms Myen i ’s  20 

a t to rneys a t  the  t ime and i t  i s  da ted  the  8  November  2019.   

Cha i r ,  as  you recorded ea r l ie r ,  i t  i s  addressed  to  the  

Act ing  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  and i t  says  the  

fo l low ing:  

1 .  We a re  wr i t ing  th is  le t te r  to  seek c la r i f y  and 



05 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 299 
 

Page 41 of 148 
 

con f i rmat ion  o f  the  lega l  s ta tus  o f  documents  

pub l i shed w i th  the  emblem o f  the  Commiss ion .  

2 .  We ra i se  th is  quest ion  because we have 

documents  rece ived th rough d iscovery  tha t  bear  

the  emblem o f  the  Commiss ion  as  a  watermark .   

I t  i s  the  in ten t ion  o f  one o f  the  pa r t ies  to  re ly  on  

the  sa id  documents  as  ev idence in  the  t r ia l .  

3 .  On the  face  o f  i t  the  documents  seem to  have 

emanated as  the  ev idence o f  a  w i tness tha t  we 

know to  have tes t i f ied  a t  the  Commiss ion .  10 

4 .  We thus seek the  Commiss ion ’s  response to  the 

fo l low ing:  

4 .1  We ask tha t  the  Commiss ion  p rov ide  us  w i th  

the  spec i f i c  p rov is ions in  the  Commiss ion ’s  

te rms o f  re fe rence tha t  a l low fo r  documents  

w i th  the  sea l  o r  emblem o f  the  Commiss ion  to  

be  used as  ev idence in  p roceed ings ou ts ide  

the  ambi t  o f  the  Commiss ion . ”  

Over  the  page:  

4 .2  We ask the  Commiss ion  prov ide  us  w i th  the  20 

 spec i f i c  p rov is ions in  the  Commiss ion ’ s  

te rms o f  re fe rence tha t  a l low fo r  the  pub l i c  

d isseminat ion  o f  documents  submi t ted  as  

ev idence to  the  Commiss ion ,  the  pub l i c  o r  

persons not  a f f i l ia ted  to  the  Commiss ion .  
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4 .3  We ask the  Commiss ion  to  con f i rm or  deny 

hav ing  i ssues  documents  submi t ted  as  

ev idence to  the  Commiss ion  to  o rgan isa t ions 

no t  o f f i c ia l l y  assoc ia ted  to  the  Commiss ion ,  

par t i cu la r l y  the  organ isa t ion  ca l led  OUTA.  

4 .4  We ask the  Commiss ion  to  conf i rm the  lega l  

s ta tus  o f  documents  so  proven to  emanate  

f rom the  Commiss ion  in  lega l  p roceed ings 

ou ts ide  the  Commiss ion .   We wa i t  your  p rompt  

response in  th is  regard . ”  10 

So tha t  i s  a  le t te r  da ted  the  8  November  2019 .   The  

response came f rom the  represen ta t i ve  o f  the  sec re tar ia t  

and fo r  th is  purpose we go to  EXHIBIT DD34B.44.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  so  tha t  i t  i s  c lea r ,  i t  appears  tha t  

Lug isan i  Mantsha  A t to rneys were  represent ing  Ms Myen i  a t  

the  t ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .   Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    There  has subsequent ly  been a  change.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  fo r  some o f  the  in te rac t ions w i th  the  

Commiss ion  Ms  Myen i  was represented by  Lug isan i  

Mantsha A t to rneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then –  so  they asked fo r  a l l  o f  those 
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i ssues to  be  addressed and they asked fo r  the  prompt  

response.   So on  the  11  November  2019 –  and now we are  

on  the  emai l ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  we have entered as  EXHIBIT  

DD34B.44,  the  Secre tar ia t  o f  the  Commiss ion  responds and  

i t  says :  

“Dear  S i rs ,  we re fer  to  your  co r respondence dated 8  

November  2019.   Before  we can  comprehens ive l y  

respond,  we wr i te  to  you in  o rde r  to  seek c la r i t y .   

Which  w i tnesses are  you re fer r ing  to  in  parag raph 3  

o f  th is  le t te r  and to  wh ich  documents  are  you  10 

re fer r i ng  in  paragraph 2  o f  th is  l e t te r?   Once we  

have th is  i n fo rmat ion  we w i l l  be  ab le  to  respond 

about  the  spec i f i c  documents  re fer red  to .   K ind  

regards. ”  

And tha t  i s  f rom the  representa t i ve  o f  the  Secre tar ia t .   

There  was never  any response to  tha t  request  tha t  wou ld  

have enab led  us  mean ing fu l l y  to  engage w i th  the  

suggest ion  tha t  w i tnesses tha t  Ms Myen i ’s  lawyers  knew 

had a l ready tes t i f ied  pub l i c ly ,  the i r  documents  bear ing  the  

wate rmark  o f  the  Commiss ion  had found i t s  way in to  20 

d iscovery  processes.   We requested c la r i t y  as  to  wh ich  

spec i f i c  one so  tha t  we cou ld  be  sure  to  respond  

appropr ia te l y  g iven what  had been  d isc losed and there  was  

never  a  response  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   I  see  we are  a t  quar te r  past  
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e leven,  maybe th is  wou ld  be  the  conven ien t  t ime to  take  

the  tea  break.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  the  tea  break,  i t  i s  quar te r  

past  e leven,  we  w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  past  e leven.   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  we do not  have Ms Myen i ’s  p ic tu re  

there ,  there  is  j us t  he r  name.   Oh,  there  she comes up.   10 

You can hear  me,  Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson,  thank you very  much .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .   Okay,  le t  us  proceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  I  made an  

er ror  be fo re  the  break and my team has a le r ted  me to  i t .   

There  was ac tua l l y  a  th i rd  le t te r  in  the  sequence o f  the  

le t te rs  tha t  I  handed up befo re  the  break because the  

Commiss ion  d id  no t  want  to  leave  i t  jus t  on  a  f i rs t  request  

fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion .   So what  then happened – I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

jus t  hand up,  i f  we may,  because th is  th i rd  le t te r  w i l l  20 

comple te  the  ex ten t  o f  the  in te rac t ions be tween the  

Commiss ion  and Ms Myen i ’s  then lawyers .   Th i s  w i l l  a lso  – 

have been or  i s  i n  the  process o f  be ing  sent  to  Ms Myen i ’s  

lawyers  so  tha t  she can have a  copy.  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r?  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ms Myen i ,  d id  you rece ive  dur ing  

the  break the  two le t te rs?   I t  i s  a  le t te r  and an emai l  f rom 

your  a t to rney tha t  was sent  to  h im before  the  break.   D id  

they reach you?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  the  le t te rs  have not  reached me 

but  the  documents ,  they have rece ived them here ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  Cha i r,  jus t  to  comple te  the  p ic tu re ,  

you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  –  oh ,  i f  we  cou ld  jus t  en te r  i t  as  

EXHIBIT DD34B.45 and tha t  the  emai l  da te  19  November  10 

2019.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the  –  i s  i t  two emai ls  on  th is . . .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  a  copy o f  the  one we  

were  look ing  a t  p rev ious ly  because i t  i s  a  fo l low-up .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  the  one r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom is  the  one  

we have ac tua l l y  en tered.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  I  wanted to  show how the  two re la te  

to  one another ,  so  they a re  bo th  on  th is  page.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Wel l ,  the  document  tha t  

i s  da te  19  November  2019 addressed by  Ms Shannon S  van 

Vuuren f rom the  Commiss ion  to  Lug isan i  Mantsha  

A t to rneys w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT DD34B.45.  

EMAIL FROM MS SHANNON S VAN ZYL TO LUGISANI  
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ATTORNEYS DATED 19 NOVEMBER 2019 HANDED IN AS 

EXHIBIT  DD34B.45  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r ,  we are  indebted.   And 

jus t  so  tha t  you can fo l low what  happens.   Remember  we  

get  the  le t te r  on  the  8  November  ask ing  fo r  a  p rompt  

response and what  you see a t  the  bo t tom o f  what  i s  now 

EXHIBIT DD34B.45 was the  Commiss ion ’ s  f i rs t  response to  

tha t ,  the  fo l low ing Monday,  the  11 t h ,  tha t  i s  where  the  

Commiss ion  requested in  o rde r  comprehens ive ly  to  

respond tha t  we get  in fo rmat ion  about  wh ich  the  w i tnesses 10 

were  and what  the  documents  were .   There  is  no  response 

to  tha t  fo r  more  than a  week and so  on  the  fo l low ing 

Tuesday,  the  19  November  2019,  the  sec re tar ia t ’ s  

rep resenta t i ve  aga in  sends an  emai l  to  the  same 

rec ip ien ts ,  Ms Myen i ’s  e rs twh i le  a t to rneys and says:  

“Dear  S i rs ,  jus t  a  reminder  regard ing  the  be low. ”  

And she keeps the  emai l  be low so  tha t  they cou ld  have no  

doubt  about  what  was be ing  addressed and s ince  tha t  

emai l  there  has been no response.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  i f  we can then cont inue w i th  Ms  

Myen i ’s  quest ions.  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Sor ry .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Buthe lez i?  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Cha i r ,  sor ry ,  Cha i r .   I  jus t  want  to  
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p lace  on reco rd ,  Cha i r ,  we a re  no t  go ing  to  pursue th is  

i ssue any fu r ther .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BUTHELEZI :    I t  i s  no t  tak ing  our  hear ing  much fu r the r ,  

you know? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR BUTHELEZI :    We note  the  response.   A t  the  t ime the  

horse  had bo l ted .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BUTHELEZI :    These th ings were  admi t ted  a l ready in  10 

cour t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BUTHELEZI :    We requested  c la r i t y ,  we got  counter -

quest ions and we  thought  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to  take  anywhere ,  

i t  i s  what  i t  i s ,  le t  us  move on.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Thank you.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  jus t  fo r  the  record ,  tha t  was not  

the  pos i t ion  tha t  was presented to  the  Cha i rperson  

yesterday by  Ms  Myen i ’s  a t to rneys and represen ta t i ves .   

What  was conveyed to  the  Commiss ion  yeste rday was tha t  20 

there  had been no response f rom the  Commiss ion  and tha t  

i s  why i t  was par t i cu la r l y  impor tan t  to  pu t  th is  on  record .  

 Ms Myen i ,  jus t  be fore  we had qu i te  a  b i t  o f  ev idence  

f rom you,  I  was ask ing  about  the  meet ing  tha t  the  board  

members  who had compla ined about  your  leadersh ip  had  
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ca l led  w i th  Min is te r  G igaba and tha t  they a t tended but  you  

d id  no t  a t tend.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  answer  tha t  quest ion ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r ,  these aspects  re la ted  to  the  s ix  

board  members  who wro te  tha t  le t te r  o f  compla in t  to  the  

m in is te r  have been se t  ou t  in  an  a f f idav i t  by  the  fo rmer  

board  member  Mr  Bong is i zwe Mpondo and tha t  a f f idav i t  i s  

conta ined in  Ms Myen i ’s  bund le .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  us  to  

i t ,  i f  we may,  because I  am now go ing  to  go  in to  no t  jus t  10 

the  documents  around th is  i ssue but  ac tua l l y  what  Mr  

Mpondo says about  events  tha t  now unfo ld .  

 Cha i r  and Ms Myen i  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  in  the  same 

bund le  DD34B and i t  i s  under  tab  13  and i t  i s  page 1211.  

MS MYENI :    I  have i t ,  Cha i r .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  Cha i r ,  th is  i s  an  a f f idav i t  f rom Mr  

Mpondo.   As  w i th  a l l  a f f idav i t s  rece ived in  the  Commiss ion  

where  somebody  does not  tes t i f y ,  we request  tha t  i t  be  

prov is iona l l y  admi t ted .   To  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  m igh t  be  

d isputed,  o f  course ,  Cha i r ,  you might  take  a  v iew la te r  tha t  20 

somebody shou ld  be  ca l led  to  g ive  ora l  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  i t  was p laced in  Ms Myen i ’s  bund le  

and fo r  the  purposes o f  today so  tha t  she wou ld  have an  

oppor tun i ty  to  respond to  i t .   I  am not  sure  whethe r  she is  
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go ing  to  do  so  bu t  nonethe less  i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  t he  work  

o f  the  Commiss ion  tha t  I  take  you,  Cha i rpe rson,  th rough  

what  Mr  Mpondo  says about  the  events  tha t  then  unfo ld .   

Cha i r ,  i f  we cou ld  then admi t  th is  as  DD34B.13 and i t  i s  an  

a f f idav i t  deposed  to  on  the  28  Ju ly  2020.  

CHAIRPERSON:    34B?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Po in t  13 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    One th ree?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Bong is izwe Mpondo 10 

s ta r t ing  a t  page 1211 is  a t  admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT DD34B.13.  

AFFIDAVIT  OF BONGISIZWE MPONDO STARTING AT  

PAGE 1211 HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  DD34B.13  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you so  much,  Cha i r .   So,  Ms  

Myen i ,  i f  we can jus t  p ick  up  the  a f f idav i t  some way  in to  i t  

a t  page 1222.   So I  wou ld  l i ke  to  –  do  you have tha t ,  Ms 

Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    I  do .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you.   So we can s tar t  a t  

parag raph 38 a t  the  bo t tom o f  page 1222 because  tha t  i s  20 

where  Mr  Mpondo s tar ts  to  dea l  w i th  th is  meet ing  tha t  I  

was ask ing  whether  you reca l l ed  and he records the re :  

“ I  remember  tha t  there  was a  meet ing  tha t  was 

requested by  Min is te r  G igaba before  May 2014  

wh ich  was ca l led ,  I  be l ieve  to  d i scuss the  issues  
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ra ised in  the  d i rec tors ’  January  2014 le t te r  

addressed to  the  Cha i rpe rson and cop ied  to  the  

m in is te r .   The min is te r ,  deputy  m in is te r  and D i rec tor  

Genera l  a t tended  tha t  meet ing  a long w i th  the  board  

members .   The purpose o f  the  meet ing  f rom the  

s ide  o f  the  DPE,  i t  appeared,  was to  med ia te  and to  

hear  bo th  pa r t ies  in  o rde r  to  come up w i th  a  

so lu t ion .   A t  the  t ime the  mee t ing  s ta r ted  the  

Cha i rperson had not  a r r i ved. ”  

Ms Myen i ,  f rom the  contex t ,  tha t  is  a  re fe rence to  you.   I t  10 

goes on:  

“The DG adv ised us  tha t  he  had made an a t tempt  to  

ge t  ho ld  o f  the  Cha i rperson who was repor ted  to  be  

s tuck  in  a  meet ing  somewhere .   Why there  was an  

a t tempt  by  the  m in is te r  to  address the  issues ra i sed  

regard ing  the  Cha i rperson,  th is  was not  poss ib le  as  

the  Cha i rperson  d id  no t  a t tend the  meet ing  

convened fo r  th is  purpose. ”  

Ms Myen i ,  can you o f fe r  any comment  on  th is?   Do you 

d ispute  what  Mr  Mpondo says about  the  e f fo r ts  to  a r range  20 

a  meet ing  be tween you,  the  m in is te r ,  the  deputy  m in is te r  

and the  D i rec tor  Genera l?  

MS MYENI :    No comment ,  Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  

to  the  quest ion  so  tha t  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then a t  paragraph 39 what  –  tha t  i s  
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over  the  page a t  page 1223,  what  Mr  Mpondo there  

accounts  i s  tha t :  

“There  was a  meet ing  tha t  took p lace a t  the  end o f  

June 2014 wh ich  was convened by  the  new min is te r  

a t  the  t ime,  Ms Lynne Brown.   I t  was the  f i r s t  t ime 

we were  meet ing  w i th  th is  m in is te r .   In  the  meet ing  

the  m in is te r  a f fo rded us  an  oppor tun i ty  to  te l l  he r  

what  was go ing  on in  SAA.   The d i rec tors  a l l ,  to  the  

best  o f  my reco l lec t ion ,  gave input .   The 

Cha i rperson ar r i ved dur ing  the  course  o f  the  10 

meet ing .   The  members  ra i sed issues around 

leadersh ip  wh ich  were  a long the  l ines  o f  the  

contents  o f  the  le t te r  p rev ious l y  communica ted  and  

the  sent iments  captured in  the  m inutes  and the  

company secre tary ’ s  repor t .   The min is te r  was 

there fo re  we l l -aware  o f  the  issues  the  board  ra ised  

around the  leadersh ip  cha l lenges fac ing  the  board  

a t  the  t ime. ”  

Do you reca l l  a t tend ing  tha t  meet ing ,  Ms Myen i ,  a lbe i t  i t  

some way th rough the  meet ing  w i th  Min is te r  Lynne Brown? 20 

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    What  Mr  Mpondo dea ls  w i th  next  in  the  

a f f idav i t  i s :  

“A  repor t  tha t  was then done by  the  Depar tment  o f  
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Pub l i c  Ente rpr i ses fo r  Min is te r  Brown about  the  

issues tha t  they were  seek ing  to  ra ise  and br ing  to  

the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  Min i s te r . ”  

And tha t  i s  a  repor t  tha t  you w i l l  f ind  la te r  in  the  same f i le ,  

DD34B and tha t  you w i l l  f ind  commencing  – we l l ,  m igh t  no t  

be  commencing ,  I  have to  check my re ferences.   1393 is  

the  page I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  go  to ,  i f  we may.  

MS MYENI :    I  have i t .   I  have i t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Ms Myen i .   You w i l l  see  tha t  

th is  i s  a  document  en t i t led  br ie f ing  memo a t  the  top  r igh t  10 

hand corne r ,  i t  i s  addressed to  the  then Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises ,  Ms Lynne Brown.   I t  i s  f rom Ms Mkho lo ,  who i s  

the  Deputy  D i rec tor  Genera l  and i t  i s  da ted  the  30  Ju l y  

2014.   Jus t  to  pause,  we are  now fo l low ing the  chrono logy.    

There  is  the  in i t ia l  le t te r  by  the  board  members  in  

ear l y  2014.   There  i s  you r  response in  February  2014,  

there  i s  an  e f fo r t  to  meet  w i th  M in is te r  G igaba wh i le  he  

was s t i l l  i n  tha t  pos i t ion  wh ich  the  o the r  board  members  

and you do not  a t tend.  

 Then there  is  the  meet ing  w i th  Min is te r  Brown in  20 

June where  you do a t tend and a t  wh ich  the  board  members  

conveyed to  Min is te r  Brown the  concerns tha t  they 

expressed in  the i r  ear l ie r  le t te r  and now we a re  a t  Ju ly  

2014 because what  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l i c  Enterp r ises  

then does is  pu ts  together  a  repor t  on  – and le t  us  look a t  
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the  sub jec t  o f  th is  document  fo r  tha t :  

“Governance cha l lenges fac ing  the  South  A f r i can 

A i rways SAA board  o f  d i rec to rs . ”  

Ms Myen i ,  do  you  reca l l  hav ing  seen th is  repor t  be fo re?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You w i l l  see  over  the  page r igh t  a t  the 

end,  i f  we jus t  go  to  the  end to  page 1413.   You w i l l  see  

tha t  a l l  the  peop le  who compi led  th is  repor t  have  s igned 

and then you w i l l  see  towards the  bo t tom on the  le f t  hand 10 

s ide  the re  is  a  s ignatu re  f rom Ms Lynne Brown da ted the  

16  September  2014 and there  is  a  no te  next  to  tha t  wh ich  

seems to  read,  i t  i s  in  handwr i t ing :  

“ I  rece ived th i s  memo two months l a te r !   What  i s  the  

speed w i th  wh ich  i t  has  to  be  dea l t  w i th?   She l ley  

presented 30/07”  

I  th ink  tha t  i s  30  Ju l y .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  P r isc i l la  o r  Pr isc i l la  

on  4 /08 .    

“Th is  i s  i t  downh i l l ”  

I  do  no t  ac tua l l y  know what  tha t  says.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  i s  l i ke  i t  says :  

“Th is  i t  i s  downhi l l ”  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   Cha i r ,  i f  I  can  jus t  pause there .   

Min is te r  Brown has been asked to  respond  to  the 

Commiss ion  about  th is  memo,  about  what  we w i l l  now 
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uncover  as  we take the  s to ry  fo rward  was done.   She has  

prov ided an a f f idav i t .   I  unders tand the re  maybe some 

in ten t ion  fo r  her  to  g ive  ora l  ev idence before  the  

Commiss ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am not  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t  now,  bu t  I  

jus t  wanted to  p lace  on reco rd  her  response to  th is  has 

been sought  and prov ided to  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t .   So,  Ms Myen i ,  I  am jus t  go ing  to  10 

summar ise  what  th is  repor t  says and i f  a t  any po in t  you 

want  me to  go  w i th  spec i f i c  re fe rence to  a  pa ragraph I  am 

happy to  do  so  bu t  le t  me summar ise .   What  th is  repor t  

says to  Min is te r  Brown is  f i rs t  tha t  there  are  fac t ions 

amongst  board  members  w i th in  SAA.  

 Second,  the  DPE’s  assessment  i s  tha t  there  is  a  

comple te l y  dys funct iona l  board  a t  SAA a t  tha t  t ime.   The  

repor t  re fe rs  to  your  dec is ion  to  suspend a l l  board  

ac t i v i t ies  un t i l  the  m in is te r  in te rvenes and the  repor t  

exp la ins  tha t  tha t  dec is ion  o f  you rs ,  to  suspend a l l  board  20 

ac t iv i t ies ,  has aggravated mat te rs  and i t  conc ludes tha t  the  

m in is te r  i s  in  a  pos i t ion  and has a  power  to  remove some 

or  a l l  o f  the  board  members .   Ms  Myen i ,  were  you aware  

tha t  those v iews  and tha t  assessment  had been made by  

the  rep resenta t i ves  o f  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  En terpr i ses 
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to  the  m in is te r .  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond ,  Cha i rperson,  un less  I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So ,  Ms Myen i ,  I  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  even 

by  September  now o f  2014 there  is  rea l l y  qu i te  a  c r is i s  

w i th in  the  board .   S ix  board  members  have sought  to  

engage the  m in i s t ry  about  the i r  severe  concerns about  you r  

leadersh ip  and what  i t  i s  do ing  to  the  proper  funct ion ing  o f  

the  board  and then s teps were  taken,  rep lacements  were 

made in  October  o f  2014.   Can you ass i s t  us  w i th  who was 10 

re ta ined and who  was removed? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  the  

quest ion ,  I  do  no t  want  to  incr im ina te  myse l f .  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Sor ry ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Sor ry  to  in te r rup t ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  

to  p lace  on reco rd  and a r t i cu la te  a  po in t  tha t  Ms  Myen i  

maybe cou ld  no t  have esca la ted  to  a  lega l  po in t  and we 

f ind  the  spec i f i c  example  in  th is  very  le t te r ,  in  th is  very  

le t te r  tha t  i s  be ing  dea l t  w i th  now.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  wonder  whethe r  your  vo ice  is  so f t .  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Sor ry ,  Cha i r ,  I  want  to  ra ise  one  

example .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR BUTHELEZI :    You see,  th is  le t te r  i s  a  very  long le t te r ,  
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Cha i r ,  bu t  the  percept ion  tha t  deve lops in  the  eyes o r  in  

the  m ind o f  Ms  Myen i  i s  tha t  th is  le t te r  i s  be ing  read 

se lec t i ve ly  because I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  quote  two l ines  i n  

th is  le t te r  tha t  say  one th ing .   A t  page 1395,  paragraph  

3 .3 ,  i t  says  the  fo l low ing:  

“ In  sp i te  o f  th is  deve lopment  the  board  cont inues to  

opera te  cohes ive ly  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes. ”  

You see?  However ,  the  quest ion  tha t  i s  be ing  pu t  i s  tha t  

th is  board  is  dys funct iona l .   Now i f  I  may take  you  to  the  

next  page wh ich  i s  page 1401 and i t  says  a t  the  head ing :  10 

“Governance cha l lenges fac ing  South  A f r i can  

A i rways board  o f  d i rec tors”  

And I  take  you to  paragraph 3 .29  a t  the  bo t tom,  second to  

las t  paragraph,  Cha i r ,  and i f  you  read th is  paragraph,  i t  

says  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry ,  d id  you say page 1397? 

MR BUTHELEZI :    1401.  

CHAIRPERSON:    1401?  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  one second,  le t  me ge t  there .   20 

Yes?  

MR BUTHELEZI :    There  is  a  l ine  there ,  i t  says :  

“Ms Myen i  a lso  ca l l s  in to  quest ion  cer ta in  p rac t ices  

by  the  company secre tary  …[ in tervenes]  ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you a t  3 .29? 
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MR BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Cha i r,  a t  the  bo t tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Towards the  end .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Four th  l ine  f rom the  bot tom,  i t  says :  

“Ms Myen i  a lso  ca l l s  in to  quest ion  cer ta in  p rac t ices  

by  the  company secre tary  namely  de le t ion  o f  aud io  

record ings o f  m inutes  o f  meet ings and not  

consu l t ing  w i th  the  Cha i rperson  regard ing  board  

meet ings and the  agenda deeming th is  to  be  10 

cont ravent ion  o f  the  board  char te r . ”  

So,  Cha i r ,  I  am not  want ing  to  ra ise  any fu r ther  debate ,  I  

am jus t  t ry ing  to  say,  Cha i r ,  the  way th is  le t te r  has been  

character i sed,  there  is  an  omiss ion  o f  cer ta in  excu lpa to ry  

po in ts  tha t  a re  now,  i t  seems,  be ing  over looked and I  am 

not  cha l leng ing  Ms Hofmeyr ,  bu t  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  say tha t  

w i th  th is  conduct  tha t  she compla ined o f  ea r l ie r  w i th  the  

cer ta in  s lan t  on  how the  ev idence is  p resented to  the  

Cha i r ,  i t  can  g i ve  a  person tha t  impress ion  tha t  they are  

be ing  ta rge ted.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  Cha i r ,  i f  I  may jus t  respond  on two 

aspects .   You see,  when my learned f r iend,  Mr  Buthe lez i ,  

d raws your  a t ten t ion  to  page 1395 in  parag raph 3 .3  and 

emphas ises there  a  sentence tha t  says:  
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“ In  sp i te  o f  th is  deve lopment  the  board  cont inued to  

opera te  cohes ive ly  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes. ”  

I t  i s  impor tan t  to  read tha t  parag raph in  the  l igh t  o f  the  

parag raph tha t  p recedes i t  because i t  i s  ta lk ing  about  a  

h is to r i c  pos i t ion  in  2012 where  Mr  Kona was appo in ted  as  

Cha i rperson and there  was then the  issue o f  –  we rece ived  

ev idence on th is ,   h im be ing  both  CEO and Cha i rpe rson  

and then the  appo in tment  o f  Ms Myen i .    

 So  the  s ta tement  tha t  the  board  cont inued to  

opera te  cohes ive ly  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes is  ta lk ing  10 

about  a  h i s to r ica l  pos i t ion  on  the  face  o f  th is  document  

tha t  occu r red  in  2012.   What  I  was put t ing  to  Ms Myen i  was  

tha t  th is  repor t  s igna ls  a  dys funct iona l  board  by  September  

o f  2014,  tha t  i s  –  we l l ,  a t  leas t  Ju l y  when i t  was  wr i t ten  

and September  o f  2014 when i t  appears  the  Min i s te r  Lynne  

Brown rece ived i t .    

 A lso  impor tan t ly ,  and I  was com ing to  th is ,  th is  

repor t  does reco rd ,  Ms Myen i ,  you r  response to  the  le t te r  

a t  –  the  January  le t te r  o f  the  6  board  members  aga ins t  you  

and recounts ,  as  Mr  Buthe lez i  h igh l igh ted  f rom page 1401 20 

a t  paragraph 3 .29 ,  what  your  response was to  tha t .    

 A t  our  p rev ious quest ion ing  you were  no t  w i l l i ng  to  

engage w i th  any o f  those mat te rs .   Does tha t  rema in  your  

pos i t ion?  You do not  want  to  engage w i th  any o f  these  

mat te rs  addressed f rom paragraph  3 .29?  
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MS MYENI :    Ms Hofmeyr ,  tha t  i s  the  pos i t ion ,  thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    R igh t ,  so  what  happens is  the  DPE does  

the  assessment ,  i t s  concern  tha t  there  is  by  th is  s tage a  

comple te l y  dys funct iona l  board ,  there  i s  a lso  re fe rence in  

the  memo to  the  fac t  tha t  lega l  adv ice  was sought  and as  I  

say ,  the  conc lus ion  is  tha t  the  m in is te r  i s  in  a  pos i t ion  to  

remove some or  a l l  o f  the  board  members  and we were  

coming to  the  quest ion  o f  we l l ,  who was re ta ined and who 

was removed?  I  asked you whether  you cou ld  ass is t  us  

w i th  tha t .   I  th ink  I  take  your  answer  to  have been you 10 

dec l ine  to  do  so  on  the  bas is  tha t  i t  cou ld  expose you to  a  

c r im ina l  charge,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS MYENI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Wel l ,  what  then  happened is  tha t  board  

members  rece ived not ice  o f  the  conven ing  o f  a  spec ia l  

meet ing  by  the  m in is te r  and we can f ind  tha t  in  the  same 

bund le ,  DD34B a t  page 1415.   Do you have tha t ,  Ms 

Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    Yes ,  thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now th is  i s  no t ice  o f  a  spec ia l  genera l  20 

meet ing ,  you w i l l  see ,  and i f  you go over  the  page  to  page  

1416 you w i l l  see  i t  i s  da ted  the  15  October  2014 and i t  i s  

by  order  o f  the  member  o f  the  company.   Who is  the 

member  o f  SAA,  Ms Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson,  I  p re fer  no t  
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to  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  can  I  jus t  c la r i f y?   You are  

re fus ing  to  answer  a  quest ion  about  who is  the  member  o f  

SAA on the  bas is  tha t  tha t  answer  cou ld  expose you to  a  

c r im ina l  charge,  i s  tha t  r igh t?   Sor ry ,  Ms Myen i ,  I  th ink  we 

los t  connect ion  fo r  a  moment ,  was your  answer  yes?  

MS MYENI :    I  am say ing  my answer  i s  I  am not  answer ing  

the  quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you so  much.  

MS MYENI :    And I  wou ld  no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f ,  10 

tha t  i s  the  answer .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  what  th is  no t ice  does is  i t  says  –  i f  

we a re  back a t  page 1415:  

“Not ice  i s  hereby g iven tha t  the  spec ia l  genera l  

meet ing  o f  the  member  o f  the  company w i l l  be  he ld  

on  Thursday 23 October  2014 a t  the  Depar tment  o f  

Pub l ic  Ente rpr i ses. ”  

And i t  goes on to  say:  

“Pursuant  to  Sect ion  62(2)A  o f  the  Companies  Act  

71  o f  2008 as  amended,  the  member  o f  the  20 

company is  requested to  wa ive  the  r igh t  to  rece ive  

a t  leas t  15  bus iness days no t ice  o f  th is  meet ing  as  

requ i red  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  61(1)A  o f  the  

Companies  Act . ”  

And then i t  ident i f ies  what  th is  meet ing  is  be ing  convened 
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fo r  and what  you w i l l  see  a t  pa ragraph 1  i s  i t  says :  

“To cons ide r  p resenta t ions to  be  made in  pe rson or  

th rough a  representa t i ve  by  the  fo l low ing d i rec to rs  

as  prov ided fo r  in  te rms o f  Sect i on  71 (2)B  o f  the  

Companies  Act  be fore  the  reso lu t i on  in  2  be low is  

adopted. ”  

And then what  fo l lows i s  a  l i s t  o f  the  d i rec to rs  who have  

s igned tha t  le t te r  o f  compla in t  in  January  o f  2014.   So i t  i s  

the  s i x  bu t  i t  a lso  inc ludes Dr  Na i than i .   So i t  i s  the  s i x  

d i rec tors  who  compla ined and Dr  Na i than i  and what  they 10 

are  ins t ruc ted  to  do  is  to  make presenta t ions a t  tha t  

meet ing  be fore  the  reso lu t ion  i n  2  be low i s  adopted and  

then le t  us  look a t  what  the  reso lu t ion  was tha t  was  

ant ic ipa t ing  to  be  adopted a t  tha t  meet ing :  

“To  cons ider  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  the  fo l low ing  

d i rec tors  be  removed as  non-execut ive  d i rec to rs  

f rom the  board  o f  the  company w i th  e f fec t  f rom 23  

October  2014. ”   

And tha t  i s  the  same seven  members  –  d i rec to rs ,  

apo log ies ,  who had to  come present  themse lves and make  20 

rep resenta t ions about  why they shou ld  no t  be  removed.   

Were  you aware  tha t  tha t  no t ice  had gone out  ca l l ing  fo r  

those s ix  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  d id  no t  hear  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Apo log ies ,  le t  me say tha t  aga in .   Ms 
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Myen i ,  were  you aware  tha t  a  spec ia l  meet ing  was 

convened to  ask  the  s i x  board  members  who had  

compla ined abou t  the  cr is is  o f  leadersh ip  in  SAA and Dr  

Na i than i  to  account  fo r  why they shou ld  no t  be  removed as  

d i rec tors?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  may I  no t  respond  to  th is  

quest ion  in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You –  your  name does not  appear  among 

the  l i s t  o f  those who wou ld  need to  come and make 

rep resenta t ions about  why they shou ld  no t  be  removed,  i s  10 

i t?  

MS MYENI :    Which  means,  Cha i rperson,  i f  my name does  

not  appear  there?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  am jus t  ask ing  fo r  c la r i f i ca t ion ,  your  

name is  no t  amongst  those.  

MS MYENI :    Fo r  c la r i t y ,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Your  name is  no t  amongst  those,  i s  i t?  

MS MYENI :    I s  there  a  mean ing  beh ind  tha t ,  Cha i rperson?   

Wel l ,  i s  there  any  ins inuat ion?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  Ms …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  she  is  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    Jus t  fo r  c la r i t y ,  sor ry ,  Ms Hofmeyr .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  she  is  on l y  ask ing  you,  Ms  Myen i ,  

to  conf i rm tha t  you were  no t  one o f  the  d i rec tors  re f lec ted 

in  tha t  no t ice  as  d i rec tors  in  respect  o f  whom a reso lu t ion  
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to  remove them was to  be  passed.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson,  may I  no t  respond.   

Thanks fo r  c la r i f y .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    May  I  no t  respond,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  seek your  

ass is tance on th is .   Does i t  make  sense to  you g iven the  

na ture  o f  the  dys funct iona l i t y  w i th in  the  board  as  we l l  as  

the  DPE’s  unders tand ing  tha t  there  were  fac t ions w i th in  10 

the  board  as  we l l  as  the  c lear  conf l i c t  be tween what  the  s ix  

board  members  were  say ing  in  t he i r  le t te r  and what  you 

were  say ing  in  response?  I t  shou ld  no t  have been the  

case tha t  you,  as  we l l  as  them,  shou ld  have been asked to  

account  fo r  what  was go ing  on a t  SAA.  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  we are  be fore  a  Commiss ion  o f  

Inqu i ry ,  we are  no t  in  cou r t .   I  cannot  account  fo r  th ings  

tha t  a re  done a t  shareho lder  leve l .  I  cannot  a lso  account  

fo r  reasons tha t  any o ther  person takes dec i s ions  

regard ing  appo in tments ,  regard ing  dec is ions tha t  a  person 20 

ar r i ves  to ,  to  make.   I  wou ld  no t  want  to  ge t  in to  tha t  

space,  I  th ink  I  am e levated too  much to  unders tand the  

shareho lder  mat te rs ,  the re fore  I  do  no t  want  to  inc r im inate  

myse l f  Cha i rperson,  can I  no t  answer  th is  quest ion .    

I  th ink  i t  be longs somewhere  e lse  and I  do  no t  a lso  
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th ink  tha t  I  wou ld  undermine any shareho lde r  fo r  any 

reason tha t  a  shareho lde r  dec ides to  do  someth ing  and  

tha t  then I  have v iews about  dec i s ions by  the  shareho lde r.   

I  can  never  do  tha t ,  and the re fo re  Cha i rperson I  p re fer  no t  

to  answer  the  quest ion .   I  have made a  comment ,  may I  no t  

answer  the  quest ion ,  I  do  no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .   

Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  p lace  on  record ,  

and g i ve  Ms Myen i  an  oppor tun i ty  to  respond  to  th is  

because I  unders tand Ms Myen i  in  her  dec is ion  no t  to  10 

answer  the  quest ion  to  be  rea l l y  do ing  two th ings.   In  one 

respect  there  is  an  invocat ion  o f  the  p r iv i lege aga ins t  se l f -

incr im inat ion  bu t  in  the  same moment  there  is  a  re fusa l  to  

answer  the  ques t ion  because -  and I  t r ied  to  take  down 

verbat im what  Ms  Myen i  sa id ,  i t ’s  a  quest ion  tha t  quote :  

“Be longs somewhere  e l se . ”   

And second ly  in  your  answer  Ms Myen i  you sa id :  

“That  you d id  no t  want  to  t raverse  shareho lder  

mat te rs  because  i t  i s  no t  fo r  you to  comment  on  

them in  so  fa r  as  the  shareho lder  m ight  thereby be 20 

undermined. ”  

But  moments  ear l ie r  be fore  the  break you communica ted  to  

the  Cha i rperson o f  th is  Commiss ion  your  g rave misg i v ings 

about  the  manner  in  wh ich  the  shareho lde r  had t rea ted  

prev ious mat te rs  inc lud ing  the  conduct  o f  Mr  Andrews.   So 
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i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  as  a  consequence o f  tha t  conf l i c t  Ms Myen i  to  

unders tand the  t rue  reason beh ind  the  re luc tance to  

answer  the  quest ions.    

I  wou ld  l i ke  you fo r  the  purposes o f  the  

Commiss ions  

processes to  c la r i f y  because on the  face  o f  what  you have 

sa id  there  i s  a  cont rad i c t ion  w i th  what  you have sa id 

ear l ie r  and there  is  an  invocat ion  o f  a  bas i s  to  re fuse  

answer ing  quest ions wh ich  is  no t  a  lega l l y  va l id  bas is .               

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson am I  a l lowed to  respond? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS MYENI :    Thank you.   There  are  no  cont rad ic t ions  a t  a l l  

I  have Cha i rperson an exper ience  o f  be ing  no t  t rus ted  fo r  

anyth ing  I  say.   So anyth ing  I  wou ld  say Cha i rperson no 

mat te r  how loud  or  how much I  jump i t  w i l l  never  s i t  

because you know tha t  we are  born  to  be  cr im ina ls  number  

1 ,  number  2 ,  I  have been ca tegor ised as  a  l ia r.   These 

mat te rs  do  no t  ge l  a t  a l l  I  can  ass is t  in  th is  regard  what  I  

meant .   My past  a t  SAA was to  tu rn  the  a i r l ine  a round I  

was not  to ld  about  cer ta in  a reas tha t  a re  preserved tha t  I  20 

shou ld  no t  touch.   So my f ie ld  was to  touch cer ta in  a reas 

o f  the  opera t ions  no t  hands on in  te rms o f  opera t ions bu t  

a t  a  d is tance because I  have never  been a  CEO of  SAA 

which  i s  someth ing  tha t  some peop le  have cont inued to  

th ink  tha t  I  have been a  CEO of  SAA.    
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I  have never  been invo lved in  opera t ions bu t  I  have 

been invo lved a t  h igh  leve l ,  a t  s t ra teg i c  leve l  tha t  i s  one.   

Now these i ssues when I  say  a  shareho lder  meet ing  is  a  

shareho lder  p reserved area tha t  has no th ing  to  do  w i th  the  

Cha i rperson.   So Ms Hofmeyr  need  to  unders tand one th ing  

when the  shareho lde r  ca l l s  a  mee t ing  the  Cha i rperson has 

no ro le  bu t  when the  Cha i rpe rson looks a t  where  the  

organ isa t ion  or  the  en t i t y  o f  the  government  i s  los ing  

money,  pockets  o f  cor rup t ion ,  un tes ted  cont rac t s  tha t  da tes  

as  way back as  1934 when the  a i r l ine  was es tab l i shed not  10 

jus t  in  the  market  on  ce r ta in  supp l ies  or  keep ing  them 

conf in ing  cont rac ts  w i th in  a  ce r ta in  g roup ing .    

That  was my card ina l  th ing  Cha i rperson.   Now I  am 

say ing  I  have had an  oppor tun i ty  to  work  w i th  the  great  

leaders  tha t  I  repor ted  to  tha t  I  wou ld  s i t  w i th  on  one and  

one  a t  the i r  i nv i t a t ion  Cha i rperson because pa r t  o f  the  ro le  

o f  the  Cha i rperson is  a  go  be tween the  shareho lde r  

Min is t r y  and the  Board .   The Min is te r  can ca l l  the  who le  

Board ,  the  Min i s te r  can ca l l  the  Board  the  Cha i rperson and  

the  deputy,  the  Cha i rperson can  ca l l  any  member  o f  the 20 

Board  tha t  cou ld  be  ava i lab le  to  unders tand what  i s  

happen ing .  So these mat te r  tha t  I  am be ing  drawn to  

respond to  i s  a  p reserve  o f  the  shareho lde r.    

There fore ,  i t  i s  no t  about  want ing  to  respond or  no t   

want ing  to  respond and i t  i s  no t  about  say ing  I  w ish  the  
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Min is te r  wou ld  take  ser ious ly  i ssues o f  cor rup t ion  a t  SAA 

issues o f  where  the  a i r l ine  was b leed ing  in  te rms o f  i t s  

f inanc ia l  per fo rmance,  p ro f i tab i l i t y,  onerous cont rac ts ,  

a i rc ra f t  leases,  m iss i les  tha t  a re  based in  count r ies  in  

fo re ign  count r ies  ins tead o f  c rea t ing  jobs in  the  count ry.    

So I  am say ing  these are  cha lk  and  cheese i t  does  

not  be long toge ther.   So I  repeat  and I  s t i ck  by  the  

comment  I  made ear l ie r  to  say I  w ish  the  same energy tha t  

wou ld  have been  g iven in  te rms o f  the  cha l lenges fac ing  

the  a i r l ine  wou ld  be  the  same energy g iven in  te rms  o f  the  10 

Min is te r  g iv ing  an  ea r  ove rs igh t  s t ruc tures  o f  the  a i r l ine  in  

te rms o f  par l iamentary  po r t fo l io  commi t tees SCOPA wou ld  

g ive  when they ra ise  an  issue o f  where  the  a i r l ine  i s  los ing  

money to  the  ex ten t  Cha i r  you have the  repor ts ,  you have  

some le t te rs  tha t  I  have wr i t ten  to  Min is te rs  no t  one 

Min is te r  ra i s ing  issues about  cur ren t  i ssues in  te rms o f  

o rchest ra ted  f ree fa l l   o f  the  a i r l ine .    

But  Cha i r  I  am say ing  my cous in  I  seen was not  t o  

be   

to ld  tha t  the  a i r l ine  has to  be  pr iva t i sed tha t  i s  what  I  am 20 

say ing  and tha t  i s  what  I  sa id  I  was not  mean ing  to  say I  

wou ld  be  invo l ved when the  shareho lder  Min is te r  ca l l s  a  

meet ing  then I  must  be  par ty  to  i t  o r  I  must  make dec i s ions 

around tha t .   I  cannot  comment  on  a  meet ing  be ing  ca l led  

by  the  Min i s te r  nor  can I  make inputs  in  the  meet ing  tha t  i s  
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ca l led  shareho lde r  meet ing .    

No Cha i rpe rson  is  invo lved in  a  shareho lde r  

meet ing  except  fo r  when the  Min is te r  asks  you quest ions  

such as  have you sent  ou t  the  no t ice  because there  is  a  

t ime l ine  in  te rms o f  the  no t ice  o f  the  shareho lder  meet ing  

or  AGM which  i s  21  days and a t  the  ro le  o f  the  company 

secre tary  in  consu l ta t ion  w i th  the  Cha i rperson but  to  ask  

fo r  ca l l ing  her  meet ing  and the  dec i s ions tha t  the  Min is te r  

makes around whatever  tha t  she wants  to  say  in  the  

shareho lder  meet ing ,  thanks Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    One o f  the  th ings you have sa id  i s  tha t  

you ra ised cer ta in  i ssues w i th  I  th ink  you sa id  SCOPA i f  I  

am not  m is taken.                                            

MS MYENI :    I  d id  so  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  jus t  want  to  ment ion  you may  or  you 

may not  be  aware  tha t  fo r  qu i te  some t ime I  have sa id  tha t  

the  Commiss ion  is  very  in te res ted  in  see ing  what  var ious 

bod ies  d id  o r  d id  no t  do  or  d id  what  they shou ld  no t  have  

done or  d id  no t  do  what  they shou ld  have done.   That  may  

have cont r ibu ted  to  some o f  the  issues tha t  the  20 

Commiss ion  is  look ing  in to .   I f  you  ta lk  about  cor rup t ion  a t  

SOE’s  and you see where  a  lo t  o f  SOE’s  are  w i th  the i r  

f inanc ia l  s i tua t ion  is  a t  the  moment  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

cor rup t ion  may have cont r ibu ted  to  tha t  one o f  the  issues 

the  Commiss ion  once is  in te res ted  in  i s .   Where  were  
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bod ies  tha t  were  supposed to  oversee these  SOE’s?   

Where  was par l iament?   What  was  par l iament  do ing?  D id  

i t  do  i t s  job?  D id  the  var ious commi t tees o f  par l i ament  do  

i t s  job  o f  overs igh t  over  the  years  over  these SOE’s?   D id  

they become aware  o f  cer ta in  cha l lenges?  What  d id  they 

do  about  those cha l lenges?   

So tha t  i s  one o f  the  issues tha t  I  have been say ing   

tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  very  in te res ted  in  because  one o f  

the  th ings tha t  the  Commiss ion  must  do  is  to  say how d id  

we come to  be  where  we a re  in  regard  to  ce r ta in  mat te rs  10 

inc lud ing  SOE’s  and cor rup t ion  and so  on  and who d id  no t  

do  the i r  job  and what  shou ld  be  done to  make su re  tha t  the  

s i tua t ion  is  remedied.   What  shou ld  be  done to  make sure  

tha t  th is  does not  happen aga in  and we cannot  do  tha t  

w i thout  look ing  a t  whether  everybody d id  the i r  job  the  way  

they were  supposed to  do .    

So to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you may have ra ised cer ta in  

i ssues w i th  ce r ta in  bod ies  such as  par l iament  o r  SCOPA 

which  you migh t  fee l  m ight  no t  have been g i ven the  

a t ten t ion  tha t  i t  shou ld  have been g iven you must  fee l  f ree  20 

once aga in  to  supp ly  tha t  to  the  Commiss ion  because the  

Commiss ion  wan ts  to  see where  th ings may have gone  

wrong and who might  no t  have done the i r  job  the  way they 

shou ld  have done ,  okay.                 

MS MYENI :    Thank you very  much  Cha i rpe rson.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Ms Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  i t  i s  impor tan t  a t  th is  po in t  g iven 

what  Ms Myen i  sa id  jus t  be fore  your  response to  ind ica te  

tha t  the  pr iv i lege aga ins t  se l f - incr im inat ion  is  capab le  o f  

be ing  abused.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.     

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  a  p r iv i lege tha t  p ro tec ts  persons 

who by  answer ing  a  quest ion  are  l i ke ly  to  expose  

themse lves to  a  c r im ina l  charge.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.     10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now in  a l l  tha t  Ms Myen i  sa id  be fore  

your  response a  moment  ago there  was not  an  ind ica t ion  

tha t  be ing  asked why in  her  v iew i t  wou ld  be  appropr ia te  to  

ask  on ly  the  compla in ing  members  to  account  fo r  

themse lves and not  the  o ther  members  o f  the  Board  to  

account  fo r  themse lves in  wha t  was a  dys funct iona l  

s i tua t ion .    

A t  no  po in t  in  Ms Myen i ’s  address to  you moments  

ago d id  she say  tha t  answer ing  tha t  quest ion  is  l i ke ly  to  

expose her  to  a  c r im ina l  charge but  fo r  p rev ious l y  t ro t t ing  20 

out  the  words I  am inc l ined not  to  answer  the  quest ion  or  I  

re fuse not  to  answer  the  quest ion  or  I  request  no t  to  

answer  the  quest ion  because i t  may incr im inate  me.   Let  

me jus t  remind a l l  o f  us  what  Ms  Myen i  d id  say she sa id  

tha t  she d id  no t  want  to  answer  the  quest ion  because – 
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and aga in  I  t ry  to  take  i t  down exact ly,  what  Ms Myen i  says  

does not  s ink  in .   She dec l ined  to  answer  the  quest ion  

because she expressed d i scomfor t  about  do ing  so ,  

p rev ious l y  today Ms Myen i  has i nd ica ted  tha t  she be l ieves 

tha t  there  i s  a  nar ra t i ve  aga ins t  her  and in  add i t ion  she  

has ind ica ted  tha t  she is  uncomfor tab le  answer ing  mat te rs  

tha t  a re  the  preserve  o f  the  shareho lder.    

Cha i r  no t  one o f  those reasons is  a  lega l l y  va l id  

reason fo r  re fus ing  to  answer  a  quest ion  pu t  to  he r  by  th is  

Commiss ion  by  i t s  Ev idence Leaders  and by  you Cha i r  and  10 

so  the re  is  a  po in t  I  submi t  where  i f  Cha i r  you were  to  take  

the  v iew tha t  th is  p r iv i lege is  be ing  abused you  cou ld  

d i rec t  Ms Myen i  to  answer  the  quest ions and not  one o f  

those reasons tha t  I  have jus t  h igh l igh ted  are  reasons 

found w i th in  the  pr iv i lege aga ins t  se l f - incr im inat ion .    

Remember  Cha i r  yes terday w i th  respect  I  

de l ineated  

the  tes t  i t  canno t  be  invoked but  fo r  there  be ing  a  rea l  

poss ib i l i t y,  a  reasonab le  ground tha t  the  answer  may tend  

to  expose the  person to  a  c r im ina l  charge.   I t  has  go t  to  be 20 

rea l ,  apprec iab le  no t  imag inary  and not  unsubstan t ia l  and 

Ms Myen i ’s  la tes t  exp lanat ion  fo r  why she is  no t  answer ing  

these quest ions is  I  submi t  no th ing  shor t  o f  imag inary  and  

unsubstant ia l  because they are  no t  reasons tha t  ex is ts  in  

law as  a  bas is  fo r  re fus ing .   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Buthe lez i  do  you want  to  say 

anyth ing  o r  no t  rea l l y?         

ADV BUTHELEZI :    No,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t  and the  quest ion  tha t  you 

had put  Ms Hofmeyr  was whethe r  she found i t  sens ib le  tha t  

those who were  sor t  to  be  removed by  way o f  tha t  

reso lu t ion  where  a l l  those who had compla ined about  he r,  

her  leadersh ip ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?           

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  and not  her  because…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And not  he r.   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    And the  fo rce  o f  the  quest ion  because  

we he re  to  g ive  Ms Myen i  an  oppor tun i ty  to  respond to 

what  was go ing  on and what  has been sa id  about  what  was  

go ing  on a t  SAA.   There  is  f rac t ions in  the  Board  there  are  

no  doubt  compla in ts  on  bo th  s ides .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  goes before  the  Min is te r  bu t  ra ther  

than ask ing  fo r  a l l  o f  the  Board  members  to  account  i t  i s  

the  s ix  compla in ing  Board  members  p lus  Dr  Na i than i  who  

are  asked and not  the  remain ing  th ree  and the  quest ion  I  20 

wou ld  l i ke  to  seek Ms Myen i ’s  gu idance on is  does she 

be l ieve  tha t  i s  an  appropr ia te  approach.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Myen i  you d id  g i ve  the  cor rec t  

reasons when you d id  no t  want  to  answer  tha t  quest ion .   

So I  am go ing  to  ask  you to  answer  i t ,  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  go ing  
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to  repeat  i t ,  repeat  i t  Ms Hofmeyr.    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r,  Ms Myen i  a t  th is  s tage  

by  October  o f  2014 there  is  in  the  v iew o f  the  Depar tment  

o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  a  dys funct i ona l  Board  a t  SAA and  

there  are  compla in ts  by  the  s ix  Board  members  aga ins t  you 

and there  is  your  response compla in ing  about  them.    

But  a  spec ia l  meet ing  is  ca l led  ask ing  on ly  the  s ix   

p lus ,  Dr  Na i than i  to  p resent  reasons why they shou ld  no t  

be  removed and  I  asked you as  a  consequence whethe r  

you th ink  tha t  tha t  was an appropr ia te  approach to  take  10 

g iven tha t  –  and  not  to  ask  you and the  remain ing  o ther  

two members  fo r  you r  account  o f  why you shou ld  no t  be  

removed.       

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson I  w i l l  never  abuse any pr iv i lege  

tha t  I  am g iven by th is  Commiss ion  there fore  my answer  

remains .   I  am not  go ing  to  answer  th is  quest ion  i t  w i l l  

cer ta in ly  incr im inate  me i f  I  respond to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  remember  tha t  we – I  emphas ised  

yesterday why i t  is  impor tan t  to  a r t i cu la te  the  bas is  o f  what  

you ca l led  the  pre ference not  to  answer  and I  ind ica ted  20 

tha t  there  may be occas ions when I  m ight  make a  ru l ing  

tha t  you have to  answer  a  cer ta in  quest ion  depend ing  on 

each one and I  d id  say tha t  e i ther  today or  a t  some s tage 

we w i l l  look  a t  the  quest ions a l l  the  quest ions you d id  no t  

answer  and I  w i l l  see  i f  there  are  somewhere  I  take  the  
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v iew tha t  I  shou ld  requ i re  you to  answer.   So bear ing  in  

m ind what  you sa id  ea r l ie r  on  wh ich  Ms Hofmeyr  has 

repeated.   I  have  sa id  tha t  th is  one I  am requ i r ing  you to 

answer.          

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  know Cha i r  t ha t  i s  my answer.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  Ms  Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Ms Myen i  what  then d id  

happen –  oh  we must  jus t  go  to  what  Mr  Mpondo ’s  

response was to  hav ing  rece ived  tha t  reso lu t ion  and fo r  

tha t  purpose we need to  jus t  go  back in to  h is  a f f idav i t .   You 10 

w i l l  f ind  tha t  in  the  same bund le  we have been work ing  in  

DD34B and we need page 1224 a t  parag raph 45.     

CHAIRPERSON:    1224?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   

MS MYENI :    I  have got  i t  Cha i r.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ac tua l l y  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  s ta r t  one  

paragraph h igher  i f  we may a t  paragraph 44 on tha t  page.   

What  Mr  Mpondo is  dea l ing  w i th  he re  is  the  no t ice  came to  

h im –  ac tua l l y  le t  us  p ick  i t  up  a t  43  i f  we may.   He records 20 

there :  

“The not ice  came as a  comple te  surp r ise  to  me and 

as  I  unders tand i t  a lso  to  the  o ther  Board  members  

ment ioned in  the  no t ice .   As  the  Board  was  

proceed ing  w i th  the  bus iness o f  runn ing  SAA wi th  
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the  las t  meet ing  be ing  around 19  September  2014  

wh ich  was Cha i red  by  Ms Lepu le  and pu rsu ing  the  

issues the  Board  had w i th  the  leadersh ip  o f  the  

Cha i rperson.   There  was noth ing  tha t  had happened 

a t  the  t ime wh ich  gave me the  impress ion  tha t  the  

Min is te r  was no t  happy w i th  my or  the  Board ’s  

per fo rmance.   I  was perp lexed by  the  rece ip t  o f  the  

no t ice  as  the re  had been no warn ing  o r  ind ica t ion 

tha t  i t  was fo r thcoming. ”  

Then he goes on a t  paragraph 44:  10 

“G iven th is  no t ice  i t  seem to  me tha t  there  was  

a l ready a  predetermined outcome o f  th is  meet ing  

and tha t  there  was noth ing  fo r  me to  present  

par t i cu la r l y  as  there  was noth ing  I  had done wrong 

or  needed to  make rep resenta t ions in  respect  o f .   I  

d id  no t  unders tand what  had caused th is  no t ice  fo r  

my remova l  to  be  sent  I  there fore  a f te r  much  

de l ibe ra t ion  dec ided to  g ive  the  Min is te r  the  space 

she c lear l y  needed and res igned  f rom the  Board  

th rough a  res igna t ion  le t te r  I  p resented on o r  about  20 

the  17 t h  o f  October  2014. ”  

A t  parag raph 45 he says:  

“There  was no a t tempt  made by  me or  to  the  best  o f  

my knowledge by  o ther  d i rec tors  who had s igned  

the  le t te r  o f  28  January  2014 to  so l i c i t  an 
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exp lanat ion  why the  Min i s te r  wanted to  remove us  

f rom the  Board .   A t  the  t ime I  was  not  aware  o f  any  

compla in t s  o r  a l legat ions hav ing  be ing  leve l led  

aga ins t  me and none have been made or  come to  

l igh t  subsequent  to  my depar tu re . ”  

Ms Myen i  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  you in  the  l igh t  o f  Mr  

Mpondo ’s  accoun t  there  i s  do  you  have any ins igh t  as  to  

whethe r  the  ou tcome o f  tha t  p rocess was predeterm ined? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may I  no t  answer  tha t  quest ion  I  

do  no t  want  to  incr im inate  myse l f .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  the  Min is te r  o r  anybody  in  the 

Min is t r y  o r  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises  speak to  

you or  wr i te  to  you about  an  in ten t ion  to  remove some o f  

your  co l leagues who are  on  the  Board  be fore  th is  no t ice  

was sent  because I  wou ld  have imag ined  tha t  you be ing  

the  leader  the  Cha i rperson.   

I f  the  Min is te r  sa id  tha t  some o f  your  co l leagues  

needed to  be  removed one wou ld  have expected tha t  she  

wou ld  have had a  d iscuss ion  w i th  the  Leader  to  hear  what  

the  leader  m ight  have to  say abou t  an  in ten t ion  to  remove  20 

some o f  h is  o r  her  co l leagues and how tha t  wou ld  a f fec t  

the  funct ion ing  o f  the  Board  and so  on .   D id  anybody f rom 

the  Min is t r y  o r  the  depar tment  speak to  you or  wr i te  to  you  

about  tha t  be fore  the  no t ice  was sent?          

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  know Cha i r.   



05 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 299 
 

Page 77 of 148 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    You do not  know,  okay a l r igh t  thank you,  

Ms Hofmeyr.   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  move fo r  a  

moment  i f  we may f rom SAA mat te rs  to  another  en t i t y  o f  

wh ich  you were  Cha i rpe rson and tha t  Mhla thuze Water  

Board .   So I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  the  ev idence tha t  the  

Commiss ion  has rece ived in  re la t ion  to  tha t  mat te r.    

Le t  me jus t  make i t  c lear  I  w i l l  re tu rn  to  cer ta in  SAA 

mat te rs  bu t  the  ev idence a t  th is  po in t  has reached the  

s tage in  SAA where  those members  have res igned and you  10 

are  re ta ined.   Ms Myen i  th is  i s  in  the  October  2014  

appo in tments .   Can you te l l  us  who you were  re ta ined w i th  

f rom October  2014 on the  Board?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r  may I  no t  say  anyth ing  i n  regard  to  the  

quest ion  tha t  i s  be ing  posed un less  I  incr im inate  myse l f .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  can I  jus t  c la r i f y  I  have  asked  

i f  you can ass i s t  us  w i th  te l l ing  us  who remained  on the  

Board  w i th  you  a t  SAA in  October  2014 and you are  

dec l in ing  to  answer  tha t  quest ion  because i t  may expose 

you to  a  c r im ina l  charge.   20 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson I  ind ica ted  tha t  I  must  be  

comfor tab le  answer ing  quest ions  regard ing  South  A f r i can 

A i rways mat te rs  and some quest ions tha t  I  m igh t  no t  a lso  

become poss ib le  to  answer  and as  a  resu l t  I  sa id  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  take  each quest ion  as  i t  comes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  Ms Hofmeyr  seeks to  conf i rm tha t  

you wou ld  l i ke  no t  to  answer  the  quest ion  as  to  wh ich  

members  o f  the  Board  remained a f te r  the  res igna t ion  o f  

these s ix  o r  seven members  because you fear  tha t  

answer ing  tha t  quest ion  may expose you to  a  c r im ina l  

charge.   She seeks to  conf i rm whether  tha t  i s  the  reason 

why you do not  want  to  answer  wh ich  members  o f  the 

Board  remained a f te r  these s i x  o r  seven had res igned.          

MS MYENI :    Wi th  respect  Cha i rperson somet ime you 

answer  one quest ion  tha t  leads to  t he  o ther  quest ion .   So i t  10 

is  impor tan t  tha t  I  keep answer ing  the  way in  wh ich  makes 

me comfo r tab le .   A t  the  r igh t  t ime Cha i r  maybe in  another  

fo rum I  can be ab le  to  f ree l y  answer  tha t  quest ion .   The 

on ly  th ing  I  can ta lk  about  Cha i rperson is  as  the  person  

s i t t ing  be fore  you .    

I  remained a t  SAA unt i l  2017 there  I  can ta lk  about  

myse l f .  Remember  Cha i r  the  j udgement  a round i ssues tha t  

have been a l leged by  o the r  have been put  o r  leve l led  

aga ins t  me a re  known as a  leader  o f  South  A f r i can A i rways 

o f  wh ich  tha t  judgment  has made  a  recommendat ion  tha t  20 

the  NPA perhaps  conf igu res  fu r ther  invest iga t ion  on  some 

o f  those mat te rs  tha t  they have ra i sed and what  they found  

aga ins t  me in  te rms o f  be ing  a  di rector I  know for decisions 

that  I  never took alone.   So i t  is important  Chai r  that  I  

answer as I  feel  comfortable and I  see – as I  see f i t .   



05 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 299 
 

Page 79 of 148 
 

Because I  have got  to use my judgment.   I  am not  a legal  

person and I  a lso want to assume Chai r  that  I  am not  on 

t r ia l .   I  am responding to al legat ions.   I  am responding to 

al legat ions that  have another side which need to be tested 

somewhere.   And I  do not  know whether the ears that  are 

l istening some invest igators that  are working wi th the 

commission including the media is wai t ing somewhere out  

there to say I  have answered this way here.   I  have 

incr iminated mysel f  here.   I  have done this.   I  have done 

that .   So i t  is important  Chair  to – to invoke my r ight  or  10 

perhaps the pr iv i lege let  me not  say my r ight  – the pr iv i lege 

that  the commission has given me and which I  appreciate.   

Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – but  Ms Myeni  real ly the quest ion that  

is being asked is  simply who else apart  f rom you remained 

on the board af ter  the six  or seven members had – had 

res igned?  I  cannot see anyth ing that  can possibly  expose 

you to the cr iminal  charge just  to say oh af ter those six or  

seven members had remained the board – in  the board i t  was 

me and so and so and so and so and so and so.   I f  later on 20 

there is a quest ion that  might  be a fol low up that  might  

expose you to  a cr iminal  charge then you can deal  wi th that  

one but  I  cannot see anything that  could real ly expose you to 

a cr iminal  charge just  to say who else remained on the board 

af ter the s ix or seven members had lef t .   You understand? 
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MS MYENI:   I  do understand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i f  there is a  – i f  there is a fol low up 

quest ion later on that  might  expose you to a cr iminal  charge 

that  might  be di fferent .   But  on this one i t  just  seems 

something very innocuous real ly.  

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson I  am wi l l ing to assist  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   As I  said Chai r  I  am here to – to  be of  

assistance.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

MS MYENI:   And also to ensure that  I  do not  do a [00:02:55]  

that  I  am not .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes.   I f  you look at… 

MS MYENI:   I  am not  going to assis t  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes i f  you… 

MS MYENI:   So Chairperson I  am going to – I  am going to 

the minutes of  the – please may I  be given an opportuni ty?  I  

am going through the minutes Chai rperson of  the … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  have got  a page I  could refer you to.   I  

have got  a page that  I  could refer you to 1227.  20 

MS MYENI:   The minutes [00:03:24]  of  2013 was i t  February 

or May.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS MYENI:   Where I  said you do not  have a signature.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh Ms Hofmeyr are you able to – assist 
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where we would f ind those minutes?  I  th ink she wants to  

look at  the names of  the board members.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes certainly.   I t  is actual ly just  a few 

pages on.   I t  is page 1247.  

CHAIRPERSON:   1247.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    Have you got  i t?  

MS MYENI:   Yes I  have i t  thank you very much Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   When – i f  I  see th is -  the people who were 

present  in that  meet ing then I  am going to be able to  ident i fy 

the people that  were lef t  in the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   So i t  is mysel f  at  the top.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   And then Ms Y Kwinana as number 3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   And then Advocate LG Nkosi  Thomas and in  20 

number 1,  2,  3,  4,  5 as number 6.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   And then in terms of  the execut ive directors i t  

would have been the act ing Chief  Execut ive Off icer  as wel l  

as the CFO. 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay – okay.    

MS MYENI:   That  would – out  of  the board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so in  terms of  non-execut ive 

di rectors those who remained were yoursel f ,  Ms Kwinana 

and Advocate LG Nkosi  Thomas? 

MS MYENI:   Yes Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.   Thank you Ms Myeni .   Ms 

Hofmeyr.  

MS MYENI:   The reason why Chair  I  opening here is  because 

– sorry Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   There could have been the – ja I  d id not  want to 

only say any other person in fact  I  had forgot ten about – 

about  Nkosi  Thomas.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay no that  is  al r ight .   Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  as I  understand the – the events 

of  2014 Ms Nkosi  Thomas had resigned ear l ier in 2014.  She 

was not  st i l l  around in October of  2014.  Do you recal l  that? 

MS MYENI:   You see Chai rperson what I  said that  I  do not  

l ike to  answer a quest ion that  is going to lead me to 20 

something again that  wi l l  put  me in  bad l ight .   Because now 

this is a [00:06:38]  quest ion of  I  was asked.   I  am being 

asked a quest ion to remember the occurrences of  2013 and 

del iberately I  said may I  not  answer.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  But… 
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MS MYENI:   And Chair  – and Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   The quest ions I  was g iven for th is commission 

are before me.  Now for me to remember some of  the 

quest ions that  I  am being asked and for me to remember the 

occurrences of  2103 my focus was on the issues that  were 

ra ised in  your  let ter  Chair  because I  thought  maybe the let ter  

that  –  that  has been sent  to me i t  ta lks to issues that  would 

be addressed at  –  before this commission.   Now I  must  

remember that  Nkosi  Thomas resigned.   So I  have told a l ie  10 

that  Nkosi  Thomas remained.   So this is why Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS MYENI:   I  am saying I  wi l l  never abuse the pr iv i lege but  

let  me be al lowed Chai rperson to say may I  not  answer a 

quest ion because today I  am now understanding that  I  am 

answering everything about SAA but  not  – I  mean i f  these 

things were on my – I  do not  see the page – on the let ter  

that  came f rom the – f rom the commission Chai rperson those 

are things that  are speci f ic that  were raised – that  were 

speci f ic that  I  was told I  must  come prepared or  I  must  20 

respond to.   But  who gets appointed in the board,  who 

res igns in the board,  who stays in the board I  am being 

honest  Chai rperson I  d id not  look into that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No I  – I  hear what you say Ms Myeni .   I  

know that  somet imes when people appear in court  or in a 
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forum l ike th is they are extra caut ious about what they say 

because they understand that  lawyers wi l l  t ry and hold them 

to whatever they have said and they do not  want  to say 

something unless they are sure about i t .   But  for example 

wi th regard to the resignat ion – whether Ms – Advocate 

Nkosi  Thomas had resigned or not  you might  not  remember.   

I f  you genuinely do not  remember i t  is an acceptable answer 

that  you do not  remember whether she had res igned by then 

or not .   Obviously i f  you do remember that  she had resigned 

you can say she – she had resigned or i f  you think she had 10 

not  resigned you can say so.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  a l l  that  is  required of  wi tnesses in  

th is commission is that  they te l l  the t ruth.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  a wi tness makes a mistake is not  a  

l ie.   I f  Ms Myeni  cannot remember something i t  is – she is  

fu l ly wi thin her r ights to do so.    Chair  what is not  a val id 

basis for decl in ing to answer a quest ion is that  i t  w i l l  put  a  

wi tness in a bad l ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And what Ms Myeni  keeps invoking as a 

ground for  not  answering quest ion is that  they may put  her in  

a bad l ight ,  that  she is not  comfortable wi th them, that  there 

is a judgment in other civ i l  proceedings,  that  the NPA maybe 

invest igat ing matters and that  I  th ink she said ear l ier ears 
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may be l istening to what she says.   Chai r  i f  Ms Myeni  

cont inues for those reasons to  invoke the pr iv i lege then we 

wi l l  submit  to you in due course that  i t  is being abused.  But  

should we move onto the Mhlatuze matters? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  maybe – maybe Ms Myeni  you could 

deal  wi th th is because I  cannot th ink of  any cr ime that  you 

could be exposing yoursel f  to i f  you say yes I  know Ms 

Thomas had resigned by October 2013/2014 or no I  – she 

had not  resigned or – or I  cannot remember whether  she had 

res igned or not .   I  cannot  see what cr ime you could be 10 

exposing yoursel f  to.   Do you want to indicate whether you 

have any recol lect ion as to whether  she had resigned or – or 

what the posi t ion is? 

MS MYENI:   I  do not  have any recol lect ion Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  Chai r  i f  we st i l l  have a bi t  of  

t ime I  would l ike to make a b i t  of  headway.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Into the next  topic i f  we may wi th your  

leave? 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes that  is f ine.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.   Ms Myeni  are you aware that 

Mr X test i f ied before th is commission about receiving money 

f rom your son’s company Premier At t ract ion? 

MS MYENI:   Sorry Chairperson who is Mr X? 
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ADV HOFMEYR:   He was a wi tness who presented evidence 

before the commission and in respect  of  whose evidence you 

were given a Rule 3.3 Not ice.  

MS MYENI:   Wel l  Chairperson he wi l l  go as Mr X.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sorry? 

MS MYENI:   He wi l l  go as Mr X Chairperson? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes I  made a rul ing that  he should be 

referred to as Mr  X for  reasons that  were deal t  wi th at  the 

t ime.  So we wi l l  refer to him as Mr X.  

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson what is the subject  – what is the 10 

reason i f  I  may ask so that  I  can comfortably answer? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Evidence was… 

MS MYENI:   Yes I  – why is he referred to as Mr X? 

CHAIRPERSON:   An appl icat ion was made before me for me 

to make a ru l ing that  his ident i ty should not  be disclosed i f  I  

recal l  correct ly.   And – and I  therefore – I  was sat is f ied that  

there were proper grounds for invoking those powers and I  

said his ident i ty  should not  be disclosed.   That  is my 

recol lect ion and I  said he should be referred to as Mr X.   

There would be – there would be a record of  that  in the 20 

record of  the proceedings.   There might  be a date i f  you wish 

to see the t ranscr ipt  of  what was said at  the t ime of  that  

ru l ing you – that  could be made avai lable to you.    

MS MYENI:   Thank you very much Chairperson.   No out  of  

the greatest  interest  Chai r  I  have read there the t ranscr ipts.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   For the f i rst  t ime Chairperson I  read Mr X f i le –  

fu l l  f i le – ful l  document and we are [00:14:27} Chai rperson 

has the SIU invest igat ion against  Mr X.   But  Chai rperson I  

am going to ask you as wel l  stoical ly Chair  stoical ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Would you l ike us to take a lunch 

adjournment and you … 

MS MYENI:   No,  no Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.     

MS MYENI:   P lease do not .   I  am saying sto ical ly Chair  th is  10 

is a dist ract ion of  a fami ly member.   Mr X is my fami ly.   His 

chi ldren are my chi ldren.   Mr X is my fami ly Chai rperson is  

my brother.   There is no t ruth in hiding h is ident i ty.   Mr X is 

fami ly to me he is  my brother.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Ms Myeni .    

MS MYENI:   That  is why I  am saying Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni .  

MS MYENI:   Stoical ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni .  

MS MYENI:   I  am asking you a quest ion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni .   I f  I  have made an order.  

MS MYENI:   I  am not  – I  am not  breaking Chai r  or  I  do not  

want you to break just  because I  am taking l ike – 

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no 

MS MYENI:   I  am slow in ta lk ing.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no,  no.  

MS MYENI:   I t  is because Chai r  our system cont inues to  

deplete the f ibre of  our society.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  just  hang on a … 

MS MYENI:   I  am not  Chair  I  am not  going to ta lk to  issues 

Chair  that  pertain to what the so cal led Mr X sa id because of  

the fear that  has been presented before you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni .  

MS MYENI:   This is an honest  man.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni .  10 

MS MYENI:   That  I  have known for over 25 years.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni .   I f . .  

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson are you talk ing? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  I  have made an order – yes… 

MS MYENI:   I  am sorry I  beg your pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   Or did you not  – did you not  hear me? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni  I  – I  am cont rol l ing the 

proceedings in the commission.    

MS MYENI:   Yes Chai r.  20 

MS MYENI:   I  g ive you an opportuni ty to say something and I  

g ive everybody an opportuni ty to say something.   At  th is  

stage I  want to say i f  there is an order that  I  have made i t  

needs to be respected.  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  am going to adjourn now to consider  what  

should be done about what you have just  done.  

MS MYENI:   Wel l  Chair  i t  was not  intended to break any 

orders.   I  d id  not  intend to  say anything untoward or making 

your order not  to be val id or disrespect ing you Chai rperson.  

My apologies.   But  Chair  I  am saying th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no,  no,  no.   We are going to have to 

adjourn for… 

MS MYENI:   Not ,  not  out  of  d isrespect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   For. . .  10 

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   When we come back I  wi l l  hear  what  

you have to say.   I  have got  to ref lect  on what you have just  

done.   Let  us take the lunch adjournment.  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us – we wi l l  resume not  at  two but  

quarter past  two.   We adjourn.  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai r.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES :     

CHAIRPERSON :    During the. . .  just  before the lunch break,  

Ms Myeni  ment ioned somebody’s name that  should not  have 

been ment ioned.   That  she not  ment ion i t  in terms of  an 

order that  I  had made and I  have just  explained to her that  I  
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made an order to object  to the ident i ty of  the person.    

 I  said that  we would adjourn for lunch to ref lect  on this  

development which is qui te ser ious.   I  met wi th the. . .  wi th  

Ms Myeni ’s legal  team and with the evidence leader.   And 

they both have something to say on the way forward.   I  am 

going to give them a chance to do so.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR ADDRESSES THE CHAIR :    Thank you,  

Chai r.   Chai r,  Sect ion 5 of  the Commissions Act  makes i t  an 

offence for a person who wi l fu l ly obst ruct  the Commission in 

the performance of  i ts funct ions.    10 

 That  sect ion is  reinforced by simi lar prov isions in  

Regulat ion 12 of  the Regulat ions that  have been 

promulgated in accordance of  the establ ishment  of  th is 

Commission.  

 Chai r,  the Commission’s funct ioning depends on 

wi tnesses who have informat ion that  is  relevant  and valuable 

for the Commission i t  receives.   To be in a posi t ion to do so 

even when they fear  for  thei r  l ives and the personal  safety of  

their  fami l ies.  

 Chai r,  today Ms Myeni  has breached that  sect ion of  the 20 

Commissions Act  and Regulat ion 12 and I  say that  for  four  

reasons.   The order that  you made Chai r  concern ing the 

ident i ty  of  Mr X was granted because you were sat is f ied that  

disclosure of  his ident i ty would threaten his and his fami ly ’s 

personal  safety.  
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 Secondly.   In response to Ms Myeni ’s quest ion about  

who Mr X was.   You made i t  c lear  to her that  you had given a 

ru l ing,  that  his ident i ty is not  to be revealed because you 

were persuaded that  protect ion of  his personal  safety was at  

r isk.  

 Ms Myeni  then stated that  she had read the ful l  

t ranscr ipt  of  Mr X ’s evidence and i f  she did so,  she read in 

detai l  the basis on which the appl icat ion for his evidence to 

be given in camera  and for his ident i ty not  to  be revealed 

was made.  10 

 She would also have seen the basis on which you made 

your decision to grant  the appl icat ion.   And that ,  fourthly,  

was al l  preceded the effort  of  the legal  team of  the 

Commission to not i fy Ms Myeni  the Sunday before Mr X’s 

evidence was to be given on the Monday.  

 What was done on that  Sunday,  was communicat ion was 

sent  to Ms Myeni ’s then at torneys and further cal ls were 

made to conf i rm that  that  communicat ion had been received.   

I f  I  may just  indicate what that  communicat ion said.    

 I t  advised Ms Myeni  that ,  on the next  day,  Monday the 20 

17t h of  February,  the Commission’s legal  team would be 

intending to present  the evidence of  a wi tness whose ident i ty 

could not  be revealed because of  issues of  personal  safety.  

 She was told precisely where the hear ing would be 

taking place and she was given a copy of  the appl icat ion for  
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the proceedings to take place in camera  and for his  ident i ty  

not  to be revealed.  

 She was told,  in no uncertain terms, that  his evidence 

would impl icate or may impl icate as part ic ipat ion in var ious 

act ions of  corrupt ion,  f raud and money laundering.   

 And she was fur ther advised that  i f  she intended to 

oppose the appl icat ion,  she had a r ight  to be present  at  the 

hearing and to make any appl icat ion she deemed 

appropriate,  in the l ight  of  what she was informed, would be 

an appl icat ion for his ident i ty not  be revealed.  10 

 So against  that  factual  background Chai r.   Ms Myeni ,  

despi te those facts,  on four successive occasions revealed 

the ident i ty of  Mr X.    

 Chai r,  we submit  that  that  conduct  is a wi l fu l  obst ruct ion 

of  the Commission in the performance of  i ts funct ions.   I t  

reveals a disrespect  for th is Commission and i ts processes.   

And i t  wi l l  send a chi l l  over these proceedings because i t  is  

l iable to  deter  future whist le-blow witnesses f rom coming 

forward.  

 We submit  that  th is is an extremely ser ious matter.   And 20 

we submit  that  you should di rect  the Secretary of  the 

Commission to lay a charge against  Ms Myeni  for breaching 

Sect ion 5 of  the Commissions Act  so that  just ice can take i ts  

course.    

 We further submi t  that  any explanat ion of  Ms Myeni ’s  
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conduct  that  may be proffered by her or any indicat ions that  

may in due course of  regret  that  come from her,  are matters 

that  are appropr ia tely to be reserved for  her cr iminal  t r ia l  on 

this charge,  should the NPA decide to prosecute.  

 They are not  any offers of  explanat ion.   Or contr i t ion are 

not  and could never  be grounds for  not  di rect ing that  the 

charge be la id.  

 Chai r,  i t  is our submission that  the proper funct ioning of  

th is Commission requires matters to be deal t  wi th resolute ly 

and swif t ly so that  there can be no doubt that  people who 10 

knowingly undermine this Commission wi l l  be brought to 

book.  

 Chai r,  those are our submissions for the way forward.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you,  Ms Hofmeyr.   Mr Buthelezi ,  do 

you want to say something? 

ADV BUTHELEZI  ADDRESSES THE CHAIR :    Thank you,  

Chai r.   As per the d iscussions we held in chambers Chai r.   

We have requested to make a formal submission to you 

Chai r.   Ms Hofmeyr has made her submissions.   Our 

submission is  not  necessari ly a  submission in  response but  20 

we deem the si tuat ion ser ious and we thought let  us come to 

the Chai r  wi th a formal submission.  

 And as far as al l  the requests and prayers of  

Ms Hofmeyr,  we wi l l  a lso deal  wi th those in terms of  the 

submission that  we make to you Chai r.  
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 So I  do not  want to get  into an exchange over for to date 

the mer i ts of  what Ms Hofmeyr has stated.   We wi l l  g ive our  

submission and request  that  the Chai r  defer his rul ing in th is 

issue to having received that  submission by the end of  

Tuesday next  week wi th regards to how we proceed.  

 We have also ind icated to Chai r  that  we are st i l l . . .   We 

wi l l  proceed and we are st i l l  awai t ing the Chair ’s di rect ions 

in terms of  how the proceedings be conducted.  

 But  the indicat ion f rom Ms Hofmeyr is that  they want to  

proceed.  So we wi l l  proceed accordingly.   Unfortunately,  10 

Chair  I  cannot take the point  beyond that .   I  do not  have 

those inst ruct ions r ight  now.  

 And ours is to say,  we wi l l  consul t  af ter the session and 

t ry to get  proper instruct ion on how we wi l l  deal  wi th th is but  

we wi l l  be making a formal submission.   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  know that  we spoke in chambers and I  

ment ioned the date of  Tuesday as a possibi l i ty for  

submissions.   

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  am just  th inking now because 20 

whatever explanat ion,  I  th ink i t  cannot be a lengthy 

explanat ion.    

 I  am wonder ing whether we should not  br ing the dates 

forward on the basis that  af ter the hearing or th is evening,  

there ought to be an opportuni ty to start  working on that .  
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 And i f  you do not  f in ish,  then maybe at  some stage 

tomorrow you might  be done and say that  I  should. . .  you 

should f in ish whatever explanat ion or submissions you want  

to furnish by Monday morning.   You can use the weekend as 

wel l .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Would that  be f ine? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    That  is okay Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Thank you.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am going to say.   I  do not  know what 

explanat ion Ms Myeni  wi l l  be given in due course but  not  

knowing what explanat ion you wi l l  g ive on the face of  what 

happened here which we a l l  know.   

 What you did is real ly something that ,  i t  seems to me 

would discourage other wi tnesses who want to give evidence 

before the Commission anonymously when they fear for  thei r  

safety or their  l ives.   Something that  is very crucia l  to the 

work of  informat ion.    

 There are,  I  bel ieve,  many people who would l ike to  20 

share informat ion wi th the Commission and who have been 

want ing to do so over the past  two and a hal f  years.  

 But  who are not  saying that  thei r  l ives would be 

threatened or thei r  safety would be threatened but  who 

simply feel  that  they wi l l  be vict imised in terms of  work,  in  
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terms of  business,  in terms of  thei r  careers and they are not  

coming forward.  

 And then there are those who real ly fear for thei r  safety,  

their  l ives and thei r  safety of  thei r  fami ly members yet  who 

have crucial  informat ion that  is important  for the work of  the 

Commission.  

 Now i f  something l ike this  happens and happens r ight  in  

the Commission,  i t  undermines the work of  the Commission 

in a very ser ious way.    

 To say the least ,  I  am disappointed in you that  you did 10 

this part icular ly a f ter I  had said that  I  made an order that  is 

against ,  i t  should not  be revealed.   I  d id not  expect  th is f rom 

you.    

 From yesterday,  my impression was that  you were 

showing respect  to the Commission.   So I  d id not  expect  

th is.   Obviously,  i f  somebody disrespects an order that  I  

have made, i t  seems to me that  that  person disrespects me 

as wel l .  

 I  am going to wai t  for the submissions that  your legal  

team wi l l  br ing.   They wi l l  br ing i t  –  de l iver i t  to the 20 

Commission by Monday morning.   Mr Buthelezi ,  ten o’clock? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    That  is okay Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is f ine?  Ja.   By Monday ten o’clock and 

I  wi l l  then have regard to  i t  and then take i t  f rom there.   

Alr ight .   But  we are going to proceed.  I  th ink I  must  just  say 
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to the media and other people who may have heard the 

breach of  the order that  I  made.   

 That  they should not  use th is  breach to just i fy,  

ment ioning the name of  Mr X.   They must  cont inue to respect  

the order that  was issued as they have done before and not  

ment ion the name that  Ms Myeni  ment ioned just  before we 

adjourned for lunch.   So that  order cont inues to stand.   

Okay.   Let  us cont inue.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Chair.   Ms Myeni ,  before the 

lunch adjournment,  we had moved to the area concerning the 10 

t ime that  you were Chai rperson of  the Mhlathuze’s Water  

Board and I  had indicated that  Mr X gave evidence about 

having received money f rom your  son’s company,  Premier 

At t ract ion.  

 There were three deposi ts of  money that  he received.  

The f i rst  was on the 24t h of  October 2015 in the amount of  

one mi l l ion rand.  

 The second was on the 11t h of  December 2015 in  the 

amount of  R 1.15 mi l l ion and the th i rd was on the 

2n d of  February 2016 in the amount of  one mi l l ion rand.  20 

 Are you aware of  those deposi ts having been made by 

Mr X into your son’s company,  Premier At t ract ion’s bank 

account? 

MS MYENI :    I  have read i t  about  i t .   I  then am aware of  i t .   I  

read i t  yesterday as wel l .  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Were you aware of  i t  at  the t ime? 

MS MYENI :    My response is,  I  am aware of  what the 

quest ion has been asked regarding the business between 

Mr X and my son.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And in part icular,  were you aware of  those 

payments having been made as I  have said i t  out? 

MS MYENI :    Not  part icular ly but  I  have been aware that  they 

have been doing things together.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  h is evidence before this  

Commission is  that  he had never done any work for Premier  10 

At t ract ion,  never  rendered any serv ices to i t  and had not  

business relat ionship at  al l  wi th Premier  At t ract ion.    

 I  understand your evidence given moments ago is  to 

suggest  that  that  is fa lse.   Is that  a  correct  understanding of  

what you said? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  I  am aware of  the things that  they 

have done together but  I  am – I  cannot ta lk about  business 

deal ings between two people.   Therefore,  I  am saying I  am 

aware.   I  have read the t ranscr ipt .   I  have read mister X’s 

[name not  t ranscr ibed]  submission.   And I  have seen bank 20 

statements.   So I  am aware of  what  happened between them 

but  I  never get  involved in two business ent i t ies.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  I  would caut ion you for the 

remainder of  today not  to refer  to  th is wi tness as anything 

other than Mr X.   Ms Myeni ,  Mr X’s evidence before this 
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Commission . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    Sorry,  I  beg your pardon.   I . . .   and honest ly,  I  

am feel ing so bad about th is whole thing because I  do not  

mean to disrespect  anyone.  And especial ly,  I  do not  mean to 

disrespect  the Commission or the Chairperson.   I  am feel ing 

very bad.    

 But  Ms Hofmeyr,  i f  I  have ment ioned him again,  I . . .  i t  wi l l  

be out . . .   f i rst  out  of . . .  I  do not  know.  I  d id not  hear  mysel f  

whether I  sa id his  name or not .    

 One, i t  is was disbel ief .   Two, i t  was an emot ion that  10 

came with i t .   And feel ing betrayed.   I  apologise.   But  i f  I  

have said i t  again,  i t  is real ly something that  I  have not . . .  I  

th ink my mind is not  into i t .   I  apologise.    

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni  . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    I  hear  you quest ioning me.  So I  am.. .   So that  

is why I  am saying,  I  do not  know whether I  have said i t  

again.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Okay.   You wi l l  refer to him as Mr X.   

You wi l l  refer to him as Mr X.  

MS MYENI :    I  wi l l  refer to Mr X,  Chai r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  Mr X did not  even know the 

name of  the company that  i t  made payments to him, 

according to his evidence unt i l  the Commission’s 

invest igators told him the name of  the company.  
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 Can you give us any insight  as to the level  of  the 

re lat ionship between Mr X and your son and your son’s 

business,  Premier  At t ract ion? 

MS MYENI :    Chai r,  may I  not  answer that  quest ion?  I  would 

prefer my son to respond to the quest ion.   I  do not  want to 

incr iminate mysel f  on business act iv i t ies that  I  am not  

involved in.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  wi th respect ,  I  do not  

understand that .   I  do not  understand how you can 

incr iminate yoursel f  in respect  of  something you are not  10 

involved in.    

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

that  is being asked because I  do not  want to incr iminate 

mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni ,  what Mr X test i f ied was that  he 

did not  know Premier At t ract ion at  al l .   He had no business 

re lat ionship wi th  Premier At t ract ion.   What would happen 

before he received these payments is,  that  you would 

contact  him and you would alert  h im to the fact  that  money 20 

was coming into his account.   Do you conf i rm that  that  is  

what you did? 

MS MYENI :    Chairperson,  may I  not  respond to th is  

quest ion?  I  do not  want to incr iminate mysel f  . . . [ indist inct ]  

[d istort ion present  – speaker not  c lear]  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    He said that  i t  is  one of  the funds that  he 

was inst ructed to  del iver in cash to you and so he made a 

number of  wi thdrawals between the 27t h of  October 2015 and 

later November 2015.  Did you inst ruct  Mr X to wi thdraw 

cash f rom the amount that  he had received on the 

24t h of  October and provided to you? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  may I  not  respond to the quest ion 

in case I  incr iminate mysel f?   

ADV HOFMEYR :    Mr X test i f ied about the fact  that  he 

considers you a very good fami ly f r iend and that  he had on 10 

many occasions v is i ted you.   And as a consequence of  that ,  

the people at  your home where – that  work for you,  would 

have no di ff icul ty wi th him coming to the property when you 

were not  there.    

 Can you conf i rm that  that  was the nature of  the 

re lat ionship and that  he did have access to your property on 

occasion when you were not  there? 

MS MYENI :    No person has access to my property wi thout  

my permission.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myeni  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

MS MYENI :    [ Indist inct ]  [d istort ion present  – speaker not  

c lear]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  i t  is a d i fferent  quest ion.   My quest ion 

was,  did he on occasion come to your property when you 

were not  there? 
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CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe let  me . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    [d is tort ion present ]  . . . [ indist inct ]  not  aware of  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    I  am not  aware.   Sorry,  Chai r.   I  spoke on top of  

your voice.   Sorry,  sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS MYENI :    On top of  you responding.   Sorry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink you have answered.   I  th ink what 

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

MS MYENI :    Did you ask me, Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink what Ms Hofmeyr had in mind is –  

or understands that  Mr X test i f ied that  the nature of  the 

re lat ionship between himsel f  and yoursel f  or your  fami ly was 

such,  that  even when you were at  home, he could come to 

your  home i f  there were other  people and there would no 

problem.  That  is what . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    That  is not  t rue Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is not  t rue? 

MS MYENI :    That  is not  t rue.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .  

MS MYENI :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    He said when he would make these vis i ts 

to your home, i f  you were there,  he would hand over the 
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cash that  you requested f rom him to you di rect ly but  when 

you were not  there,  he would leave the cash somewhere in  

your off ice and be somewhat careful  to conceal  i t .   Are you 

aware of  that  is what took place? 

MS MYENI :    I  am not  aware.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So he did not  ever  give you cash to you 

di rect ly? 

MS MYENI :    I  am not  aware Chai rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  was just  seeking clar i ty.   I  real ise that  

my f raming of  the quest ion as cr isp as I  would have l iked i t  10 

to be.   I  was asking whether he ever gave you cash 

personal ly in your  hand? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  the quest ion is to open-ended.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MS MYENI :    I  must  be told . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    . . .what  cash . . . [ indist inct ]  before.   I f  I  g ive you 

cash and i f  he g ives me cash what i t  is for.   So the quest ion 

too broad and open-ended. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ja,  in fa i rness Ms Myeni  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    . . . I  accept  that .   I  have been focussing in 

on a per iod between the 27t h  of  October and late 

November 2015 when, according to Mr X . . . [ intervenes]   
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MS MYENI :    I  have lost  you there.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Sorry.  

MS MYENI :    I  have lost  you.   Sorry.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  want  to give you a greater clar i ty as to 

my quest ion.   I  was focussing on the per iod between 

27 October 2015 and late November 2015.    

 And i t  was dur ing that  per iod that  Mr X said he would 

come to your home to give your cash and that  was cash that  

he wi thdrew f rom his bank account af ter your son’s company,  

Premier At t ract ion paid him a mi l l ion rand.    10 

 And I  would l ike to know from you whether you conf i rm 

that  that  did take place? 

MS MYENI :    I  am not  aware of  that .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And dur ing that  same period,  can you 

conf i rm whether  he lef t  cash,  which on his version he 

wi thdraw on your  inst ruct ion f rom that  or ig inal  mi l l ion rand 

and lef t  i t  in your off ice for you? 

MS MYENI :    That  he wi l l  then? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    In your off ice,  in your home.  

MS MYENI :    A mi l l ion rand in my off ice? 20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  let  me be clear.   His evidence was.   

He got  the in i t ia l  payment of  a mi l l ion rand on the 

24t h of  October 2015 and then he would make successive 

wi thdrawals of  cash over the per iod between the 

27t h of  October 2015 and late November 2015.   And on 
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occasion he would leave that  cash in the off ice at  your 

home.  Did that  happen? 

MS MYENI :    Not  that  I  remember Chairperson.   I  do not  

remember that .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    But  could i t  have happened? 

MS MYENI :    Sorry? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Could i t  have happened? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Is there a possib i l i ty may have happened 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    [ Indist inct ]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Is there a possibi l i ty . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    [ Ind ist inct ]  and answer.    [d istort ion present  – 

speaker unclear]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    I  have g iven an answer Chai rperson.   I  am not  

aware of  that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So i f  he ever lef t  any cash,  you 

never received cash that  you had to ld had been lef t  by him in 

your off ice or in your study at  home? 

MS MYENI :    Chai rperson,  I  do not  have a place where a 20 

person can walk in and give cash l ike that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    That  is accessib le in my absence.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    I f  I  am not  at  home, my home is not  as easi ly 
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accessible as I  read what was being said by Mr X.   So I  am 

not  too sure about  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You would deny that  such a thing 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    I t  is real ly di ff icul t  for me Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS MYENI :    Sorry.   Sorry,  Chai r? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  I  am saying . . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    My apologies Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am saying you would deny that  10 

something l ike that  every happened? 

MS MYENI :    I  am saying Chairperson,  i t  is d i ff icu l t  for me to 

ever put  before Mr X to say he is ly ing.   I t  is di ff icul t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    I  mean, th is is a person that  I  respect .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    So i t  is not  t rue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is not  t rue? 

MS MYENI :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    There has been evidence before this  

Commission that  you have. . .  there were. . .  is a wi tness who 

has given evidence before this  Commission previously,  

Mr Le Roux.   Are you aware of  his evidence? 

MS MYENI :    I  have not  seen his. . .  what  is  i t?  His aff idavi t  
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or  his submission.   Or maybe I  have seen i t  . . . [ indist inct ]   

There are too many.   [d istort ion present  – speaker unclear]  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  Do you have a safe? 

MS MYENI :    Or is  that  wi tness. . .   Sorry.   Is i t  th is one? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    No,  no,  no.   This was previously 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MS MYENI :    I t  is on the . . . [ indist inct ]  [d istort ion present ]   

Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Sorry,  Ms Myeni .   I t  was previous 

evidence given before the Commission by Mr Le Roux in 10 

respect  of  which you received a Rule 3(3) not ice.   Does that  

assist  you? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  BOSASA? 

MS MYENI :    I  received too many Rule 3(3) not ices.   Maybe 

i f  you can just  g ive me a more or elaborate. . .   Oh,  sorry 

Chairperson.   You know I  hardly hear when you start  

speaking . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  is  that  so?  Okay,  I  wonder  whether  

there  is  some techn ica l  p rob lem but  I  wanted to  say I  th ink  

Mr  le  Roux tha t  Ms Hofmeyr  i s  speak ing  about  i s  a  w i tness 20 

who tes t i f ied  about  BOSASA mat te rs .   I  th ink  R ichard  le  

Roux?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  R ichard  le  Roux who used to  work  fo r  

BOSASA so he  wou ld  have g i ven ev idence about  you  
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re la t ing  to  BOSASA.   Do you have any reco l lec t ion  o f  

rece iv ing  h i s  a f f idav i t  o r  3 .3  no t ice  re la t ing  to  BOSASA? 

MS MYENI :    I  was not  fo l low ing,  Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  no t  

have known or  maybe I  can remember  i f  I  see  h is  

submiss ion  bu t  I  am open to  l i s ten ing  to  who Mr  le  Roux is  

and what  he  is  submiss ion  was about .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you have a  sa fe  ins ide  your  o f f i ce  a t  

home? 

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  no t  t rue ,  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    No,  I  am ask ing  a  quest ion ,  do  you have  

a  sa fe  ins ide  your  o f f i ce  a t  home? 

MS MYENI :    Oh  sor ry,  I  though he sa id ,  Mr  le  Roux sa id  

there  is  a  sa fe  ins ide  my o f f i ce .   I  do  no t  have a  sa fe  in  my  

o f f i ce ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Do you have a  sa fe  in  your  ga rage? 

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  have a  sa fe  in  my garage.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  in  re la t ion  to  the  second two  

payments .   Remember  I  ind ica ted  ear l ie r  the re  was a  

payment  in  October  and then there  was a  payment  in  20 

December  2015 and then the re  was a  f ina l  payment  in  

February  2016.   Mr  X  sa id  in  re la t ion  to  those second two  

payments ,  the  one in  December  2015 and the  one in  

February  2016 tha t  you ins t ruc ted  h im to  payment  amounts  

in to  a  bank account  the  number  o f  wh ich  you prov ided to  
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h im.   D id  you do so?  

MS MYENI :    I  am not  aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  I  jus t  want  to  be  c lea r  

because when you say you are  no t  aware  o f  i t ,  I  want  to  be  

cer ta in  as  to  wha t  p rec ise ly  you a re  deny ing  in  re la t ion  to  

Mr  X ’s  ev idence.   So tha t  i s  why I  am jus t  seek ing  c la r i t y.   

So d id  you ins t ruc t  Mr  X  to  pay money in to  your  account  –  

we l l ,  in to  an  account  you gave h im in  December  o f  2015 

and February  o f  2016?  

MS MYENI :    Because o f  the  t imef rames o r  the  t ime l ines 10 

tha t  you are  re fer r ing  to ,  I  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  reca l l .   

Remember,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  respect ,  I  have worked w i th  

the  incumbent ,  jus t  in  case I  make a  m is take,  Mr  X .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  X .  

MS MYENI :    I  have worked w i th  the  pe rson,  I  have known 

the  fami ly  f rom as way back as  1997.   So tha t  i s  why i f  

then the re  is  a  par t i cu la r  pe r iod  re fer red  to ,  the  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween me and my b ro the r  b roke down.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  X .   You mean Mr  X  or  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    So  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    When you say my bro the r,  a re  you 

re fer r i ng  to  Mr  X  or  a re  you re fe r r i ng  to  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    I  am sor ry,  Cha i r.   Sor ry,  Cha i r,  fo r  record  

purposes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you re fer r i ng  to  somebody e lse  or  
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a re  you re fer r i ng  to  X? 

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Mr  X .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MYENI :    We –  because,  Cha i rperson –  okay,  there  was 

an assumpt ion  f rom Mr  X  tha t  wherever  I  worked and  

whatever  I  wou ld  do ,  he  knew – l i ke ,  fo r  ins tance ,  he  is  

in to  const ruc t ion .   When I  was in to  const ruc t ion  I  wou ld  

ca l l  h im somet imes and ask h im to  p lease ass is t  me,  I  w i l l  

be  bu i ld ing  a  house fo r  somebody,  I  th ink  i t  was i n  2001,  I  

am donat ing  a  house to  th is  fami ly  and then he wou ld  come 10 

and bu i ld .    

I  wou ld  buy mate r ia l  and he wou ld  do  whatever  tha t  

I  asked h im.   Now for  me to  be  ab le  to  say dur ing  th is  

par t i cu la r  pe r iod  and tha t  par t i cu la r  per iod  the re  was 

money tha t  was g iven by  Mr  X  or  I  gave h im money,  tha t  i s  

why i t  i s  a  b i t  d i f f i cu l t .  

 In  2013 he was lead ing  some fami ly  a f fa i rs  tha t  had 

occur red  a t  home and a t  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  t ime,  a f te r  tha t  –  

no ,  in  fac t  a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ime,  the  re la t ionsh ip  was a  b i t  

s t ra ined.   We had a  death  i n  the  fami ly.   Even a t  tha t  t ime 20 

the  re la t ionsh ip  was a  b i t  s t ra ined.    

We had a  wedd ing  fo r  my ha l f  b ro ther  who worked  

fo r  h im fo r  years .   He was sor t  o f  duck ing  and d iv ing .   He 

wou ld  no t  look  me in  the  eye.   A t  tha t  t ime I  d id  no t  know 

what  was go ing  on but  I  wou ld  even go and ta lk  to  h is  w i fe  



05 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 299 
 

Page 111 of 148 
 

ra the r  o r  ta lk  to  the  daughter  to  say look,  there  is  no  way  

your  fa the r  may not  speak a t  my bro ther ’s  wedd ing .   That  

i s  the  k ind  o f  a  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  we  had.    

 Now I  am say ing  i f  then the  per iod  re fer red  to  i s  

2015 and  ’16 ,  there  was an i nvest iga t ion  tak ing  p lace a t  

Umhla tuz i  a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ime  and a t  tha t  t ime every 

t ime I  am be ing  asked to  come and s i t  and l i s ten  and a l so  

answer  quest ions to  those tha t  were  invest iga t ing ,  h is  

name was popp ing  up a l l  the  t ime and I  wou ld  make sure  

tha t  I  ask  h im,  to  say wou ld  i t  be  poss ib le  tha t  you might  10 

have done someth ing  l i ke  th i s?    

Then he wou ld  assure  me tha t  there  i s  no th ing  bu t  

he  wou ld  no t  p ick  up  ca l l s  and he wou ld  no t  be  the  person  

I  know,  the  f r iend  I  know,  the  fami ly  f r iend I  know and what  

s tood out  a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ime was –  a l though I  do  no t  

remember  qu i te  p rec ise ly  the  year,  one o f  h is  houses got  

burn t  w i th in  the  premises.   He has a  house fo r  the  g i r l s ,  

another  back room – but  b ig  back rooms,  no t  smal l  

[ ind is t inc t ]  07 .07  th ings.   So one burn t  to  ashes.   Now I  am 

hear ing  th i s  f rom the  fami ly  members ,  no t  f rom h im.   Then I  20 

phoned h im in  a  sor t  o f  repr imand ing  h im to  say how can 

you not  te l l  me such a  b ig  th ing?  

 The o the r  th ing  then,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  I  can  

ment ion ,  hop ing  I  do  no t  incr im inate  myse l f ,  was tha t  when  

he took the  second w i fe ,  the  re la t ionsh ip  was –  I  have  
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a lways been very  c lose  to  h is  w i fe ,  to  the  f i rs t  w i fe  and h i s  

f i rs t  w i fe  wou ld  t e l l  me cer ta in  th ings to  say th i s  i s  what  i s  

happen ing ,  th is  i s  what  has happened and then I  am seen  

a  b ig  s is te r  to  say how.    

We d id  no t  know tha t  th is  was go ing  to  happen or  

you are  do ing  th is  bu t  tha t  th ing  has no t  changed and,  

knowing h im,  Cha i rperson,  he  is  a  very  sens i t i ve  person.   

He wou ld  be  emot iona l  about  i ssues tha t  I  wou ld  ra ise  

per ta in ing  to  th ings tha t  I  fee l  a re  no t  r igh t .    

 So  I  wou ld  ta lk  t o  h im in  2015 and ’16  about  what  10 

was do ing  on and a lso  say ing  you cannot  do  these th ings  

tha t  a re  go ing  to  compromise  you and a l so  compromise  me 

because I  w i l l  have to  say the  t ru th  the  way I  know how.  

 I f ,  fo r  ins tance ,  excuse me,  you have done 

someth ing  wrong in  a  s ta te  en t i t y  wh ich  I  p res ide  ove r.   So 

tha t  i s  the  long and shor t  o f  wha t  I  can exp la in  regard ing  

2015 and 2016 re la t ionsh ip .   I  know I  have not  touched on  

Le Roux because I  have not  heard  the  quest ion  f rom Le 

Roux.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  I  th ink  there  was the  quest ion  o f  20 

whethe r  you d id  or  may have  g iven h im a  cer ta in  account  

number  in  wh ich  you asked h im to  depos i t  cer ta in  mon ies  

dur ing  tha t  pe r iod .   What  was your  answer  to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r,  l i ke  I  say,  I  am say ing  I  w i l l  no t  –  oh ,  

ja ,  now I  remember,  so r ry,  Cha i r,  thanks fo r  ass is t ing  fo r  
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me.   No,  I  w i l l  no t  remember  tha t  par t i cu la r  per iod ,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  i t  i s  a  very  spec i f i c  quest ion .   

I s  you r  answer  t ha t  you do not  remember  anyth ing  about  

your  dea l ings be tween Mr  X  and yourse l f  in  the  2015/2016  

per iod?  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  remember,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And a t  tha t  t ime you wou ld  be  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

MS MYENI :    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson?  I  d id  no t  ge t  the  answer.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The quest ion  f rom Ms Hofmeyr  i s  

whethe r  a t  tha t  t ime,  namely  2015/2016,  you were  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion?  That  was the  

quest ion .  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  you have prev ious l y  deposed 

to  an  a f f idav i t  be fore  th i s  Commiss ion  in  response to  the  

ev idence o f  Mr  Agr izz i  in  wh ich  you s ta ted  tha t  a l l  funds  20 

rece ived by  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  is  done by  

e lec t ron i c  t ransfe r  and not  cash.   Do you remember  g iv ing  

tha t  vers ion  on  a f f idav i t?  

MS MYENI :    Which  spec i f i c  re fe rence to  wha t  Agr izz i  

a l leged?  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  no ,  I  am jus t  ask ing  i f  you  reca l l  

the  a l legat ion .   So is  i t  your  ev idence befo re  the  

Commiss ion  today tha t  the  way in  wh ich  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  sor ry,  Ms Hofmeyr,  I  th ink  Ms  

Myen i  jus t  wants  to  comple te  he r  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

MS MYENI :    Which  spec i f i c  re fe rence,  Cha i rpe rson,  to  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Agr izz i ’s  ev idence.  10 

MS MYENI :    Agr i zz i .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes bu t  the  cha l lenge I  have w i th  tha t  

answer,  Ms Myen i ,  i s  I  am in te res ted  in  the  fac ts  and the  

fac ts  do  no t  change whether  you are  respond ing  to  Mr  

Agr izz i ’s  ev idence or  Mr  X ’s  ev idence,  do  they?  

MS MYENI :    In  o rde r  no t  to  incr im inate  myse l f ,  

Cha i rperson,  I  have wr i t ten  an  a f f idav i t  about  BOSASA and 

the  s ta tement  tha t  was issued by  Agr izz i  and I  have been 

very  spec i f i c  and  d i rec t  to  the  mat te r  tha t  was before  the  

Commiss ion ,  Cha i rperson,  regard ing  BOSASA and Agr izz i .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  what  was my quest ion?  

MS MYENI :    You quest ion  is  tha t  the  amounts  depos i ted  to  

the  foundat ion  are  done e lec t ron i ca l l y  and tha t  i s  how the  

donat ions go  but  I  am say ing  i t  was spec i f i c ,  Cha i rperson,  

to  the  person tha t  i s  re fe r red  to .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i ,  tha t  was not  my quest ion .   My 

quest ion  –  tha t  was an ear l ie r  quest ion .   My quest ion  to  

wh ich  you gave the  immedia te  answer  was do the  fac ts  

change depend ing  on whethe r  you are  respond ing  to  Mr  

Agr izz i  o r  Mr  X?  

MS MYENI :    I  am go ing  to  be  confused he re ,  Cha i rperson.   

I  was s t i l l  fo l low ing because I  thought  we were  ta lk ing  

about  Mr  X ,  now we are  w i th  Mr  le  Roux.   We are  now wi th  

Mr  Agr izz i .   So I  want  –  I  do  no t  know,  I  th ink  I  am go ing  to  

be  confused.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me ask  th is  quest ion .   In  your  

a f f idav i t  in  response to  Mr  Agr i zz i ’s  a f f idav i t  o r  ev idence  

d id  you say tha t  donat ions to  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  

are  made e lec t ron ica l l y?  

MS MYENI :    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson,  I  am go ing  to ,  w i th  your  

permiss ion ,  can I  address you a  b i t ,  Cha i rpe rson? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    I f  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  l i ke  fo r  me to  

present  on  issues o f  the  Jacob G  Zuma Foundat ion  as  the  

person tha t  has led  the  Foundat ion  in  te rms o f  be ing  i t s  20 

Cha i rperson,  may  I  address you th is  way,  Cha i rperson?  

Number  one,  the re  were  peop le ,  Cha i r,  tha t  were  

invest iga ted  re la t ing  Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion  and the i r  

bus inesses were  c losed by  assoc ia t ion  to  the  Jacob G 

Zuma Foundat ion  or  the  assoc ia t i on  to  Jacob Zuma as the 
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person tha t  i s  sor t  o f  perhaps a l leged to  be  a  cor rup t  

person.   That  i s  one.  

 Two,  Cha i rperson,  th roughout  my tenure  as  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion ,  the  Jacob G 

Zuma Foundat ion  has been invest iga ted  s ince  i t s  

es tab l i shment .   The Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion ,  the  account  

was c losed by  ABSA,  I  th ink  i t  was about  2016 or  so .    

Now,  Cha i rperson,  the  reason why I  am address ing  

you when I  sa id  I  am gu i l t y  o f  anyth ing  tha t  I  have done by  

assoc ia t ion ,  even the  peop le  tha t  were  ass is t ing  the  10 

Foundat ion  were  a lso  v ic t im ised,  the i r  bus inesses were  

c losed and we wou ld  rece ive  co r respondence f rom peop le  

who are  say ing  we cannot  ass i s t  because there  is  th is  

cha l lenge.  

Now my quest ion ,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  a  foundat ion  as  a  

body,  as  an  ent i t y,  a  foundat ion  is  no t  Dudu.   A foundat ion  

is  no t  my bus iness.   Here  I  am answer ing  about  the  

donat ions tha t  a re  done to  the  Foundat ion ,  Cha i rpe rson.   

Here  I  am,  Cha i rperson,  hav ing  to  answer  because I  

p res ided ove r  the  Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion  whose money  20 

has benef i ted  the  poor  and the  downt rodden.  

My quest ion ,  Cha i r,  wou ld  I  be  s i t t ing  here  hav ing  to  

answer  the  same quest ion  i f  I  was runn ing  Mr  de  K lerk ’s  

Foundat ion ,  Mr  Mbek i ’s  Foundat ion ,  Mr  Mande la ’s  

Foundat ion ,  Mr  Mot lan the ’s  Foundat ion ,  Mr  Ramaphosa ’s  
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Foundat ion?   

Would  I  be  quest ioned about  how the  donat ions go  

in to  the i r  Founda t ions?  Many enqu i r ies  f rom the  l i kes  o f  

P ie t  Lou is  Myburgh ask ing  me who are  the  donors  o f  the 

foundat ion?  I  wou ld  te l l  me s ta f f  o r  the  admin is t ra to r  and  

bookkeeper  and fo r  your  in fo rmat ion ,  Cha i rperson,  I  had to  

conv ince Pres ident  Zuma to  say our  bookkeeper  must  be  a  

person o f  a  cer ta in  co lour,  our  admin is t ra to r  must  be  a  

person o f  cer ta in  co lour  because persona l ly,  I  cannot  be  

t rus ted  be o f  the  co lour  o f  my sk in .  10 

Then I  sa id  they must  be  the  ones,  Cha i r,  who 

rece ives,  who depos i t ,  who re lease payments ,  those peop le  

o f  co lou r.   Now I  sa id  to  them wi th  the  med ia  enqu i r ies ,  a l l  

now in  the  med ia  enqu i ry,  i t  i s  a  c r ime to  donate  to  the  

Jacob Zuma Foundat ion ,  i t  i s  a  c r ime to  run  the  Jacob  

Zuma Foundat ion ,  i t  i s  a  c r ime to  ask  any pr iva te  company 

or  any bus iness person fo r  donat ions in to  the  Foundat ion  

o f  P res ident  Zuma.    

Then I  sa id  to  P ie t  Lou is  Myburgh ,  i f  you  are  do ing  

an enqu i ry  on  th is  en t i t y  because you are  no t  inves t iga t ing  20 

Dudu.   I f  you  are  do ing  an  invest iga t ion  in to  the  

Foundat ions,  send me quest ions tha t  have been sent  to  De 

K lerk ’s  Foundat ion ,  quest ions tha t  have been sent  to  

Thabo Mbek i ’s  Foundat ion ,  h is  [ ind is t inc t ]  19 .08 ,  send me 

quest ions tha t  have been sent  to  Cyr i l  Ramaphosa,  the  
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P res ident ’s  Foundat ion ,  Ne lson Mande la ’s  Foundat ion ,  I  

w i l l ,  th rough my o f f i ce  and the  admin is t ra to r,  be ing  a  wh i le  

woman and our  bookkeeper,  be ing  a  wh i te  woman,  they w i l l  

p rov ide  w i th  every  in fo rmat ion  you  need.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    Then,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  have gone 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t  us  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    …out  o f  town to  t ry  and address on  th is  

mat te r.   Today I  am to  answer  to  the  na t ion  how the  10 

donat ions wou ld  happen,  how the  –  there fore ,  Cha i r,  w i th  

your  pe rmiss ion ,  I  am not  go ing  to  answer  to  Jacob G  

Zuma Foundat ion  donat ions.   They must  –  can  perhaps 

ass is t  me by  br ing ing  everyone f rom the  Founda t ion  to  

answer  to  the  i ssues o f  the  Foundat ion  so  tha t  i t  i s  no t  

Dudu who answers  these th ings tha t  a re  be ing  asked about  

the  –  one s ing le  Foundat ion  in  South  A f r i ca .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  you  see,  we have a  s i tua t i on  where  

cer ta in  w i tnesses  have g i ven cer ta in  ev idence w i th  regard  

to  money tha t  they say was g iven to  the  Jacob Zuma 20 

Foundat ion  or  was g iven to  you,  they have sa id  whatever  

ev idence and the i r  a f f idav i t s  wou ld  have been sent  to  the  –  

to  you o r  to  the  Foundat ion  a t  d i f fe ren t  t imes.    

Now you,  hav ing  been or  s t i l l  be ing  Cha i rperson o f  

the  Foundat ion ,  you a re  the  l eader  o f  the  Foundat ion ,  one  
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wou ld  expect  tha t  the  leader  a t  l eas t  wou ld  know what  i s  

happen ing  in  the  organ isa t ion  tha t  he  or  she  leads.   

Obv ious l y  i t  does happen tha t  one does not  know 

every th ing ,  depend ing  on the  s ize  o f  the  organ isa t ion ,  so  

Ms Hofmeyr  i s  ask ing  you quest ions because  cer ta in  

w i tnesses have g iven ev idence tha t  i s  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  

cer ta in  payments  were  made to  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  

or  were  made to  you in  c i r cumstances wh ich  requ i re  fu r ther  

invest iga t ion  or  wh ich  requ i re  the  Commiss ion  to  hear  f rom 

somebody f rom the  Foundat ion ,  say  do  they know about  10 

such payments ,  i s  th is  the  way tha t  donat ions were  made,  

fo r  example ,  because I  th ink  Mr  Agr izz i  was say ing  tha t  i t  

was cash.    

So when I  asked you the  quest ion  an  and I  am 

go ing  to  back to  the  quest ion  and i t  i s  rea l l y  about  what  

you a l ready have sa id  in  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  Ms Hofmeyr 

spoke about ,  whether  you d id  say in  your  a f f idav i t  in  

response to  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  ev idence or  a f f idav i t  tha t  

donat ions to  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  a re  made  by  way  

o f  e lec t ron ic  t ransfers ,  so  tha t  was  my quest ion .  20 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  s tand by  what  I  am say ing .   

That  a f f idav i t  I  wro te  i s  very  spec i f i c  to  the  ind iv idua l .   We 

wou ld  ge t  depos i t  s l ips  sent  to  us ,  Cha i rperson,  o r  d ropped 

to  a  cer ta in  o f f i ce  in  Jo ’bu rg  or  an  o f f i ce  in  Durban o f  the  

Foundat ion  tha t  so  and so  was in  a  fundra i s ing  event  in  
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such and such a  p lace,  he  made a  p ledge to  donate  to  the  

Foundat ion  and th is  i s  a  s l ip  tha t  he  dec ided to  go  and 

depos i t  the  money and he re  is  a  p roof  tha t  he  has 

honoured the  p ledge.    

In  respect  o f  BOSASA and Agr i zz i ,  I  addressed tha t  

spec i f i c  mat te r  in  tha t  regard ,  Cha i rperson.   There  was a  

reason I  sa id  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    Agr izz i  worked fo r  a  company ca l led  BOSASA 

which  I  unders tood to  be  a  pr iva te  company,  tha t  is  why I  10 

was spec i f i c  because,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  regard  to  tha t  

par t i cu la r  company,  when they made donat ions  to  the 

Foundat ion ’s  event  o f  the  b i r thday o f  P res ident  Zuma,  we  

had asked them – we gave them a  few th ings tha t  th is  i s  –  

th is  i s  a  p lan ,  th is  i s  what  we hope w i l l  be  done and th is  i s  

what  we want  to  ach ieve,  i s  th i s  what  we want  to  see fo r  

the  day.   And tha t  i s  what  they d id .    

They depos i ted  the  money themse lves  

e lec t ron i ca l l y,  Cha i rperson,  no t  to  us ,  to  serv ice  prov ide rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

MS MYENI :    Bu t  serv ice  prov iders  wou ld  te l l  us  –  we 

wou ld  wr i te  thank you le t te rs  and  I  have ind ica ted  tha t ,  I  

re fe r red  you to  tha t ,  wou ld  wr i te  thank you le t te rs  to  any  

donor  and somet imes the  donor  wou ld  say do  not  g ive  us  

thank you le t te r.    
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Bu t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  w i th  respect ,  I  do  no t  want  to  g ive  

any account  about  the  Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion  un less  

s ix  Cha i rpersons or  e igh t  Cha i rpersons o f  var ious 

foundat ions wou ld  s i t  in  th is  Commiss ion  and account  

about  foundat ions o f  P res idents ,  cur ren t  Pres ident ,  fo rmer  

Pres idents  and De K lerk  Foundat ion ,  the  la te  Tata  Ne lson 

Mande la  Foundat ion ,  then I  w i l l  be  comfo r tab le ,  Cha i r,  to  

ta lk  about  the  foundat ion  o f  P res ident  Jacob Zuma,  what  i t  

d id ,  how i t  fundra ised,  the  in te rna l  po l i c ies  tha t  ex is ted  in  

the  Foundat ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Ms Myen i ,  tha t  w i l l  no t  be  a  va l id  

g round fo r  you to  re fuse to  answer  quest ions re la t ing  to  

the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  namely  tha t  the re  a re  o the r  

foundat ions wh ich  are  no t  be fore  the  Commiss ion .    

The pos i t ion  tha t  we have is  tha t  cer ta in  w i tnesses  

came,  made a f f idav i t s  and gave ev idence some o f  wh ich  

may imp l ica te  or  may seem to  imp l ica te  the  Jacob Zuma 

Foundat ion  or  you,  bu t  I  am not  aware  o f  any w i tness who 

has g iven the  Commiss ion  any a f f idav i t s  o f  s ta tements  

re la t ing  to  any o ther  foundat ion .   But ,  o f  course ,  every  20 

a f f idav i t  o r  in fo rmat ion  tha t  ge ts  b rought  to  the  

Commiss ion  is  l ooked in to  and invest iga ted  on i t s  own 

mer i t s .  

 One o f  the  th ings  tha t  I  have sa id  i s  tha t  somet imes  

one  hears  compla in ts  a long the  l i nes  tha t  the  i nvest iga tors  
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o f  the  Commiss ion  or  the  Commiss ion  is  ta rge t ing  cer ta in  

peop le  and not  o thers  and I  say,  we l l ,  I  jus t  w ish  tha t  those 

who make tha t  compla in t ,  i f  they  know any in fo rmat ion  

re la t ing  to  cor rup t ion  or  s ta te  capture  on  the  par t  o f  those  

peop le  tha t  they wou ld  br ing  i t  fo rward  because the  

Commiss ion  in  over  t he  past  two  and  a  ha l f  yea rs  was  

ready to  invest iga te  whoever.    

But  somet imes o ther  peop le  w i l l  g ive  i n fo rmat ion  

about  cer ta in  peop le  and i f  those peop le  do  not  g ive  

in fo rmat ion  about  them then the  Commiss ion  does not  have  10 

anyth ing ,  so  –  bu t  I  jus t  want  to  say i t  w i l l  no t  be  a  va l id  

g round to  re fuse to  answer  quest ions re la t ing  to  the  Jacob 

Zuma Foundat ion  to  say there  are  o ther  foundat ions wh ich  

are  no t  be fore  the  Commiss ion  wh ich  are  no t  be ing  asked  

quest ions because you are  be ing  asked quest ions  based 

on ev idence and a f f idav i t s  tha t  have been fu rn i shed to  the 

Commiss ion  by  cer ta in  w i tnesses.    

I  cer ta in ly  am not  aware  o f  any ev idence or  

a f f idav i t s  tha t  has been b rought  by  anybody in  regard  to  

the  o the r  founda t ions tha t  you a re  ta lk ing  about .   You 20 

unders tand?  Yes ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  as  we have done w i th  p rev ious  

w i tnesses,  i t  i s  o f ten  usefu l  and e f f i c ien t  in  the  process o f  

the  Commiss ion ’s  hear ings i f  a  w i tness can be d i rec ted  to  

answer  the  quest ion  cr i sp ly  and then p rov ide  an  
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exp lanat ion  the reaf te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  th ink  th is  a f te rnoon ’s  p roceed ings 

wou ld  march a long tha t  much more  e f f i c ien t ly  i f  she  was to  

be  d i rec ted  to  do  the  same.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ms Myen i  t ry  and jus t  answer  

quest ions c r isp ly,  even i f  you have  got  some exp lanat ion  to  

g ive  bu t  le t  us  hear  the  f i rs t  answer  l i ke  when I  sa id  d id  

you say in  your  a f f idav i t  in  response to  Mr  Agr izz i ’s  

ev idence tha t  donat ions to  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  are  10 

made by  way o f  e lec t ron i c  t ransfer,  a  c r i sp  way o f  

respond ing  is  yes  tha t  i s  what  I  sa id  i n  tha t  a f f idav i t ,  my  

a f f idav i t ,  o r  no  tha t  i s  no t  what  I  sa id  and here  i s  what  I  

sa id .   So le t  us  t ry  and be c r isp  l i ke  tha t .   

 Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MYENI :    Ja sure ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r  because I  don ’ t  ac tua l l y  

ye t  have an answer  to  my quest i on ,  so  is  i t  the  case tha t  

the  on ly  way tha t  the  foundat ion  rece ives donat ions is  by  20 

EFT or  o ther  fo rmal  t ypes o f  t ransfers?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson I  may have sa id  tha t  in  respect  

to  the  donat ion  tha t  was c la imed to  have been de l i vered in  

cash by  Agr izz i .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And d id  you rece ive  donat ions by  o the r  
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means f rom o the r  en t i t ies?   

MS MYENI :    In  k ind  yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  th ink  you re fer red  ear l ie r  to  

somet imes jus t  hav ing  depos i t  s l ips  dropped o f f ,  so  wou ld  

those be occas ions when cash had been depos i ted  in  the 

account  and then you were  jus t  g iven a  depos i t  s l ip  as 

proof  tha t  the  cash had been de l i ve red?  

MS MYENI :    Cash has been de l i vered?   No I  am not  sure  

about  tha t  . . . [ in tervenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry,  apo log ies ,  depos i ted .  10 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson maybe tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Depos i ted ,  no t  de l i vered.  

MS MYENI :   Let  me exp la in  th is  Cha i rperson,  there  are  

fundra is ing  mechan isms tha t  a re  d i f fe ren t ,  there  i s  no  one 

s t ra igh t  fo rward  way to  ra ise  funds.   One tha t  I  can jus t  

c i te  a  c lass i ca l  example  about  i s  when the  peop le  are  

be ing  ca l led  to  as  fundra i s ing  event  o r  d inner  and peop le  

then p ledge to  ass is t  o r  p ledge to  donate .     

 I  remember  a  cer ta in  company in  the  e lec t ron ics  or  

in  the  IT space they have –  they  were  ass is t ing  us  w i th  20 

lap tops fo r  the  s tudents .   There  w i l l  be  peop le  who w i l l  say  

I  w i l l  pay  R500 000 towards the  foundat ion  bu t  I  w i l l  pay  

R100 000 as  and  when I  ge t  the  money and then when the  

a t tacks  were  v i c ious in  the  name Zuma and we a l l  know 

tha t  what  has been happen ing  in  the  count ry  then the  
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person wou ld  say as  much as  we have CSI  o r  Corpora te  

Soc ia l  Investmen t  tha t  we wou ld  use to  donate ,  bu t  I  can 

no longer  do  tha t ,  there fore  I  w i l l  persona l l y  f ind  a  way o f  

ra is ing  or  donat ing  in to  the  foundat ion  bu t  I  w i l l  then send  

you the  depos i t  s l ip ,  tha t  says  we have honoured our  

p ledge.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And those wou ld  be  depos i t  s l ips  

because cash had been depos i ted  in  the  account  o f  the  

Jacob Zuma Foundat ion ,  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    I t  wou ld  be ,  i t  wou ld  be .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  ent i t ies  o the r  than . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    . . . [ Ind is t inc t  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes Hofmeyr,  Ms Myen i .   Ms Myen i  you 

want  to  say someth ing?  

MS MYENI :    No Cha i rperson I  was say ing  i t  wou ld  depend  

there  was no b lanket  way o f  fundra is ing .  Another  en t i t y  

wou ld  be  open to  say we w i l l  depos i t ,  once we have  

depos i t  we wou ld  l i ke  the  le t te r  so  tha t  we c la im or  we 

submi t  i t  to  SARS for  tax  deduct ib le  benef i t s  o r  someth ing  

l i ke  tha t  so  i t  wou ld  depend on  the  en t i t y  tha t  we are  20 

dea l ing  w i th .  

 And then Cha i rperson i t  was not  –  i t  wou ld  no t  be  

proper  fo r  a  company l i ke  –  tha t ’s  why I  need an a f f idav i t ,  

l i ke  BOSASA to  donate  to  the  foundat ion  v ia  cash when . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Looks l i ke  we have los t  you Ms Myen i ,  ja  
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I  th ink  we have los t  he r.   We wi l l  see  whether  the  

techn ic ians can . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r  we w i l l  take  s teps to  –  I  th ink  they 

are  t ry ing  to  reconnect  a t  th is  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  

MS MYENI :    I  am back Cha i rperson,  my apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes we los t  you fo r  some t ime.  

MS MYENI :    I  am back Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  I  th ink  you were  say ing  tha t  

donat ions cou ld  be  made in  d i f fe ren t  ways and you were  10 

say ing  tha t  –  you  were  say ing  w i th  regard  to  BOSASA they  

d id  no t  make donat ions by  de l i ve r ing  cash,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    That  i s  my unders tand ing  Cha i r  in  my 

dea l ings w i th  the  la te  Mr  Watson.   I  have never  dea l t  w i th  

Agr izz i  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Bu t  how wou ld  you know i f  they  had  

depos i ted  cash because depos i t  s l ips  don ’ t  ident i f y  the  

par t y  who is  mak ing  the  depos i t  do  they?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson we had  a  bookkeeper  so  I  was  20 

not  in t imate ly  invo lved in  tha t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No but  you have  jus t  g iven ev idence tha t  

as  I  unders tood  i t  tended to  suggest  tha t  you cou ld  

de termine whethe r  BOSASA was depos i t ing  cash or  no t  and 

I  am put t ing  to  you we l l  you wou ldn ’ t  know because  
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depos i ts  s l ips  don ’ t  revea l  who the  depos i to r  i s  do  they?  

MS MYENI :    No,  no ,  no  Cha i rpe rson I  d id  no t  know tha t  

you are  re fe r r i ng  spec i f i ca l l y  to  BOSASA.   I  made 

re ference Cha i rperson to  the  depos i ts  tha t  BOSASA made 

spec i f i ca l l y  towards the  event  wh ich  was tak ing  p lace,  

wh ich  was the  b i r thday ce lebra t ions o f  P res ident  Zuma,  so  

I  am not  suggest ing  tha t  there  was any cash depos i ted  or  

whethe r  i t  was e lec t ron ic  t ransfer  bu t  we were  to ld  by  the  

Serv i ce  Prov iders  tha t  were  ass is t ing  us  to  say the  venue  

has been booked ,  X amount  has been pa id ,  tha t  is  what  I  10 

knew and tha t  i s  what  I  was to ld .    

 You know Cha i rperson some o f  these th ings tha t  I  

am be ing  asked today are  too  opera t iona l ,  so  fo r  me to 

unders tand because somebody was reconc i l ing  th ings,  tha t  

fo r  ins tance we wou ld  have a  l i s t  o f  peop le  who w i l l  have,  

no t  my l i s t  bu t  i f  we are  in  a  fundra is ing  d inner  somebody 

s tands up and  p ledges,  we wr i te ,  somebody  in  the 

foundat ion  wou ld  wr i te  a  name o f  the  person or  go  to  the 

person can I  have our  bus iness card ,  to  wr i te  a t  the  back  

o f  the  bus iness card  th is  pe rson  has p ledged to  donate  20 

R250 000 or  a  m i l l ion  Rand fo r  fo l low up and then they 

wou ld  pu t  tha t  in to  a  gr id .  

 Now I  cannot  say  tha t  I  wou ld  know tha t  i t  was  

Vi l joen tha t  pu t  cash or  i t  was  a  Xo lan i  tha t  pu t  cash 

somewhere ,  I  won ’ t  know tha t ,  bu t  there  wou ld  be  a  
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reconc i l ia t ion  when we ca l l  o r  when the  admin is t ra to r  

phones f rom tha t  g r id  to  say on  th is  day there  was an 

event ,  we are  ca l l ing  to  f ind  ou t  to  make a  fo l low up i f  

payments  have been made,  tha t  i s  how th ings were  done.   

And then Cha i rperson I  am not  suggest ing  tha t  o ther  

peop le  [d i s to r t ion ]  do  i t  in  any d i f f e ren t  way,  because I  am 

not  a  fundra i se r  and I  am not  a  –  yes I  am not  a  fundra iser  

nor  am I  a  bookkeeper  so  I  won ’ t  be  ab le  to  say 

spec i f i ca l l y  tha t  BOSASA wou ld  donate  in  cash or  BOSASA 

won ’ t  donate  in  cash,  tha t  i s  why I  was spec i f i c  when I  10 

made re ference  to BOSASA g iv ing  me 300 000  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  I  am ask ing  you  about  

opera t iona l  mat te rs  as  you desc r ibe  them because your  

own a f f idav i t  be fore  th i s  Commiss ion  says,  and I  quote ,  

and I  am happy to  take  you there  in  a  moment ,  I  deny tha t  

–  I  deny any o f  tha t ,  you are  re fe r r ing  to  the  300 000 tha t  

was a l leged to  have been commi t ted  by  Mr  Watson to  be  

pa id  to  you.   You say there fore  I  deny any o f  tha t  as  20 

anyone donat ing  to  the  foundat ion  wou ld  use EFT or  any  

o ther  fo rmal  t ransfe rs .   So i t  is  your  own ve rs ion  tha t  

anyone donat ing  to  the  foundat ion  wou ld  use EFT or  

another  fo rmal  t ransfer.  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson I  deny tha t  Agr izz i  gave  
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R300 000.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And I  am not  focus ing  on  tha t  Ms Myen i .   

MS MYENI :    I  am focus ing  on  tha t  Cha i r  because i t  

appeared tha t  Agr izz i  was r igh t  and the  sensua l i sa t ion  o f  

the  med ia  was such tha t  I  go t  a  b r ibe  f rom BOSASA,  i t  was 

a  very  b ig  s to ry  Cha i r,  I  am spec i f i c ,  I  don ’ t  want  us  to  

genera l i se  on  tha t  par t i cu la r  mat te r  i f  you  may Ms Hofmeyr  

and w i th  respect  to  you Cha i rpe rson,  we must  no t  

genera l i se  I  want  i t  to  be  spec i f i c .   I f  a  person 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on Ms Myen i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The ev idence leader  i s  no t  ask ing  about  

the  R300 000,  she is  jus t  ask ing  about  what  appears  to  be 

the  way in  wh ich  you sa id  in  the  a f f idav i t  donat ions wou ld  

be  made to  the  foundat ion .   So she is  look ing  a t  the 

manner  in  wh ich  she unders tands  your  a f f idav i t ,  you sa id  

donat ions wou ld  be  made to  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion .   

So Ms Hofmeyr  do  you want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]    

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   You see Ms Myen i  i t  i s  20 

no t  the  quest ion  tha t  i s  genera l i s ing ,  i t  i s  your  s ta tement  

be fore  th is  Commiss ion .   You say anyone donat ing  to  the 

foundat ion  wou ld  make use o f  EFT o r  any o ther  fo rm of  

t ransfer.  That  conveys  to  the  reader  tha t  you  have  

knowledge o f  these mat te rs  because i f  you d id  no t  have 
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knowledge you cou ldn ’ t  w i th  conv ic t ion  under  oa th  say  

anyone donat ing  to  the  foundat ion  wou ld  make use  o f  EFT 

or  any o ther  fo rm o f  t ransfe rs ,  so  I  pu t  i t  to  you tha t  you  

had to  have opera t iona l  knowledge in  o rder  to  make tha t  

s ta tement ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    No Cha i rperson I  am go ing  to  respond to  

Hofmeyr  th is  way,  in  a  s im i la r  way as  I  wro te  here .   

[ speak ing  in  vernacu lar ]  somebody  must  maybe mus t  ass is t  

me and I  am sure  my lega l  peop le  are  there .   [ speak ing  i n  

vernacu lar ]  . . .under  oa th  w i th  re ference to  the  med ia  spats  10 

tha t  was tak ing  p lace in  the  count ry  a f te r  Agr izz i  ment ioned 

my name.   [ speak ing  in  vernacu la r ] .   So I  am [speak ing  in  

vernacu lar ] .  Th is  i s  where  then [speak ing  in  vernacu lar ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    [Laugh ing ]  

MS MYENI :   I  wro te  th is  a f f idav i t  Cha i rperson knowing I  am 

dea l ing  w i th  one  person,  I  am not  dea l ing  w i th  the  o ther  

peop le ,  I  am dea l ing  w i th  th is  par t i cu la r  person because 

there  is  no th ing  b lanket  about  i t .   [Speak ing  in  ve rnacu lar ] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t ,  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :   [ speak ing  in  ve rnacu lar ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Myen i  has  resor ted  to  exp ress ing  

herse l f  in  I s iZu lu  on  most  o f  tha t  answer,  now we  d idn ’ t  

have an in te rpre ter  ready to  in te rpre t  what  she has sa id ,  

ready,   obv ious l y  I  do  unders tand  what  she is  say ing .   Ms 

Hofmeyr  what  do  you th ink  we shou ld  do?  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    I  suggest  tha t  we ad journ  so  tha t  we can  

obta in  a  t rans la to r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m,  a re  you ab le  to  pu t  i t  in  

Eng l ish  Ms Myen i ,  the  par t  tha t  you put  in  i s iZu lu?  

MS MYENI :    Thank you Cha i rpe rson I  thought  the 

Advocate  wou ld  t rans la te  because  he is  a lso  Zu lu  speak ing  

Cha i rperson because now i t  looks  l i ke  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  very  spec i f i c  i s  because  I  have  

never  dea l t  w i th  Agr izz i  so  a  person o f  Agr izz i  le t  me put  i t  

tha t  way wou ld  make a  –  because I  don ’ t  know h im,  how 10 

can Agr i zz i  t rus t  me wi th  R300 000 fo r  the  foundat ion  

a lone,  any person who wou ld  wan t  to  make a  p ledge or  to  

b r ing  a  cheque Cha i r  wou ld  pu t  a  cheque in  an  enve lope  

but  he  wou ld  make an appo in tment  i f  he  wants  to  g ive  i t  

s t ra igh t  to  the  owner  o f  the  foundat ion  so  a  person tha t  I  

don ’ t  know o f  Agr izz i  descent  wou ld  no t  en t rus t  me wi th  

such a  b ig  respons ib i l i t y  a lone Cha i r,  tha t  i s  what  I  am 

t ry ing  to  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr  I  asked her  i f  she  cou ld  pu t  

in  Eng l ish  what  she had put  in  i s iZu lu ,  tha t  i s  what  she has  20 

sa id .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You may p roceed.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Unfor tunate l y  i t  s t i l l  does not  answer  the  

quest ion ,  you see the  quest ion  was based on Ms Myen i  



05 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 299 
 

Page 132 of 148 
 

your  a f f idav i t  be fore  the  Commiss ion  wh ich  c lear  sa id  

anyone depos i t ing  w i th  the  Foundat ion  does so  in  one o f  

two ways.   I  pu t  to  you tha t  ind ica tes  you have knowledge  

o f  opera t iona l  mat te rs ,  do  you not  have knowledge o f  

opera t iona l  mat te rs?    

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may I  no t  answer  tha t  quest ion  

then o f  knowledge o f  opera t iona l  mat te rs ,  in  case I  

incr im inate  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    We were  prev ious l y  endeavour ing  to  10 

exp lore  cash depos i ts  because as  I  read your  a f f idav i t  you 

ru le  ou t  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  BOSASA was g iv ing  cash to  the  

Foundat ion  because you sa id  tha t  the  means w i th  

e lec t ron i c  t ransfe rs  and o the r  fo rmal  t ransfers ,  bu t  i n  your  

ev idence ea r l ie r  you sa id  the re  are  a lso  cash depos i ts  

made,  do  you reca l l  g iv ing  tha t  ev idence? 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson i f  I  am to  address Ms Hofmeyr  I  

don ’ t  know the  cash tha t  wou ld  have come,  i t  i s  poss ib le ,  I  

don ’ t  know the  cash tha t  wou ld  have come f rom Agr izz i  to  

the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  or  to  Dudu.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed so  you can ’ t  ru le  ou t  the 

poss ib i l i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    She is  s t i l l  comple t ing  her  answer.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Myen i  a re  you done w i th  your  
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answer?  

MS MYENI :    Now Cha i rpe rson I  am spec i f i c ,  I  have dea l t  

w i th  Mr  Watson,  we never  dea l t  w i th  Agr izz i  Cha i r,  I  was 

very  c lea r  and d i rec t  tha t  I  have never  rece ived in  person 

as  Dudu I  have never  rece ived any  money f rom Agr i zz i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MS MYENI :   I  have never  rece ived any g i f t  o r  anyth ing  

f rom,  BOSASA has ass i s ted  the  Foundat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  because you don ’ t  know who is  10 

depos i t ing  cash you cannot  ru le  ou t  tha t  BOSASO d id  so ,  

can you?  

MS MYENI :    May I  no t  answer  tha t  quest ion  Cha i rperson  

in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  you gave ev idence ea r l ie r  tha t  

there  was an i nvest iga t ion  under  way,  Mh la thuze in  2015  

and 2016 tha t  imp l ica ted  Mr  X ’s  company,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    Yes indeed I  am the  one who  made  

submiss ions in to  th is  commiss ion  regard ing  the  quest ion  

tha t  was be ing  asked.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes are  those the  annexures  to  our  

a f f idav i t  where  you showed us the  invest iga t ions tha t  have 

been launched?  

MS MYENI :    Th is  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  I  wou ld  pre fe r  no t  to  

answer.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  jus t  a  po in t  o f  c la r i t y  because you  

have jus t  sa id  tha t  you made submiss ions  to  the 

Commiss ion  about  these invest iga t ions tha t  you were  

tes t i f y ing  about ,  and I  am jus t  c la r i f y ing  whether  the  

invest iga t ions you are  ta lk ing  about  a re  the  ones tha t  you 

a t tached to  ou r  a f f idav i t  to  the  Commiss ion .  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson I  am such a  lay  person  I  do  no t  

know much abou t  lega l  i ssues.   Th is  I  be l ieve  tha t  th is  

invest iga t ion  tha t  i s  tak ing  p lace a t  Mh la thuze is  a  cur ren t  

mat te r  tha t  i s  tak ing  p lace,  on  the  cur ren t  case  tha t  i s  10 

tak ing  p lace and I  was s t i l l  a  cha i rperson a t  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  

t ime there fo re  Cha i rperson,  I  apo log i se  Ms Hofmeyr  I  

unders tood tha t  you sa id  I  must  f i rs t  answer  and then  

qua l i t y  i f  I  want  to  qua l i f y.   May I  then not  answer  tha t  

quest ion  in  case  I  incr im inate  myse l f  because I  am s t i l l  

go ing  to  be  be fore  the  I  th ink  the  peop le  tha t  a re  

invest iga t ing  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  S IU i f  I  may be –  

i f  I  reca l l ,  i f  I  reca l l  Cha i r.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see Ms Myen i  the  cha l lenge tha t  

p resents  i t se l f  based on what  you have tes t i f ied  to  i s  tha t  20 

you exp la in  a  b reakdown in  our  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  X  

around 2015 and  2016,  on  the  bas is  o f  invest iga t ions tha t  

were  be ing  conducted a t  the  t ime a t  Mh la thuze,  wh ich  

invo l ved h is  company,  bu t  the  annexures to  your  a f f idav i t  

about  invest iga t ions tak ing  p lace a t  Mh la thuze are  
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commencing  2019,  so  how can i t  be  tha t  invest iga t ions in  

2019 a re  what  c rea ted a  b reakdown in  your  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Mr  X  in  2015  and 2016?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson I  am c lear  about  tha t ,  there  was 

in te rna l  invest iga t ion  tha t  took p lace a t  Mh la thuze f i rs t  

there  was no S IU  and then there  were  ex terna l  peop le  tha t  

were  b rought  in  to  cont inue w i th  t he  invest iga t ion  tha t  had 

taken p lace ins ide  the  organ isa t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes bu t  d id  they  invo lve  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :    One  such company . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    Apo log ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes comple te  your  answer  Ms Myen i .  

MS MYENI :    I  am go ing  to  b r ing  back my thought  

p rocesses.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MS MYENI :   I  am be ing  asked l i ke  I  am ly ing  to  say the re  

was a  breakdown in  re la t ionsh ip  be tween me and the  fami ly  

in  2015 and 2016,  b reakdown Cha i r  because i f  you are  

fami ly  you ta lk  a lmost  every  day w i th  the  person,  o r  you  

ta lk  every  second day or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .   Now there  20 

was invest iga t ion  wh ich  I  kept  ra i s ing  issues about  to  the  –  

to  Mr  X ,  there fore  I  am say ing  then and now i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  

invest iga t ions tha t  have been tak ing  p lace.   I  have 

sens i t i sed  by  the  CEO tha t  there  is  an  S IU inves t iga t ion  

tak ing  p lace.   I  was sens i t i sed  then tha t  there  was the  
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second invest iga t ion  tha t  was tak ing  p lace be ing  done by  

an  ex terna l  company tha t  wanted to  s i t  w i th  me  one on 

one.    

 Now in  a l l  these  invest iga t ions cer ta in  names are  

be ing  used,  in  a l l  these invest iga t ions,  there fo re  on ly  now 

as I  am speak ing  tha t  because there  is  ISU,  th is  i s  an  

Organ o f  S ta te  Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  no t  a  p r iva te  inves t iga t ion  

done wh i le  I  was  par t  o f  Mh la thuze,  when I  was Cha i r  a t  

the  t ime and a f te r  I  had le f t  Mh la thuze there  was a lso  

another  i nvest iga t ion  wh ich  was  ampl i f y ing  the  f ind ings 10 

tha t  had been found on the  f i rs t  invest iga t ion  wh ich  was an  

in te rna l  invest iga t ion  and then  a f te r  tha t  I  th ink  the  

company tha t  was cont rac ted  to  do  the  invest iga t ion ,  a f te r  

tha t  I  th ink  the re  was then there  i s  a  new Board ,  there  i s  a  

new CEO,  and  there fore  there  was –  there  is  now 

invo lvement  o f  the  S IU,  hence I  am say ing  then now Cha i r  I  

cannot  ta lk  to  mat te rs  tha t  I  a re  s t i l l  w i th  the  S IU and I  

m ight  a lso  be  sub jec t  o f  the  same invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR:    For  the  reco rd  Cha i r  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  20 

record  tha t  there   has s t i l l  no t  been an answer  to  my 

quest ion ,  bu t  I  am go ing  to  move on.   I  unders tand  a f te r  a  

long answer  Ms Myen i  has invoked the  pr iv i l ege aga ins t  

se l f  inc r im inat ion ,  so  i f  we can then go back to  the  depos i t  

tha t  Mr  X  ind i ca ted  to  you Ms Myen i ,  o r  ind ica ted  tha t  you 
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Ms Myen i  had p rov ided h im wi th  the  bank account  in to 

wh ich  to  make those depos i ts .   Depos i ts  a re  th ings tha t  

you can check on  a  bank i f  they  are  done by  EFT a ren ’ t  

they?  

MS MYENI :    . . .aga in ,  sor ry  your  quest ion  is?   

ADV HOFMEYR:    I f  a  depos i t  i s  made by  e lec t ron ic  funds  

t ransfer  then you  can ident i f y  who  makes the  depos i t  on  a  

bank s ta tement ,  can ’ t  you?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may I  no t  answer  tha t  quest ion ,  

in  case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    You see Mr  X ’s  ev idence was tha t  he  

d idn ’ t  even know tha t  he  was depos i t ing  in to  the  bank  

account  o f  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion ,  these very  la rge  

amounts  tha t  on  h is  vers ion  you ins t ruc ted  h im to  depos i t  

and he sa id  tha t  he  wou ld  never  have made a  donat ion  

because in  o rder  h imse l f ,  in  o rder  to  make a  donat ion  you 

have to  know to  whom you are  donat ing .   Were  you aware  

tha t  he  depos i ted  R1mi l l ion  to  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  

on  the  11 t h  o f  December  2015?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may I  no t  answer  th is  quest ion  in  20 

case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And then he made another  depos i t  on  

the  2 n d  o f  February  2016 in  the  amount  o f  R800 000 to  the  

Jacob Zuma Foundat ion ,  were  you aware  o f  tha t  depos i t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson may I  no t  answer  th is  quest ion  in  
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case I  incr im inate  myse l f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Ms Myen i  the  o ther  p iece  o f  ev idence 

tha t  Mr  X  gave to  the  Commiss ion  was tha t  on  the  very  

same day tha t  the  Commiss ion  had contac ted  your  son 

about  h is  invo l vement  in  pay ing  Mr  X ’s  company and then 

Mr  X  pay ing  money in to  the  Jacob Zuma Founda t ion  h is  

daughte r  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom you  in  wh ich  you asked her  

why Mr  X  was se l l ing  us  ou t ,  can you conf i rm whether  you 

made tha t  ca l l?  

MS MYENI :    I  los t  you r  Ms Hofmeyr.  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:    I  w i l l  t ry  aga in  Ms Myen i  can you hear  

me now? 

MS MYENI :    I  los t  you –  so r ry  I  los t  you I  d idn ’ t  ge t  tha t .    

ADV HOFMEYR:    That  i s  f ine  i t  seems the  connect ion  is  

no t  s tab le ,  i s  tha t  be t te r?  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  i t  i s  per fec t ,  I  can  hear  you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  Mr  X  tes t i f ied  be fore  the  Commiss ion  

tha t  on  the  same day tha t  the  Commiss ion  f i r s t  contac ted 

your  son about  Premie r  A t t rac t ions  dea l ings w i th  Mr  X  your  

–  or  h i s  daughte r  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom you in  wh ich  you 20 

asked her  why Mr  X  was se l l ing  us  ou t .   Can you conf i rm 

mak ing  tha t  ca l l?  

MS MYENI :    I  don ’ t  reca l l  any  ca l l  l i ke  tha t  Cha i rpe rson,  

tha t  i s  whu -  okay I  do not  recal l  – I  do not  recal l  that  

Chairperson.  
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ADV HOFMEYR:   And your son test i f ied also before this 

commission and he did conf i rm that  he phoned you on that  

day and alerted you to the fact  that  the commission had 

made contact  him about Premier  At t ract ions deal ings.   Do 

you remember receiving that  cal l  f rom your son? 

MS MYENI:   He might  have to remind me Chairperson.   I  ta lk  

to him almost  every day so he must  te l l  me which day he 

cal led and which part icular aspect  – we discuss a number of  

th ings.   So I  wi l l  not  remember that .   And this part icular day 

he cal led for th is.   But  I  am saying I  read his t ranscr ipt .  10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   You said that  you do not  remember making 

the cal l  to Mr X’s daughter.   Can I  just  probe that  a bi t  

further?  Is i t  possible that  you could have made a cal l  in 

which you asked her why her father  was sel l ing you out? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson these chi ldren are my chi ldren that 

is – I  can – that  is the only th ing I  can say.   But  other than 

that  Chai rperson may I  p lease Ms Hendricks – sorry Ms 

Hofmeyr not  answer that  quest ion in case I  incr iminate 

mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Now I  th ink i t  is important  to just  be clear 20 

Ms Myeni  why this money f rom Premier At t ract ion to  Mr X’s 

company to the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion is re levant  at  al l  to 

the work of  the commission.   Are you aware of  why the 

commission was interested in  these aspects as we 

quest ioned your son and Mr X? 
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MS MYENI:   May I  not  answer Chai rperson in  case I  

incr iminate mysel f .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see the reason why I  am quest  – 

ra is ing these quest ions wi th you Ms Myeni  is because 

Premier At t ract ion received at  a  point  in t ime R2 mi l l ion f rom 

an ent i ty cal led V&A Consul t ing,  do you know that  ent i ty? 

MS MYENI:   I  would not  – I  would not  know the business 

deal ings between my son and whatever that  he does wi th 

whoever.   So I  would not  know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You do not  know that  ent i ty? 10 

MS MYENI:   Perhaps i f  – i f  – no I  am saying I  would not 

know the deal ings between my son and whatever that  he 

does.   But  Chai r  wi th your permission i f  you said – i f  you 

gave me the name of  the business l ike V&A but  then you say 

the owner bi l led Ms Zondo i t  is di fferent .  We interact  and we 

deal  wi th so many people I  would not  know that  there is  th is  

part icular business that  my son does business wi th.   And th is 

part icular business that  my son does business wi th.   I  would 

not  know those detai ls Chairperson.   So I  –  I  would l ike – as 

a – I  am sorry Chai rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  – yes I  seem to get  the impression that  

what you are saying is you do not  th ink you know the name 

V&A but  i f  you are told the owner of  that  company i t  may be 

that  you know the owner but  when you are just  to ld the name 

of  the ent i ty that  might  not  r ing a bel l  to you.   Is that  what 
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you are saying?  Did you hear me? 

MS MYENI:   I  am saying Chairperson I  would not  know the 

business people that  my son does business wi th.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS MYENI:   Assuming that  he does business wi th  pr ivate 

companies.   I  would not  know them Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Do you know Mr Vikash Narsai? 

MS MYENI:   Can I  Chai rperson as wel l  because we are st i l l  

cont inue wi th Mhlatuze.   Can I  then say may I  not  answer? I  10 

cannot say any of  the quest ions per taining to Mhlatuze.   May 

I  not  answer so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?  Let  me just  

put  i t  that  way.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay this part icular quest ion that  is the 

one you were talk ing about at  a stage.  

MS MYENI:   This part icular quest ion Chai r  that  is being 

spoken about.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS MYENI:   And the Premier  At t ract ions deal ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  just  would l ike to get  c lar i ty here Ms 

Myeni  because I  asked a quest ion about whether you know 

V&A Consul t ing and I  understood your answer to that  to be 

you – you may not  know the ent i ty but  i f  you knew the name 

of  the person involved in the ent i ty then you may be able to 
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ident i fy them.  In  response to that  I  gave you the name of  

the person involved in V&A Consul t ing and asked whether 

you knew him and in response to that  quest ion you have 

invoked the pr iv i lege against  sel f - incr iminat ion,  is that  r ight? 

MS MYENI:   No.   I  invoked this  pr iv i lege f rom the moment  

you asked me the quest ions about Premier At t ract ion 

deal ings.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   That  may be… 

MS MYENI:   I  invoked the same – the same pr iv i lege 

Chairperson wi th  respect  on matters pertaining to  Premier 10 

At t ract ion,  Mr X and pr ivate deal ings of  Premier At t ract ion 

wi th his – the partners or wi th the associat ions – oh sorry 

associates wi th whoever that  they do business wi th.   That  is 

why I  am saying – because each quest ion Chai r  is leading to  

another.   Do you know Premier  At t ract ion?  Do you know 

V&A?  Do you know – I  – I  – may I  p lease wi th respect  Chair  

not  answer those quest ion because i t  looks l ike I  wi l l  

incr iminate mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do recal l  that  we – we said each 

quest ion has got  to be deal t  wi th on i ts meri ts.   I f  you invoke 20 

… 

MS MYENI:   Indeed Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  a certain stage you have to invoke i t  in 

regard to each quest ion.   From what you have – f rom what 

has been happening my impression is that  on some 
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quest ions you are able to answer.   You feel  comfor table to  

answer.   On others you wish to invoke the pr iv i lege.   I  do not  

know whether – oh we lost  your p icture.   Were you hearing 

me when we lost  your picture? 

MS MYENI:   I  hear you very wel l  Chair  I  do not  know how I 

lost  – you lost  my picture but  I  can hear you very wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay so let  us cont inue.   You – you – 

I  was saying that  my impression is that  in regard to some 

quest ions you feel  comfortable to answer and you do answer.   

In regard to others you feel  uncomfortable and you invoke 10 

your pr iv i lege.   So let  us cont inue.  

MS MYENI:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And you do your best  to assist  where you 

can assist .   And i f  you invoke your pr iv i lege you do so 

quest ion by quest ion as you have been doing.  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   You see V&A Consul t ing was contracted by 

the Free State government to do an RDP housing project  in 

the Free State,  were you aware of  that  in 2015? 20 

MS MYENI:   I  invoke my pr iv i lege Chairperson.   May I  not  

answer to that  quest ion? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then what happened is that  V&A 

Consul t ing paid R2 mi l l ion to  your  son’s ent i ty Premier  

At t ract ion.   Were you aware of  that  payment? 
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MS MYENI:   Chai rperson I  am distant  to al l  these th ings that  

I  am being asked.   I  am very distant  to them.  May I  p lease 

wi th your  permiss ion invoke the pr iv i lege Chairperson?  I  do 

not  know these quest ions.   I  do not  have answers to these 

quest ions.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  i f  you are distant  f rom matters 

and you do not  have answers to  them that  is not  a basis to  

invoke the pr iv i lege against  sel f - incr iminat ion.   Do you – are 

you – do you understand that  that  is a d i fferent  matter? 

MS MYENI:   In th is part icular regard -  Chai rperson in th is  10 

part icular regard I  – may I  invoke the pr iv i lege Chai rperson 

not  to incr iminate mysel f?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then af ter Premier At t ract ion received 

the R2 mi l l ion i t  then paid these amounts to Mr X ’s company 

and Mr X’s company paid them to the Jacob Zuma 

Foundat ion.   Did you have knowledge of  that  rout ing of  the 

money? 

MS MYENI:   May I  invoke my pr iv i lege Chai rperson?  May I  

not  answer the quest ion so that  I  do not  incr iminate mysel f?  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Ms Myeni  I  would l ike to  look at  the Jacob 

Zuma Foundat ion in a bi t  more detai l  because I  have been 

focussing on the interact ions between Mr X and those 

deposi ts into the foundat ion.   But  now I  would l ike to  look at  

some other deposi ts to the Jacob Zuma Foundat ion that  have 
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been deal t  wi th in  the evidence before the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  am sorry.   I  am sorry Ms Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Can you just  help me..  

CHAIRPERSON:   We are at  four minutes to four.  

1.  Let  us talk about  the way forward.  

2.  I f  we are proceeding we might  need to take a short  

break and then resume.  

What is your suggest ion about the – whether to – you would 

ask that  we proceed – I  am avai lable to proceed? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Chai r  I  th ink i t  would be useful  to make a 10 

bi t  more headway.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   So I  would suggest  that  we do proceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You are – what you envisage in terms 

of  how far we should go? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Wel l  there is st i l l  qui te a way to go so I  

would suggest  possibly unt i l  5.30 or thereabouts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay that  would be f ine wi th me.  Mr 

Buthelezi  how is your si tuat ion? 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   I f  I  could just  get  f ive minutes Chair  I  just  20 

need to run a few things past  Mr Mabuza because we st i l l  

have other business that  we wanted to do.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes,  yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   With regards to today and post .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV BUTHELEZI:     So our arrangements have been that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:     We would adjourn at  the normal t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes then you would at tend to the business.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:    And then we can do the homework that  

the Chai r  has given us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:    So we have got  that  s i tuat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV BUTHELEZI:     So I  st i l l  need to go back and start  that  10 

process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay maybe – maybe subject  – maybe we 

should take a short  break so you can make that  cal l  but  

maybe i f  –  maybe we could go up to f ive to accommodate 

whatever but  i t  might  depend on your  si tuat ion fai l ing which 

we wi l l  – we might  look whether tomorrow we would not  start  

ear l ier than normal to to – to make up for  the t ime.  But  let 

me check wi th Ms Myeni  as wel l .   Ms Myeni  are you avai lable 

for us to cont inue beyond four or  f ive /  hal f  past  f ive i f  

everybody is avai lable? 20 

MS MYENI:   I  am – I  am able to proceed Chairperson I  am 

here before you – I  am here in Gauteng for th is part icular 

process.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Okay al r ight .  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   I  suggest  Ms Hofmeyr we take a 

break maybe for ten minutes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then when we come back we wi l l  hear 

what Mr Buthelez i  says because the other homework that  

they have got  to do is also important  and urgent .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  let  us see what we can do.   Okay we 

wi l l  adjourn for ten minutes.   We wi l l  resume at  ten past  four.   

We adjourn.  10 

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr Buthelezi  have you got  some report  

back? 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   We have had a discussion wi th Ms 

Hofmeyr to say we would ask the Chair  i f  you could adjourn 

for the day and start  ear ly tomorrow which we were thinking 20 

around n ine o’clock.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Hofmeyr? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   We did indeed have that  

discussion.   My learned f r iends were very accommodat ing 

suggest ing maybe hal f  an hour to day and a 9.30 start  
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tomorrow but  I  said on balance there is  some urgency in  

them preparing the submissions that  they wanted to.   So I  

th ink we landed on the not ion that  adjourning now would be 

helpful  to them and then start ing at  nine o ’clock tomorrow so 

we do not  lose any of  the t ime we might  have made up this 

af ternoon.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No that  is f ine.   We can start  at  

n ine tomorrow.  Okay so we wi l l  then adjourn now.   Ms Myeni  

we are going to adjourn now.  

MS MYENI:   Yes Chairperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   We are going to adjourn now.  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja to enable your legal  team to at tend to 

the matter that  was discussed earl ier.  But  tomorrow we wi l l  

start  at  n ine o’clock.   Okay.   Alr ight .  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai rperson. 

CHAIRPERSON:   We wi l l  then adjourn for the day.   We 

adjourn.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.  

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r ise.  20 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 6 NOVEMBER 2020 

 


